Lake St. Charles
Community Development District

Board of Supervisors’ Meeting
October 01, 2025

District Office:
2700 S. Falkenburg Rd. Ste 2745
Riverview, Florida 33578
813.533.2950

www.lakestcharles.org



LAKE ST. CHARLES
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

6801 Colonial Lake Drive Riverview, FL 33578

Board of Supervisors  Virginia Gianakos Chairman
Toni Marie Davis Vice Chairman
Yvonne Brown Assistant Secretary
John Hines Marshall Assistant Secretary
Benjamin Turinsky Assistant Secretary
District Manager Ruben Durand Rizzetta & Company, Inc.
District Counsel Savannah Hancock Kilinski Van Wyk
District Engineer Ed Jimenez Kimley-Horn

All cellular phones must be placed on mute while in the meeting room.

The Audience Comment portion of the agenda is where individuals may make
comments on matters that concern the District. Individuals are limited to a total of three
(3) minutes to make comments during this time.

Pursuant to provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person
requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting/hearing/workshop is
asked to advise the District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the
meeting/hearing/workshop by contacting the District Manager at (813) 533-2950. If you
are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service by dialing 7-1-
1, 1-800-955-8771 (TTY) or 1-800-955-8770 (voice), who can aid you in contacting the
District Office.

A person who decides to appeal any decision made at the
meeting/hearing/workshop with respect to any matter considered at the
meeting/hearing/workshop is advised that person will need a record of the proceedings
and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the
proceedings is made including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to
be based.



LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
DISTRICT OFFICE ¢ 2700 S. FALKENBURG RD, STE 2745. ¢« RIVERVIEW, FL 33578

Board of Supervisors September 30, 2025
Lake St. Charles
Community Development District

REVISED AGENDA
Dear Board Members:

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Lake St. Charles Community
Development District will be held on Wednesday, October 1t, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. at 6801
Colonial Lake Drive Riverview, FL 33578.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ MEETING:

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
2. AUDIENCE COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS
3. STAFF REPORTS
A. District Counsel
a. Discussion of District Policies

i. Proposed Amended and Restated Rules of Procedure......... Tab 1
ii. Proposed Amended and Restated Rules and Policies
fOr AMENIty USAQE ......vuveiieieieieieeiiiiiie e e e e e e eeeeens Tab 2
iii. Proposed Seawall and Dock Encroachment Policy .............. Tab 3
iv. Proposed Amended and Restated Parking and Towing
POLICIES e Tab 4

B. District Engineer
C. Operations Manager

i. September Status REPOIt.........coooiiiiiiiiii e, Tab 5
ii. Discussion on Maintenance and Office Support
1. BOUY REPOI ... e e Tab 6
IV. ACLION ITEM LISt ... i e Tab 7

D. District Manager
i. Formation of Audit Committee

4. BUSINESS ITEMS

A. Discussion on Prior District Management

B. Consideration of License Agreement for HOA Fall Festival

C. Discussion on Property Manager Representation

D. Discussion of Landscape RFP .........ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiin, Tab 8
5. BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION (Consent Agenda)

A. Consideration of Meeting Minutes from 06 — 03 — 2025 and

09 — 03 = 2025 ..ottt Tab 9

7. SUPERVISOR REQUESTS
8. ADJOURNMENT

We look forward to seeing you at the meeting. In the meantime, if you have any
guestions, please do not hesitate to call us at (813) 533-2950.

Sincerely,
Rulben Durand

Ruben Durand
District Manager



Tab 1



RULES OF PROCEDURE

LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

EFFECTIVE AS OF
TABLE OF CONTENTS
RUIE 1.0 GENEIAL.....iiiiiieee ittt sttt et e st e be et e s b e nbeese e st e e beaneenneeneas 2
Rule 1.1 Board of Supervisors; Officers and VOING. ......cccccoevvveviiiiiiiee e, 3
Rule 1.2 District Offices; Public Information and Inspection of Records; Policies;
Service Contract Requirements; Financial Disclosure Coordination. ........ 7
Rule 1.3 Public Meetings, Hearings, and WOrkShOpS. .......couvvveivvvvireiiiiiee e 10
Rule 1.4 Internal Controls to Prevent Fraud, Waste and ADUSE...........ccceevveeiiineenne 15
Rule 2.0  RulemMaking PrOCEEAINGS. .. .cvvereerieeieariestiesieeieseesieeeesseeseeessesseessesssessessseesssssesssesnsens 16
Rule 3.0 COMPELitiVe PUICNASE. ....viiviiiiiiiciieieiee e 22
Rule 3.1 Procedure Under the Consultants' Competitive Negotiations Act............ 27
Rule 3.2 Procedure Regarding Auditor SEIECLION. .........cocvvveverieiiirii e 31
Rule 3.3 PUrchase Of INSUFANCE. ......eeeivieeiiriecciree ettt sttt 35
Rule 3.4 Pre-qUalifiCatiON........c.eeiivie i 37
Rule 3.5 Construction Contracts, Not Design-Build. ...........ccccveevvieieeiiiiiiee e, 43
Rule 3.6 Construction Contracts, Design-Build. ..........cccccocvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 47
Rule 3.7 Payment and Performance BONdS. ........ccccvveervereiieneeie e ceeee e 52
Rule 3.8 Goods, Supplies, and Materials. .........cccocvveiiiiiiiiieiie e 53
Rule 3.9 MaINTENANCE SEIVICES. ...uvvveirieecrie et e ettt erre e erae e erae e e 57
Rule 3.10 CoNLractual SEIVICES. .....couvieiiieeieiie et 60
Rule 3.11 Protests with Respect to Proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5,
3.6,3.8,aN0 3.9, ..uiciiiieece e 61
RUIE 4.0  EFFECLIVE DALE. ..ocveeveeieeiiecie et te e be e e ssaesreeneesneesneenneas 64




Rule 1.0

1)

)

(3)

(4)

General.

Lake St. Charles Community Development District (“District”) was created
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes, and was
established to provide for the ownership, operation, maintenance, and provision of
various capital facilities and services within its jurisdiction. The purpose of these
rules (“Rules”) is to describe the general operations of the District.

Definitions located within any section of these Rules shall be applicable within all
other sections, unless specifically stated to the contrary.

Unless specifically permitted by a written agreement with the District, the District
does not accept documents filed by electronic mail or facsimile transmission.
Filings are only accepted during normal business hours, which are 9:00 a.m. to 5:00
p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays.

A Rule of the District shall be effective upon adoption by affirmative vote of the
District Board. After a Rule becomes effective, it may be repealed or amended only
through the rulemaking procedures specified in these Rules. Notwithstanding, the
District may immediately suspend the application of a Rule if the District
determines that the Rule conflicts with Florida law. In the event that a Rule
conflicts with Florida law and its application has not been suspended by the District,
such Rule should be interpreted in the manner that best effectuates the intent of the
Rule while also complying with Florida law. If the intent of the Rule absolutely
cannot be effectuated while complying with Florida law, the Rule shall be
automatically suspended.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: 8§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.



Rule 1.1

1)

)

Board of Supervisors; Officers and Voting.

Board of Supervisors. The Board of Supervisors of the District (“Board”) shall
consist of five (5) members. Members of the Board (“Supervisors™) appointed by
ordinance or rule or elected by landowners must be citizens of the United States of
America and residents of the State of Florida. Supervisors elected or appointed by
the Board to elector seats must be citizens of the United States of America, residents
of the State of Florida and of the District and registered to vote with the Supervisor
of Elections of the county in which the District is located and for those elected,
shall also be qualified to run by the Supervisor of Elections. The Board shall
exercise the powers granted to the District under Florida law.

@ Supervisors shall hold office for the term specified by Section 190.006 of
the Florida Statutes. If, during the term of office, any Board member(s)
vacates their office, the remaining member(s) of the Board shall fill the
vacancies by appointment for the remainder of the term(s). If three or more
vacancies exist at the same time, a quorum, as defined herein, shall not be
required to appoint replacement Board members.

(b) Three (3) members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the purposes
of conducting business, exercising powers and all other purposes. A Board
member shall be counted toward the quorum if physically present at the
meeting, regardless of whether such Board member is prohibited from, or
abstains from, participating in discussion or voting on a particular item.

(©) Action taken by the Board shall be upon a majority vote of the members
present, unless otherwise provided in the Rules or required by law. Subject
to Rule 1.3(10), a Board member participating in the Board meeting by
teleconference or videoconference shall be entitled to vote and take all other
action as though physically present.

(d) Unless otherwise provided for by an act of the Board, any one Board
member may attend a mediation session on behalf of the Board. Any
agreement resulting from such mediation session must be approved
pursuant to subsection (1)(c) of this Rule.

Officers. At the first Board meeting held after each election where the newly elected
members take office, the Board shall select a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson,
Secretary, Assistant Secretary, and Treasurer.

@ The Chairperson must be a member of the Board. If the Chairperson resigns
from that office or ceases to be a member of the Board, the Board shall
select a Chairperson. The Chairperson serves at the pleasure of the Board.
The Chairperson shall be authorized to execute resolutions and contracts on
the District’s behalf. The Chairperson shall convene and conduct all
meetings of the Board. In the event the Chairperson is unable to attend a



(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

(f)

meeting, the Vice-Chairperson shall convene and conduct the meeting. The
Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson may delegate the responsibility of
conducting the meeting to the District’s manager (“District Manager”) or
District Counsel, in whole or in part.

The Vice-Chairperson shall be a member of the Board and shall have such
duties and responsibilities as specifically designated by the Board from time
to time. The Vice-Chairperson has the authority to execute resolutions and
contracts on the District’s behalf in the absence of the Chairperson. If the
Vice-Chairperson resigns from office or ceases to be a member of the
Board, the Board shall select a Vice-Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson
serves at the pleasure of the Board.

The Secretary of the Board serves at the pleasure of the Board and need not
be a member of the Board. The Secretary shall be responsible for
maintaining the minutes of Board meetings and may have other duties
assigned by the Board from time to time. An employee of the District
Manager may serve as Secretary. The Secretary shall be bonded by a
reputable and qualified bonding company in at least the amount of one
million dollars ($1,000,000), or have in place a fidelity bond, employee theft
insurance policy, or a comparable product in at least the amount of one
million dollars ($1,000,000) that names the District as an additional insured.

The Treasurer need not be a member of the Board but must be a resident of
the State of Florida. The Treasurer shall perform duties described in Section
190.007(2) and (3) of the Florida Statutes, as well as those assigned by the
Board from time to time. The Treasurer shall serve at the pleasure of the
Board. The Treasurer shall either be bonded by a reputable and qualified
bonding company in at least the amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000),
or have in place a fidelity bond, employee theft insurance policy, or a
comparable product in at least the amount of one million dollars
($1,000,000) that names the District as an additional insured.

In the event that both the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson are absent from
a Board meeting and a quorum is present, the Board may designate one of
its members or a member of District staff to convene and conduct the
meeting. In such circumstances, any of the Board members present are
authorized to execute agreements, resolutions, and other documents
approved by the Board at such meeting. In the event that the Chairperson
and Vice-Chairperson are both unavailable to execute a document
previously approved by the Board, the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary
may execute such document.

The Board may assign additional duties to District officers from time to
time, which include, but are not limited to, executing documents on behalf
of the District.



(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(9) The Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and any other person authorized by
District Resolution may sign checks and warrants for the District,
countersigned by the Treasurer or other persons authorized by the Board.

Committees. The Board may establish committees of the Board, either on a
permanent or temporary basis, to perform specifically designated functions.
Committees may include individuals who are not members of the Board. Such
functions may include, but are not limited to, review of bids, proposals, and
qualifications, contract negotiations, personnel matters, and budget preparation.
Florida Open Meetings Laws apply to such Committees.

Record Book. The Board shall keep a permanent record book entitled “Record of
Proceedings,” in which shall be recorded minutes of all meetings, resolutions,
proceedings, certificates, and corporate acts. The Records of Proceedings shall be
located at a District office and shall be available for inspection by the public.

Meetings. For each fiscal year, the Board shall establish a schedule of regular
meetings, which shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the
county in which the District is located and filed with the local general-purpose
governments within whose boundaries the District is located. All meetings of the
Board and Committees serving an advisory function shall be open to the public in
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 286 of the Florida Statutes.

Voting Conflict of Interest. The Board shall comply with Section 112.3143 of the
Florida Statutes, so as to ensure the proper disclosure of conflicts of interest on
matters coming before the Board for a vote. For the purposes of this section,
"voting conflict of interest” shall be governed by the Florida Constitution and
Chapters 112 and 190 of the Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time.
Generally, a voting conflict exists when a Board member is called upon to vote on
an item which would inure to the Board member’s special private gain or loss or
the Board member knows would inure to the special private gain or loss of a
principal by whom the Board member is retained, the parent organization or
subsidiary of a corporate principal, a business associate, or a relative including only
a father, mother, son, daughter, husband, wife, brother, sister, father-in-law,
mother-in-law, son-in-law, and daughter-in-law.

@ When a Board member knows the member has a conflict of interest on a
matter coming before the Board, the member should notify the Board’s
Secretary prior to participating in any discussion with the Board on the
matter. The Board member shall publicly announce the conflict of interest
at the meeting. This announcement shall appear in the minutes.

If the Board member was elected at a landowner’s election or appointed to
fill a vacancy of a seat last filled at a landowner’s election, the Board
member may vote or abstain from voting on the matter at issue. If the Board
member was elected by electors residing within the District, the Board



member is prohibited from voting on the matter at issue. In the event that
the Board member intends to abstain or is prohibited from voting, such
Board member shall not participate in the discussion on the item subject to
the vote.

The Board’s Secretary shall prepare a Memorandum of Voting Conflict
(Form 8B) which shall then be signed by the Board member, filed with the
Board’s Secretary, and provided for attachment to the minutes of the
meeting within fifteen (15) days of the meeting.

(b) If a Board member inadvertently votes on a matter and later learns he or she
has a conflict on the matter, the member shall immediately notify the
Board’s Secretary. Within fifteen (15) days of the notification, the member
shall file the appropriate Memorandum of Voting Conflict, which will be
attached to the minutes of the Board meeting during which the vote on the
matter occurred. The Memorandum of Voting Conflict shall immediately
be provided to other Board members and shall be read publicly at the next
meeting held subsequent to the filing of the Memorandum of Voting
Conflict. The Board member’s vote is unaffected by this filing.

(© It is not a conflict of interest for a Board member, the District Manager, or
an employee of the District to be a stockholder, officer or employee of a
landowner or of an entity affiliated with a landowner.

(d) In the event that a Board member elected at a landowner’s election or
appointed to fill a vacancy of a seat last filled at a landowner’s election, has
a continuing conflict of interest, such Board member is permitted to file a
Memorandum of Voting Conflict at any time in which it shall state the
nature of the continuing conflict. Only one such continuing Memorandum
of Voting Conflict shall be required to be filed for each term the Board
member is in office.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: 88 112.3143, 190.006, 190.007, Fla. Stat.



Rule 1.2

1)

()

District Offices; Public Information and Inspection of Records; Policies;
Service Contract Requirements; Financial Disclosure Coordination.

District Offices. Unless otherwise designated by the Board, the official District
office shall be the District Manager’s office identified by the District Manager. If
the District Manager’s office is not located within the county in which the District
is located, the Board shall designate a local records office within such county which
shall at a minimum contain, but not be limited to, the following documents:

@) Agenda packages for prior twenty-four (24) months and next meeting;
(b) Official minutes of meetings, including adopted resolutions of the Board,

(© Names and addresses of current Board members and District Manager,
unless such addresses are protected from disclosure by law;

(d) Adopted engineer’s reports;
(e) Adopted assessment methodologies/reports;
()] Adopted disclosure of public financing;

(9) Limited Offering Memorandum for each financing undertaken by the
District;

(h) Proceedings, certificates, bonds given by all employees, and any and all
corporate acts;

Q) District policies and rules;
() Fiscal year end audits; and
(K) Adopted budget for the current fiscal year.

The District Manager shall ensure that each District records office contains the
documents required by Florida law.

Public Records. District public records include, but are not limited to, all
documents, papers, letters, maps, books, tapes, photographs, films, sound
recordings, data processing software, or other material, regardless of the physical
form, characteristics, or means of transmission, made or received in connection
with the transaction of official business of the District. All District public records
not otherwise restricted by law may be copied or inspected at the District Manager’s
office during regular business hours. Certain District records can also be inspected
and copied at the District’s local records office during regular business hours. All
written public records requests shall be directed to the Secretary who by these rules




©)

(4)

is appointed as the District’s records custodian. Regardless of the form of the
request, any Board member or staff member who receives a public records request
shall immediately forward or communicate such request to the Secretary for
coordination of a prompt response. The Secretary, after consulting with District
Counsel as to the applicability of any exceptions under the public records laws,
shall be responsible for responding to the public records request. At no time can
the District be required to create records or summaries of records, or prepare
opinions regarding District policies, in response to a public records request.

Service Contracts. Any contract for services, regardless of cost, shall include
provisions required by law that require the contractor to comply with public records
laws. The District Manager shall be responsible for initially enforcing all contract
provisions related to a contractor’s duty to comply with public records laws.

Fees; Copies. Copies of public records shall be made available to the requesting
person at a charge of $0.15 per page for one-sided copies and $0.20 per page for
two-sided copies if not more than 8 %2 by 14 inches. For copies of public records
in excess of the sizes listed in this section and for outside duplication services, the
charge shall be equal to the actual cost of reproduction. Certified copies of public
records shall be made available at a charge of one dollar ($1.00) per page. If the
nature or volume of records requested requires extensive use of information
technology resources or extensive clerical or supervisory assistance, the District
may charge, in addition to the duplication charge, a special service charge that is
based on the cost the District incurs to produce the records requested. This charge
may include, but is not limited to, the cost of information technology resource,
employee labor, and fees charged to the District by consultants employed in
fulfilling the request. In cases where the special service charge is based in whole
or in part on the costs incurred by the District due to employee labor, consultant
fees, or other forms of labor, those portions of the charge shall be calculated based
on the lowest labor cost of the individual(s) who is/are qualified to perform the
labor, taking into account the nature and volume of the public records to be
inspected or copied. The charge may include the labor costs of supervisory and/or
clerical staff whose assistance is required to complete the records request, in
accordance with Florida law. For purposes of this Rule, the word “extensive” shall
mean that it will take more than 15 minutes to locate, review for confidential
information, copy and re-file the requested material. In cases where extensive
personnel time is determined by the District to be necessary to safeguard original
records being inspected, the special service charge provided for in this section shall
apply. If the total fees, including but not limited to special service charges, are
anticipated to exceed twenty-five dollars ($25.00), then, prior to commencing work
on the request, the District will inform the person making the public records request
of the estimated cost, with the understanding that the final cost may vary from that
estimate. If the person making the public records request decides to proceed with
the request, payment of the estimated cost is required in advance. Should the person
fail to pay the estimate, the District is under no duty to produce the requested
records. After the request has been fulfilled, additional payments or credits may be



due. The District is under no duty to produce records in response to future records
requests if the person making the request owes the District for past unpaid
duplication charges, special service charges, or other required payments or credits.

(5) Records Retention. The Secretary of the District shall be responsible for retaining
the District’s records in accordance with applicable Florida law.

(6) Policies. The Board may adopt policies related to the conduct of its business and
the provision of services either by resolution or motion.

@) Financial Disclosure Coordination. Unless specifically designated by Board
resolution otherwise, the Secretary shall serve as the Financial Disclosure
Coordinator (“Coordinator”) for the District as required by the Florida Commission
on Ethics (“Commission”). The Coordinator shall create, maintain and update a
list of the names, e-mail addresses, physical addresses, and names of the agency of,
and the office or position held by, all Supervisors and other persons required by
Florida law to file a statement of financial interest due to their affiliation with the
District (“Reporting Individual”). The Coordinator shall provide this list to the
Commission by February 1 of each year, which list shall be current as of December
31 of the prior year. Each Supervisor and Reporting Individual shall promptly
notify the Coordinator in writing if there are any changes to such person’s name, e-
mail address, or physical address. Each Supervisor and Reporting Individual shall
promptly notify the Commission in the manner prescribed by the Commission if
there are any changes to such person’s e-mail address.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 112.31446(3), 112.3145(8)(a)1., 119.07, 119.0701, 190.006, Fla. Stat.



Rule 1.3

1)

Public Meetings, Hearings, and Workshops.

Notice. Except in emergencies, or as otherwise required by statute or these Rules,
at least seven (7) days’ public notice shall be given of any public meeting, hearing
or workshop of the Board. Public notice shall be given by publication in a
newspaper of general circulation in the District and in the county in which the
District is located. “General circulation” means a publication that is printed and
published at least once a week for the preceding year, offering at least 25% of its
words in the English language, qualifies as a periodicals material for postal
purposes in the county in which the District is located, is for sale to the public
generally, is available to the public generally for the publication of official or other
notices, and is customarily containing information of a public character or of
interest or of value to the residents or owners of property in the county where
published, or of interest or of value to the general public. The annual meeting notice
required to be published by Section 189.015 of the Florida Statutes, shall be
published in a newspaper not of limited subject matter, which is published at least
five days a week, unless the only newspaper in the county is published less than
five days a week, and shall satisfy the requirement to give at least seven (7) days’
public notice stated herein. Each Notice shall state, as applicable:

@ The date, time and place of the meeting, hearing or workshop;

(b) A brief description of the nature, subjects, and purposes of the meeting,
hearing, or workshop;

(©) The District office address for the submission of requests for copies of the
agenda, as well as a contact name and telephone number for verbal requests
for copies of the agenda; and

(d) The following or substantially similar language: “Pursuant to provisions of
the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special
accommodations to participate in this meeting/hearing/workshop is asked
to advise the District Office at least three (3) business days before the
meeting/hearing/workshop by contacting the District Manager, Stephanie
DeLuna, Rizzetta & Company, Inc., 3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200,
Tampa, Florida 33614 by email at sdeluna@rizzetta.com or by phone at
(813) 533-2950. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the
Florida Relay Service at 1 (800) 955-8770 or 1 (800) 955-8771, who can
aid you in contacting the District Office.”

(e The following or substantially similar language: “A person who decides to
appeal any decision made at the meeting/hearing/workshop with respect to
any matter considered at the meeting/hearing/workshop is advised that
person will need a record of the proceedings and that accordingly, the
person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made
including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.”

10


mailto:sdeluna@rizzetta.com

)

(3)

M The following or substantially similar language: “The meeting [or hearing
or workshop] may be continued in progress without additional notice to a
time, date, and location stated on the record.”

The date, time, and place of each meeting, hearing, or workshop of the Board shall
additionally be posted on the District’s website at least seven (7) days before each
meeting, hearing, or workshop.

Mistake. In the event that a meeting is held under the incorrect assumption that
notice required by law and these Rules has been given, the Board at its next properly
noticed meeting shall cure such defect by considering the agenda items from the
prior meeting individually and anew.

Agenda. The District Manager, under the guidance of District Counsel and the
Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson, shall prepare an agenda of the
meeting/hearing/workshop. The agenda and any meeting materials available in an
electronic format, excluding any confidential and any confidential and exempt
information, shall be available to the public at least seven days before the
meeting/hearing/workshop, except in an emergency. Meeting materials shall be
defined as, and limited to, the agenda, meeting minutes, resolutions, and
agreements of the District that District staff deems necessary for Board approval
(“Meeting Materials™). Inclusion of additional materials for Board consideration
other than those defined herein as “meeting materials” shall not convert such
materials into Meeting Materials. For good cause, which includes but is not limited
to emergency situations, time-sensitive matters, or newly discovered information
essential for Board consideration, the agenda may be changed after it is first made
available for distribution, and additional materials may be added or provided under
separate cover at the meeting. The requirement of good cause shall be liberally
construed to allow the District to efficiently conduct business and to avoid the
expenses associated with special meetings.

The District may, but is not required to, use the following format, or similar format,
in preparing its agenda for its regular meetings:

Call to order
Roll call
Public comment
Organizational matters
Review of minutes
Specific items of old business
Specific items of new business
Staff reports
(a) District Counsel
(b) District Engineer
(c) District Manager

11



(4)

()

(6)

(")

(8)

1. Financial Report

2. Approval of Expenditures
Supervisor’s requests and comments
Public comment
Adjournment

Minutes. The Secretary shall be responsible for preparing and keeping the minutes
of each meeting of the Board. Minutes shall be corrected and approved by the Board
at a subsequent meeting. The Secretary may work with other staff members in
preparing draft minutes for the Board’s consideration.

Special Requests. Persons wishing to receive, by mail, notices or agendas of
meetings, may so advise the District Manager or Secretary at the District Office.
Such persons shall furnish a mailing address in writing and shall be required to pre-
pay the cost of the copying and postage.

Emergency Meetings. The Chairperson, or Vice-Chairperson if the Chairperson is
unavailable, upon consultation with the District Manager and District Counsel, if
available, may convene an emergency meeting of the Board without first having
complied with sections (1) and (3) of this Rule, to act on emergency matters that
may affect the public health, safety, or welfare. Whenever possible, the District
Manager shall make reasonable efforts to provide public notice and notify all Board
members of an emergency meeting twenty-four (24) hours in advance. Reasonable
efforts may include telephone notification. Notice of the emergency meeting must
be provided both before and after the meeting on the District’s website, including
the specific reasons for the emergency meeting. Whenever an emergency meeting
is called, the District Manager shall be responsible for notifying at least one
newspaper of general circulation in the District. After an emergency meeting, the
Board shall publish in a newspaper of general circulation in the District, the time,
date and place of the emergency meeting, the reasons why an emergency meeting
was necessary, and a description of the action taken. Actions taken at an emergency
meeting may be ratified by the Board at a regularly noticed meeting subsequently
held.

Public Comment. The Board shall set aside three (3) minutes per person, unless
extended or reduced by the Chairperson based on the number of speakers and
meeting agenda and other reasonable factors, at each meeting for public comment
and members of the public shall be permitted to provide comment on any
proposition before the Board. The portion of the meeting generally reserved for
public comment shall be identified in the agenda. Policies governing public
comment may be adopted by the Board in accordance with Florida law.

Budget Hearing. Notice of hearing on the annual budget(s) shall be in accord with
Section 190.008 of the Florida Statutes. Once adopted in accord with Section
190.008 of the Florida Statutes, the annual budget(s) may be amended from time to
time by action of the Board. Approval of invoices by the Board in excess of the

12



(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

funds allocated to a particular budgeted line item shall serve to amend the budgeted
line item.

Public Hearings. Notice of required public hearings shall contain the information
required by applicable Florida law and by these Rules applicable to meeting notices
and shall be mailed and published as required by Florida law. The District Manager
shall ensure that all such notices, whether mailed or published, contain the
information required by Florida law and these Rules and are mailed and published
as required by Florida law. Public hearings may be held during Board meetings
when the agenda includes such public hearing.

Participation by Teleconference/Videoconference. District staff may participate in
Board meetings by teleconference or videoconference. Board members may also
participate in Board meetings by teleconference or videoconference if in the good
judgment of the Board extraordinary circumstances exist; provided however, at
least three Board members must be physically present at the meeting location to
establish a quorum. Such extraordinary circumstances shall be presumed when a
Board member participates by teleconference or videoconference, unless a majority
of the Board members physically present determines that extraordinary
circumstances do not exist. Extraordinary circumstances may include, but are not
limited to, illness, family emergencies, or other significant schedule conflicts which
prevent in-person meeting attendance.

Board Authorization. The District has not adopted Robert’s Rules of Order. For
each agenda item, there shall be discussion permitted among the Board members
during the meeting. Unless such procedure is waived by the Board, approval or
disapproval of resolutions and other proposed Board actions shall be in the form of
amotion by one Board member, a second by another Board member, an opportunity
for final board discussion and an affirmative vote by the majority of the Board
members present. Any Board member, including the Chairperson, can make or
second a motion.

Continuances. Any meeting or public hearing of the Board may be continued
without re-notice or re-advertising provided that:

@ The Board identifies on the record at the original meeting a reasonable need
for a continuance;

(b) The continuance is to a specified date, time, and location publicly
announced at the original meeting; and

(©) The public notice for the original meeting states that the meeting may be
continued to a date and time and states that the date, time, and location of
any continuance shall be publicly announced at the original meeting and
posted at the District Office immediately following the original meeting.

13



(13) Attorney-Client Sessions. An Attorney-Client Session is permitted when the
District’s attorneys deem it necessary to meet in private with the Board to discuss
pending litigation to which the District is a party before a court or administrative
agency or as may be authorized by law. The District’s attorney must request such
session at a public meeting. Prior to holding the Attorney-Client Session, the
District must give reasonable public notice of the time and date of the session and
the names of the persons anticipated to attend the session. The session must
commence at an open meeting in which the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson
announces the commencement of the session, the estimated length of the session,
and the names of the persons who will be attending the session. The discussion
during the session is confined to settlement negotiations or strategy related to
litigation expenses or as may be authorized by law. Only the Board, the District’s
attorneys (including outside counsel), the District Manager, and the court reporter
may attend an Attorney-Client Session. During the session, no votes may be taken
and no final decisions concerning settlement can be made. Upon the conclusion of
the session, the public meeting is reopened, and the Chairperson or Vice-
Chairperson must announce that the session has concluded. The session must be
transcribed by a court-reporter and the transcript of the session filed with the
District Secretary within a reasonable time after the session. The transcript shall
not be available for public inspection until after the conclusion of the litigation.

(14)  Security and Fire safety Board Discussions. Portions of a meeting which relate to
or would reveal a security or fire safety system plan or portion thereof made
confidential and exempt by section 119.071(3)(a), Florida Statutes, are exempt
from the public meeting requirements and other requirements of section 286.011,
Florida Statutes, and section 24(b), Article 1 of the State Constitution. Should the
Board wish to discuss such matters, members of the public shall be required to leave
the meeting room during such discussion. Any records of the Board’s discussion of
such matters, including recordings or minutes, shall be maintained as confidential
and exempt records in accordance with Florida law.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: 88 189.069(2)(a)16, 190.006, 190.007, 190.008, 286.0105, 286.011, 286.0113, 286.0114, Fla. Stat.

14



Rule 1.4 Internal Controls to Prevent Fraud, Waste and Abuse

[€9)] Internal Controls. The District shall establish and maintain internal controls

designed to:

@) Prevent and detect “fraud,” “waste” and “abuse” as those terms are
defined in section 11.45(1), Florida Statutes; and

(b) Promote and encourage compliance with applicable laws, rules
contracts, grant agreements, and best practices; and

(© Support economical and efficient operations; and

(d) Ensure reliability of financial records and reports; and

(e) Safeguard assets.

(2)  Adoption. The internal controls to prevent fraud, waste and abuse shall be
adopted and amended by the District in the same manner as District policies.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: § 218.33(3), Fla. Stat.

15



Rule 2.0

1)

(2)

(3)

Rulemaking Proceedings.

Commencement of Proceedings. Proceedings held for adoption, amendment, or
repeal of a District rule shall be conducted according to these Rules. Rulemaking
proceedings shall be deemed to have been initiated upon publication of notice by
the District. A “rule” is a District statement of general applicability that
implements, interprets, or prescribes law or policy, or describes the procedure or
practice requirements of the District (“Rule”). Nothing herein shall be construed
as requiring the District to consider or adopt rules unless required by Chapter 190
of the Florida Statutes. Policies adopted by the District which do not consist of
rates, fees, rentals or other monetary charges may be, but are not required to be,
implemented through rulemaking proceedings.

Notice of Rule Development.

(@  Except when the intended action is the repeal of a Rule, the District shall
provide notice of the development of a proposed rule by publication of a
Notice of Rule Development in a newspaper of general circulation in the
District before providing notice of a proposed rule as required by section (3)
of this Rule. Consequently, the Notice of Rule Development shall be
published at least seven (7) days before the notice of rulemaking described
in Section 2.0(3), infra., and at least thirty-five (35) days prior to the public
hearing on the proposed rule. The Notice of Rule Development shall indicate
the subject area to be addressed by rule development, provide a short, plain
explanation of the purpose and effect of the proposed rule, cite the grant of
rulemaking authority for the proposed rule and law being implemented,
include the proposed rule number, and include a statement of how a person
may promptly obtain, without cost, a copy of any preliminary draft, if
available.

(b)  All rules as drafted shall be consistent with Sections 120.54(1)(g) and
120.54(2)(b) of the Florida Statutes.

Notice of Proceedings and Proposed Rules.

@ Prior to the adoption, amendment, or repeal of any rule other than an
emergency rule, the District shall give notice of its intended action,
including: a short, plain explanation of the purpose and effect of the
proposed action, the proposed rule number (if applicable), a reference to the
specific rulemaking authority pursuant to which the rule is adopted, a
reference to the section or subsection of the Florida Statutes being
implemented, interpreted, or made specific, and the name, e-mail address,
and telephone number of the staff member who may be contacted regarding
the intended action. The notice shall include a summary of the District’s
statement of estimated regulatory costs and the website address where the
complete statement of estimated regulatory costs may be viewed, if such a

16



(4)

()

statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 120.541(2), Florida
Statutes, and a statement that any person who wishes to provide the District
with a lower cost regulatory alternative as provided by Section 120.541(1),
must do so in writing within twenty-one (21) days after publication of the
notice. The notice shall additionally include a statement that any affected
person may request a public hearing by submitting a written request within
twenty-one (21) days after the date of publication of the notice. Except
when intended action is the repeal of a rule, the notice shall include a
reference to both the date on which and the place where the Notice of Rule
Development required by section (2) of this Rule appeared.

(b)  The notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the
District and each county in which the District is located not less than twenty-
eight (28) days prior to the intended action. The proposed rule and any
material proposed to be incorporated by reference shall be available for
inspection and copying by the public at the time of the publication of notice.

(©) The notice shall be mailed, delivered electronically to all persons named in
the proposed rule and to all persons who, at least fourteen (14) days prior to
publication of the notice, have made requests of the District for advance
notice of its rulemaking proceedings. Any person may file a written request
with the District Manager to receive notice by mail of District proceedings
to adopt, amend, or repeal a rule. Such persons must furnish a mailing
address and may be required to pay the cost of copying and mailing.

Rule Development Workshops. Whenever requested in writing by any affected
person, the District must either conduct a rule development workshop prior to
proposing rules for adoption or the Chairperson must explain in writing why a
workshop is unnecessary. The District may initiate a rule development workshop
but is not required to do so.

Petitions to Initiate Rulemaking. All Petitions to Initiate Rulemaking proceedings
must contain the name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner, the specific
action requested, the specific reason for adoption, amendment, or repeal, the date
submitted, the text of the proposed rule, and the facts showing that the petitioner is
regulated by the District or has a substantial interest in the rulemaking. Not later
than thirty (30) calendar days following the date of filing a petition, the Board shall
initiate rulemaking proceedings or deny the petition with a written statement of its
reasons for the denial. If the petition is directed to an existing policy that the
District has not formally adopted as a rule, the District may, in its discretion, notice
and hold a public hearing on the petition to consider the comments of the public
directed to the policy, its scope and application, and to consider whether the public
interest is served adequately by the application of the policy on a case-by-case
basis, as contrasted with its formal adoption as a rule. However, this section shall
not be construed as requiring the District to adopt a rule to replace a policy.

17



(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

Rulemaking Materials. After the publication of the notice referenced in section (3)
of this Rule, the Board shall make available for public inspection and shall provide,
upon request and payment of the cost of copies, the following materials:

@ The text of the proposed rule, or any amendment or repeal of any existing
rules;

(b) A detailed written statement of the facts and circumstances justifying the
proposed rule;

(© A copy of the statement of estimated regulatory costs if required by Section
120.541 of the Florida Statutes; and

(d) The published notice.

Hearing. The District may, or, upon the written request of any affected person
received within twenty-one (21) days after the date of publication of the notice
described in section (3) of this Rule, shall, provide a public hearing for the
presentation of evidence, argument, and oral statements, within the reasonable
conditions and limitations imposed by the District to avoid duplication, irrelevant
comments, unnecessary delay, or disruption of the proceedings. The District shall
publish notice of the public hearing in a newspaper of general circulation within the
District either in the text of the notice described in section (3) of this Rule or in a
separate publication at least seven (7) days before the scheduled public hearing. The
notice shall specify the date, time, and location of the public hearing, and the name,
address, and telephone number of the District contact person who can provide
information about the public hearing. Written statements may be submitted by any
person prior to or at the public hearing. All timely submitted written statements
shall be considered by the District and made part of the rulemaking record.

Emergency Rule Adoption. The Board may adopt an emergency rule if it finds that
it is necessitated by immediate danger to the public health, safety, or welfare which
requires immediate action, or if the Legislature authorizes the Board to adopt
emergency rules. Prior to the adoption of an emergency rule, the District Manager
shall make reasonable efforts to notify a newspaper of general circulation in the
District. Notice of the emergency rules together with the Board’s findings of
immediate danger, necessity, and procedural fairness or a citation to the grant of
emergency rulemaking authority shall be published as soon as possible in a
newspaper of general circulation in the District. The District may use any
procedure which is fair under the circumstances in the adoption of an emergency
rule provided that such procedure protects the public interest and complies with
applicable law and these provisions.

Negotiated Rulemaking. The District may use negotiated rulemaking in developing
and adopting rules pursuant to Section 120.54(2)(d) of the Florida Statutes, except
that any notices required under Section 120.54(2)(d) of the Florida Statutes, may

18



(10)

(11)

be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the county in which the
District is located.

Rulemaking Record. In all rulemaking proceedings, the District shall compile and

maintain a rulemaking record. The record shall include, if applicable:

(a)
(b)
(©)
(d)
(€)

(f)

The texts of the proposed rule and the adopted rule;

All notices given for a proposed rule;

Any statement of estimated regulatory costs for the rule;

A written summary of hearings, if any, on the proposed rule;

All written comments received by the District and responses to those written
comments; and

All notices and findings pertaining to an emergency rule.

Petitions to Challenge Existing Rules.

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Any person substantially affected by a rule may seek an administrative
determination of the invalidity of the rule on the ground that the rule is an
invalid exercise of the District’s authority.

The petition seeking an administrative determination must state with
particularity the provisions alleged to be invalid with sufficient explanation
of the facts or grounds for the alleged invalidity and facts sufficient to show
that the person challenging a rule is substantially affected by it.

The petition shall be filed with the District. Within ten (10) days after
receiving the petition, the Chairperson shall, if the petition complies with
the requirements of subsection (b) of this section, designate any member of
the Board (including the Chairperson), District Manager, District Counsel,
or other qualified person as a hearing officer who shall conduct a hearing
within thirty (30) days thereafter, unless the petition is withdrawn or a
continuance is granted by agreement of the parties. The failure of the
District to follow the applicable rulemaking procedures or requirements in
this Rule shall be presumed to be material; however, the District may rebut
this presumption by showing that the substantial interests of the petitioner
and the fairness of the proceedings have not been impaired.

Within thirty (30) days after the hearing, the hearing officer shall render a
decision and state the reasons therefor in writing.

19



(12)

(€)

(f)

Hearings held under this section shall be de novo in nature. The petitioner
has a burden of proving by a preponderance of the evidence that the existing
rule is an invalid exercise of District authority as to the objections raised.
The hearing officer may:

Q) Administer oaths and affirmations;

(i) Rule upon offers of proof and receive relevant evidence;

(i)  Regulate the course of the hearing, including any pre-hearing
matters;

(iv)  Enter orders; and
(V) Make or receive offers of settlement, stipulation, and adjustment.
The petitioner and the District shall be adverse parties. Other substantially

affected persons may join the proceedings as intervenors on appropriate
terms which shall not unduly delay the proceedings.

Variances and Waivers. A “variance” means a decision by the District to grant a

modification to all or part of the literal requirements of a rule to a person who is
subject to the rule. A “waiver” means a decision by the District not to apply all or
part of a rule to a person who is subject to the rule. Variances and waivers from
District rules may be granted subject to the following:

(@)

(b)

Variances and waivers shall be granted when the person subject to the rule
demonstrates that the purpose of the underlying statute will be or has been
achieved by other means by the person, and when application of the rule
would create a substantial hardship or would violate principles of fairness.
For purposes of this section, "substantial hardship” means a demonstrated
economic, technological, legal, safety-related, or other significant type of
hardship to the person requesting the variance or waiver. For purposes of
this section, "principles of fairness™ are violated when the literal application
of a rule affects a particular person in a manner significantly different from
the way it affects other similarly situated persons who are subject to the rule.

A person who is subject to regulation by a District Rule may file a petition
with the District, requesting a variance or waiver from the District’s Rule.
Each petition shall specify:

0] The rule from which a variance or waiver is requested;

(i) The type of action requested;

20



(iii))  The specific facts that would justify a waiver or variance for the
petitioner; and

(iv)  The reason why the variance or the waiver requested would serve
the purposes of the underlying statute.

(© The District shall review the petition and may request only that information
needed to clarify the petition or to answer new questions raised by or
directly related to the petition. If the petitioner asserts that any request for
additional information is not authorized by law or by Rule of the District,
the District shall proceed, at the petitioner’s written request, to process the
petition.

(d) The Board shall grant or deny a petition for variance or waiver and shall
announce such disposition at a publicly held meeting of the Board, within
ninety (90) days after receipt of the original petition, the last item of timely
requested additional material, or the petitioner's written request to finish
processing the petition. The District’s statement granting or denying the
petition shall contain a statement of the relevant facts and reasons
supporting the District's action.

(13) Rates, Fees, Rentals and Other Charges. All rates, fees, rentals, or other charges
shall be subject to rulemaking proceedings. Policies adopted by the District which
do not consist of rates, fees, rentals or other charges may be, but are not required to
be, implemented through rulemaking proceedings.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), 190.035, Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: 8§ 120.54, 190.011(5), 190.035(2), Fla. Stat.

21



Rule 3.0

1)

()

(3)

Competitive Purchase.

Purpose and Scope. In order to comply with Sections 190.033(1) through (3),

287.055 and 287.017 of the Florida Statutes, the following provisions shall apply
to the purchase of Professional Services, insurance, construction contracts, design-
build services, goods, supplies, and materials, Contractual Services, and
maintenance services.

Board Authorization. Except in cases of an Emergency Purchase, a competitive

purchase governed by these Rules shall only be undertaken after authorization by
the Board.

Definitions.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

“Competitive Solicitation” means a formal, advertised procurement
process, other than an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, or Invitation
to Negotiate, approved by the Board to purchase commodities and/or
services which affords vendors fair treatment in the competition for award
of a District purchase contract.

“Continuing Contract” means a contract for Professional Services entered
into in accordance with Section 287.055 of the Florida Statutes, between the
District and a firm, whereby the firm provides Professional Services to the
District for projects in which the costs do not exceed two million dollars
($2,000,000), for a study activity when the fee for such Professional
Services to the District does not exceed two hundred thousand dollars
($200,000), or for work of a specified nature as outlined in the contract with
the District, with no time limitation except that the contract must provide a
termination clause (for example, a contract for general District engineering
services). Firms providing Professional Services under Continuing
Contracts shall not be required to bid against one another.

“Contractual Service” means the rendering by a contractor of its time and
effort rather than the furnishing of specific commodities. The term applies
only to those services rendered by individuals and firms who are
independent contractors. Contractual Services do not include auditing
services, Maintenance Services, or Professional Services as defined in
Section 287.055(2)(a) of the Florida Statutes, and these Rules. Contractual
Services also do not include any contract for the furnishing of labor or
materials for the construction, renovation, repair, modification, or
demolition of any facility, building, portion of building, utility, park,
parking lot, or structure or other improvement to real property entered into
pursuant to Chapter 255 of the Florida Statutes, and Rules 3.5 or 3.6.

“Design-Build Contract” means a single contract with a Design-Build Firm
for the design and construction of a public construction project.

22



(€)

(f)

(@)

(h)

“Design-Build Firm” means a partnership, corporation or other legal entity
that:

Q) Is certified under Section 489.119 of the Florida Statutes, to engage
in contracting through a certified or registered general contractor or
a certified or registered building contractor as the qualifying agent;
or

(i) Is certified under Section 471.023 of the Florida Statutes, to practice
or to offer to practice engineering; certified under Section 481.219
of the Florida Statutes, to practice or to offer to practice architecture;
or certified under Section 481.319 of the Florida Statutes, to practice
or to offer to practice landscape architecture.

“Design Criteria Package” means concise, performance-oriented drawings
or specifications for a public construction project. The purpose of the
Design Criteria Package is to furnish sufficient information to permit
Design-Build Firms to prepare a bid or a response to the District’s Request
for Proposals, or to permit the District to enter into a negotiated Design-
Build Contract. The Design Criteria Package must specify performance-
based criteria for the public construction project, including the legal
description of the site, survey information concerning the site, interior space
requirements, material quality standards, schematic layouts and conceptual
design criteria of the project, cost or budget estimates, design and
construction schedules, site development requirements, provisions for
utilities, stormwater retention and disposal, and parking requirements
applicable to the project. Design Criteria Packages shall require firms to
submit information regarding the qualifications, availability, and past work
of the firms, including the partners and members thereof.

“Design Criteria Professional” means a firm who holds a current certificate
of registration under Chapter 481 of the Florida Statutes, to practice
architecture or landscape architecture, or a firm who holds a current
certificate as a registered engineer under Chapter 471 of the Florida
Statutes, to practice engineering, and who is employed by or under contract
to the District to provide professional architect services, landscape architect
services, or engineering services in connection with the preparation of the
Design Criteria Package.

“Emergency Purchase” means a purchase necessitated by a sudden
unexpected turn of events (for example, acts of God, riot, fires, floods,
hurricanes, accidents, or any circumstances or cause beyond the control of
the Board in the normal conduct of its business), where the Board finds that
the delay incident to competitive purchase would be detrimental to the
interests of the District. This includes, but is not limited to, instances where

23



(i)

)

(k)

(M

(m)

(n)

the time to competitively award the project will jeopardize the funding for
the project, will materially increase the cost of the project, or will create an
undue hardship on the public health, safety, or welfare.

“Invitation to Bid” is a written or electronically posted solicitation for sealed
bids with the title, date, and hour of the public bid opening designated
specifically and defining the commodity or service involved. It includes
printed instructions prescribing conditions for bidding, qualification,
evaluation criteria, and provides for a manual signature of an authorized
representative. It may include one or more bid alternates.

“Invitation to Negotiate” means a written or electronically posted
solicitation for competitive sealed replies to select one or more vendors with
which to commence negotiations for the procurement of commodities or
services.

“Negotiate” means to conduct legitimate, arm’s length discussions and
conferences to reach an agreement on a term or price.

“Professional Services” means those services within the scope of the
practice of architecture, professional engineering, landscape architecture, or
registered surveying and mapping, as defined by the laws of Florida, or
those services performed by any architect, professional engineer, landscape
architect, or registered surveyor and mapper, in connection with the firm's
or individual's professional employment or practice.

“Proposal (or Reply or Response) Most Advantageous to the District”
means, as determined in the sole discretion of the Board, the proposal, reply,
or response that is:

Q) Submitted by a person or firm capable and qualified in all respects
to perform fully the contract requirements, who has the integrity and
reliability to assure good faith performance;

(i)  The most responsive to the Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation as determined by the Board,;
and

(i)  For a cost to the District deemed by the Board to be reasonable.
“Purchase” means acquisition by sale, rent, lease, lease/purchase, or
installment sale. It does not include transfer, sale, or exchange of goods,

supplies, or materials between the District and any federal, state, regional
or local governmental entity or political subdivision of the State of Florida.

24



(0)

()

“Request for Proposals” or “RFP” is a written or electronically posted
solicitation for sealed proposals with the title, date, and hour of the public
opening designated and requiring the manual signature of an authorized
representative. It may provide general information, applicable laws and
rules, statement of work, functional or general specifications, qualifications,
proposal instructions, work detail analysis, and evaluation criteria as
necessary.

“Responsive and Responsible Bidder” means an entity or individual that has
submitted a bid that conforms in all material respects to the Invitation to Bid
and has the capability in all respects to fully perform the contract
requirements and the integrity and reliability that will assure good faith
performance. “Responsive and Responsible Vendor” means an entity or
individual that has submitted a proposal, reply, or response that conforms
in all material respects to the Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate,
or Competitive Solicitation and has the capability in all respects to fully
perform the contract requirements and the integrity and reliability that will
assure good faith performance. In determining whether an entity or
individual is a Responsive and Responsible Bidder (or Vendor), the District
may consider, in addition to factors described in the Invitation to Bid,
Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation,
the following:

Q) The ability and adequacy of the professional personnel employed by
the entity/individual;

(i) The past performance of the entity/individual for the District and in
other professional employment;

(iii) ~ The willingness of the entity/individual to meet time and budget
requirements;

(iv)  The geographic location of the entity’s/individual’s headquarters or
office in relation to the project;

(v)  The recent, current, and projected workloads of the
entity/individual,

(vi)  The volume of work previously awarded to the entity/individual,
provided that for a public works project as defined in Section
255.0992, Florida Statutes, the District may not penalize a bidder
for performing a larger volume of construction work for the District
or reward a bidder for performing a smaller volume of construction
work for the District;

25



(vii)  Whether the cost components of the bid or proposal are
appropriately balanced; and

(viii) Whether the entity/individual is a certified minority business
enterprise as defined in Section 287.0943, Florida Statutes.

(a) “Responsive Bid,” “Responsive Proposal,” “Responsive Reply,” and
“Responsive Response” all mean a bid, proposal, reply, or response which
conforms in all material respects to the specifications and conditions in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation document and these Rules, and the cost
components of which, if any, are appropriately balanced. A bid, proposal,
reply or response is not responsive if the person or firm submitting it fails
to meet any material requirement relating to the qualifications, financial
stability, or licensing of the bidder.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: 8§ 190.033, 255.0992, 255.20, 287.055, Fla. Stat.

26



Rule 3.1

1)

(2)

3)

Procedure Under the Consultants’ Competitive Negotiations Act.

Scope. The following procedures are adopted for the selection of firms or
individuals to provide Professional Services exceeding the thresholds herein
described, for the negotiation of such contracts, and to provide for protest of actions
of the Board under this Rule. As used in this Rule, “Project” means that fixed
capital outlay study or planning activity when basic construction cost is estimated
by the District to exceed the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 of the
Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FIVE, or for a planning study activity when the
fee for Professional Services is estimated by the District to exceed the threshold
amount provided in Section 287.017 for CATEGORY TWO, as such categories
may be amended or adjusted from time to time.

Qualifying Procedures. In order to be eligible to provide Professional Services to
the District, a consultant must, at the time of receipt of the firm’s qualification
submittal:

@) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good standing;
(b) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any;

(© Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized to do
business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 of the
Florida Statutes, if the consultant is a corporation; and

d Meet any qualiﬁcation requirements set forth in the District’s Request for
Qualifications.

Evidence of compliance with this Rule may be submitted with the qualifications, if
requested by the District. In addition, evidence of compliance must be submitted
any time requested by the District.

Public Announcement. Except in cases of valid public emergencies as certified by
the Board, the District shall announce each occasion when Professional Services
are required for a Project or a Continuing Contract by publishing a notice providing
a general description of the Project, or the nature of the Continuing Contract, and
the method for interested consultants to apply for consideration. The notice shall
appear in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the District and in
such other places as the District deems appropriate. The notice must allow at least
fourteen (14) days for submittal of qualifications from the date of publication. The
District may maintain lists of consultants interested in receiving such notices. These
consultants are encouraged to submit annually statements of qualifications and
performance data. The District shall make reasonable efforts to provide copies of
any notices to such consultants, but the failure to do so shall not give such
consultants any bid protest or other rights or otherwise disqualify any otherwise
valid procurement process. The Board has the right to reject any and all

27



(4)

qualifications, and such reservation shall be included in the published notice.
Consultants not receiving a contract award shall not be entitled to recover from the
District any costs of qualification package preparation or submittal.

Competitive Selection.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

The Board shall review and evaluate the data submitted in response to the
notice described in section (3) of this Rule regarding qualifications and
performance ability, as well as any statements of qualifications on file. The
Board shall conduct discussions with, and may require public presentation
by consultants regarding their qualifications, approach to the Project, and
ability to furnish the required services. The Board shall then select and list
the consultants, in order of preference, deemed to be the most highly
capable and qualified to perform the required Professional Services, after
considering these and other appropriate criteria:

Q) The ability and adequacy of the professional personnel employed by
each consultant;

(i) Whether a consultant is a certified minority business enterprise;
(ili)  Each consultant’s past performance;

(iv)  The willingness of each consultant to meet time and budget
requirements;

(V) The geographic location of each consultant's headquarters, office
and personnel in relation to the project;

(vi)  Therecent, current, and projected workloads of each consultant; and

(vii)  The volume of work previously awarded to each consultant by the
District.

Nothing in these Rules shall prevent the District from evaluating and
eventually selecting a consultant if less than three (3) Responsive
qualification packages, including packages indicating a desire not to
provide Professional Services on a given Project, are received.

If the selection process is administered by any person or committee other
than the full Board, the selection made will be presented to the full Board
with a recommendation that competitive negotiations be instituted with the
selected firms in order of preference listed.

Notice of the rankings adopted by the Board, including the rejection of some
or all qualification packages, shall be provided in writing to all consultants

28



()

(6)

by United States Mail, hand delivery, electronic mail, or overnight delivery
service. The notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file a
protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District
shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or wording to
that effect. Protests of the District’s ranking decisions under this Rule shall
be in accordance with the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

Competitive Negotiation.

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

After the Board has authorized the beginning of competitive negotiations,
the District may begin such negotiations with the firm listed as most
qualified to perform the required Professional Services at a rate or amount
of compensation which the Board determines is fair, competitive, and
reasonable.

In negotiating a lump-sum or cost-plus-a-fixed-fee professional contract for
more than the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 of the Florida
Statutes, for CATEGORY FOUR, the firm receiving the award shall be
required to execute a truth-in-negotiation certificate stating that "wage rates
and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation are accurate,
complete and current at the time of contracting.” In addition, any
professional service contract under which such a certificate is required, shall
contain a provision that "the original contract price and any additions
thereto, shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums by which the
Board determines the contract price was increased due to inaccurate,
incomplete, or noncurrent wage rates and other factual unit costs.”

Should the District be unable to negotiate a satisfactory agreement with the
firm determined to be the most qualified at a price deemed by the District
to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, then negotiations with that firm shall
be terminated and the District shall immediately begin negotiations with the
second most qualified firm. If a satisfactory agreement with the second firm
cannot be reached, those negotiations shall be terminated and negotiations
with the third most qualified firm shall be undertaken.

Should the District be unable to negotiate a satisfactory agreement with one
of the top three (3) ranked consultants, additional firms shall be selected by
the District, in order of their competence and qualifications. Negotiations
shall continue, beginning with the first-named firm on the list, until an
agreement is reached or the list of firms is exhausted.

Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered

into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

29



@) Continuing Contract. Nothing in this Rule shall prohibit a Continuing Contract
between a consultant and the District.

(8) Emergency Purchase. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these Rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: 88 119.0701, 190.011(3), 190.033, 287.055, Fla. Stat.

30



Rule 3.2

Procedure Regarding Auditor Selection.

In order to comply with the requirements of Section 218.391 of the Florida Statutes, the
following procedures are outlined for selection of firms or individuals to provide Auditing
Services and for the negotiation of such contracts. For audits required under Chapter 190
of the Florida Statutes but not meeting the thresholds of Chapter 218 of the Florida Statutes,
the District need not follow these procedures but may proceed with the selection of a firm
or individual to provide Auditing Services and for the negotiation of such contracts in the
manner the Board determines is in the best interests of the District.

1)

(2)

3)

Definitions.

@ "Auditing Services" means those services within the scope of the practice
of a certified public accounting firm licensed under Chapter 473 of the
Florida Statutes, and qualified to conduct audits in accordance with
government auditing standards as adopted by the Florida Board of
Accountancy.

(b) "Committee" means the auditor selection committee appointed by the Board
as described in section (2) of this Rule.

Establishment of Auditor Selection Committee. Prior to a public announcement
under section (4) of this Rule that Auditing Services are required, the Board shall
establish an auditor selection committee (“Committee”), the primary purpose of
which is to assist the Board in selecting an auditor to conduct the annual financial
audit required by Section 218.39 of the Florida Statutes. The Committee shall
include at least three individuals, at least one of which must also be a member of
the Board. The establishment and selection of the Committee must be conducted
at a publicly noticed and held meeting of the Board. The Chairperson of the
Committee must be a member of the Board. An employee, a chief executive officer,
or a chief financial officer of the District may not serve as a member of the
Committee; provided however such individual may serve the Committee in an
advisory capacity.

Establishment of Minimum Qualifications and Evaluation Criteria. Prior to a
public announcement under section (4) of this Rule that Auditing Services are
required, the Committee shall meet at a publicly noticed meeting to establish
minimum qualifications and factors to use for the evaluation of Auditing Services
to be provided by a certified public accounting firm licensed under Chapter 473 of
the Florida Statutes, and qualified to conduct audits in accordance with government
auditing standards as adopted by the Florida Board of Accountancy.

@ Minimum Qualifications. In order to be eligible to submit a proposal, a firm
must, at all relevant times including the time of receipt of the proposal by
the District:

31



(4)

(5)

Q) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(i) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if
any,

(iii))  Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized
to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607
of the Florida Statutes, if the proposer is a corporation; and

(iv)  Meet any pre-qualification requirements established by the
Committee and set forth in the RFP or other specifications.

If requested in the RFP or other specifications, evidence of compliance with
the minimum qualifications as established by the Committee must be
submitted with the proposal.

(b) Evaluation Criteria. The factors established for the evaluation of Auditing
Services by the Committee shall include, but are not limited to:

Q) Ability of personnel,;
(i) Experience;
(iii)  Ability to furnish the required services; and

(iv)  Such other factors as may be determined by the Committee to be
applicable to its particular requirements.

The Committee may also choose to consider compensation as a factor. If the
Committee establishes compensation as one of the factors, compensation shall not
be the sole or predominant factor used to evaluate proposals.

Public Announcement. After identifying the factors to be used in evaluating the
proposals for Auditing Services as set forth in section (3) of this Rule, the
Committee shall publicly announce the opportunity to provide Auditing Services.
Such public announcement shall include a brief description of the audit and how
interested firms can apply for consideration and obtain the RFP. The notice shall
appear in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the District and the
county in which the District is located. The public announcement shall allow for
at least seven (7) days for the submission of proposals.

Request for Proposals. The Committee shall provide interested firms with a
Request for Proposals (“RFP”). The RFP shall provide information on how
proposals are to be evaluated and such other information the Committee determines
is necessary for the firm to prepare a proposal. The RFP shall state the time and

32



(6)

(")

place for submitting proposals.

Committee’s Evaluation of Proposals and Recommendation. The Committee shall
meet at a publicly held meeting that is publicly noticed at least seven (7) days in
advance of the meeting to evaluate all qualified proposals and may, as part of the
evaluation, require that each interested firm provide a public presentation where the
Committee may conduct discussions with the firm, and where the firm may present
information, regarding the firm’s qualifications. At the public meeting, the
Committee shall rank and recommend in order of preference no fewer than three
firms deemed to be the most highly qualified to perform the required services after
considering the factors established pursuant to subsection (3)(b) of this Rule. If
fewer than three firms respond to the RFP or if no firms respond to the RFP, the
Committee shall recommend such firm as it deems to be the most highly qualified.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may recommend that any and all
proposals be rejected.

Board Selection of Auditor.

@ Where compensation was not selected as a factor used in evaluating the
proposals, the Board shall negotiate with the firm ranked first and inquire
of that firm as to the basis of compensation. If the Board is unable to
negotiate a satisfactory agreement with the first ranked firm at a price
deemed by the Board to be fair, competitive, and reasonable, then
negotiations with that firm shall be terminated and the Board shall
immediately begin negotiations with the second ranked firm. If a
satisfactory agreement with the second ranked firm cannot be reached, those
negotiations shall be terminated and negotiations with the third ranked firm
shall be undertaken. The Board may reopen formal negotiations with any
one of the three top-ranked firms, but it may not negotiate with more than
one firm at a time. If the Board is unable to negotiate a satisfactory
agreement with any of the selected firms, the Committee shall recommend
additional firms in order of the firms’ respective competence and
qualifications. Negotiations shall continue, beginning with the first-named
firm on the list, until an agreement is reached or the list of firms is
exhausted.

(b) Where compensation was selected as a factor used in evaluating the
proposals, the Board shall select the highest-ranked qualified firm or
document in its public records the reason for not selecting the highest-
ranked qualified firm.

(©) In negotiations with firms under this Rule, the Board may allow the District

Manager, District Counsel, or other designee to conduct negotiations on its
behalf.

33



(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may reject any or all proposals.
The Board shall not consider any proposal, or enter into any contract for
Auditing Services, unless the proposed agreed-upon compensation is
reasonable to satisfy the requirements of Section 218.39 of the Florida
Statutes, and the needs of the District.

(8) Contract. Any agreement reached under this Rule shall be evidenced by a written
contract, which may take the form of an engagement letter signed and executed by
both parties. The written contract shall include all provisions and conditions of the
procurement of such services and shall include, at a minimum, the following:

@) A provision specifying the services to be provided and fees or other
compensation for such services;

(b) A provision requiring that invoices for fees or other compensation be
submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms of
the contract;

(© A provision setting forth deadlines for the auditor to submit a preliminary
draft audit report to the District for review and to submit a final audit report
no later than June 30 of the fiscal year that follows the fiscal year for which
the audit is being conducted;

(d) A provision specifying the contract period, including renewals, and
conditions under which the contract may be terminated or renewed. The
maximum contract period including renewals shall be five (5) years. A
renewal may be done without the use of the auditor selection procedures
provided in this Rule but must be in writing.

(e Provisions required by law that require the auditor to comply with public
records laws.

9) Notice of Award. Once a negotiated agreement with a firm or individual is reached,
or the Board authorizes the execution of an agreement with a firm where
compensation was a factor in the evaluation of proposals, notice of the intent to
award, including the rejection of some or all proposals, shall be provided in writing
to all proposers by United States Mail, hand delivery, electronic mail, or overnight
delivery service. The notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file
a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District shall
constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules,” or wording to that effect.
Protests regarding the award of contracts under this Rule shall be as provided for
in Rule 3.11. No proposer shall be entitled to recover any costs of proposal
preparation or submittal from the District.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: 8§ 119.0701, 218.33, 218.391, Fla. Stat.

34



Rule 3.3

1)

)

Purchase of Insurance.

Scope. The purchases of life, health, accident, hospitalization, legal expense, or
annuity insurance, or all of any kinds of such insurance for the officers and
employees of the District, and for health, accident, hospitalization, and legal
expenses upon a group insurance plan by the District, shall be governed by this
Rule. This Rule does not apply to the purchase of any other type of insurance by
the District, including but not limited to liability insurance, property insurance, and
directors and officers insurance. Nothing in this Rule shall require the District to
purchase insurance.

Procedure. For a purchase of insurance within the scope of these Rules, the
following procedure shall be followed:

@ The Board shall cause to be prepared a Notice of Invitation to Bid.

(b) Notice of the Invitation to Bid shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District. The notice shall allow
at least fourteen (14) days for submittal of bids.

(© The District may maintain a list of persons interested in receiving notices of
Invitations to Bid. The District shall make reasonable efforts to provide
copies of any notices to such persons, but the failure to do so shall not give
such consultants any bid protest or other rights or otherwise disqualify any
otherwise valid procurement process.

(d) Bids shall be opened at the time and place noted in the Invitation to Bid.

(e) If only one (1) response to an Invitation is received, the District may
proceed with the purchase. If no response to an Invitation to Bid is received,
the District may take whatever steps are reasonably necessary in order to
proceed with the purchase.

U] The Board has the right to reject any and all bids and such reservations shall
be included in all solicitations and advertisements.

(9) Simultaneously with the review of the submitted bids, the District may
undertake negotiations with those companies that have submitted
reasonable and timely bids and, in the opinion of the District, are fully
qualified and capable of meeting all services and requirements. Bid
responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the specifications and
criteria contained in the Invitation to Bid; in addition, the total cost to the
District, the cost, if any, to the District officers, employees, or their
dependents, relevant business presence and capability to service the
District's needs, and the ability of the company to guarantee premium
stability may be considered. A contract to purchase insurance shall be

35



awarded to that company whose response to the Invitation to Bid best meets
the overall needs of the District, its officers, employees, and/or dependents.

(h) Notice of the intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids, shall
be provided in writing to all bidders by United States Mail, by hand
delivery, or by overnight delivery service. The notice shall include the
following statement: "Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in
Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of
proceedings under those Rules,” or wording to that effect. Protests of the
District’s procurement of insurance under this Rule shall be in accordance
with the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: § 112.08, Fla. Stat.

36



Rule 3.4

1)

()

Pre-qualification

Scope. In its discretion, the District may undertake a pre-qualification process in
accordance with this Rule for vendors to provide construction services, goods,
supplies, and materials, Contractual Services, and maintenance services.

Procedure. When the District seeks to pre-qualify vendors, the following
procedures shall apply:

(@)
(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

The Board shall cause to be prepared a Request for Qualifications.

For construction services exceeding the thresholds described in Section
255.20 of the Florida Statutes, the Board must advertise the proposed
prequalification criteria and procedures and allow at least seven (7) days’
notice of the public hearing for comments on such pre-qualification criteria
and procedures. At such public hearing, potential vendors may object to
such pre-qualification criteria and procedures. Following such public
hearing, the Board shall formally adopt pre-qualification criteria and
procedures prior to the advertisement of the Request for Qualifications for
construction services.

The Request for Qualifications shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county
in which the District is located. The notice shall allow at least seven (7)
days for submittal of qualifications for goods, supplies and materials,
Contractual Services, maintenance services, and construction services
under two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000). The notice shall allow
at least twenty-one (21) days for submittal of qualifications for construction
services estimated to cost over two hundred fifty thousand dollars
($250,000) and thirty (30) days for construction services estimated to cost
over five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000).

The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices of
Requests for Qualifications. The District shall make a good faith effort to
provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, or hand
delivery, to persons who provide their name and address to the District
Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a person to receive
the notice shall not invalidate any pre-qualification determination or
contract awarded in accordance with these Rules and shall not be a basis for
a protest of any pre-qualification determination or contract award.

If the District has pre-qualified vendors for a particular category of
purchase, at the option of the District, only those persons who have been
pre-qualified will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies or responses
in response to the applicable Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals,
Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

37



()

(9)

(h)

(i)

)

In order to be eligible to submit qualifications, a firm or individual must, at
the time of receipt of the qualifications:

Q) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(i) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if
any,

(iii))  Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized
to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607
of the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; and

(iv)  Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Request for Qualifications.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the
qualifications if required by the District. Failure to submit evidence of
compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
qualifications.

Qualifications shall be presented to the Board, or a committee appointed by
the Board, for evaluation in accordance with the Request for Qualifications
and this Rule. Minor variations in the qualifications may be waived by the
Board. A variation is minor if waiver of the variation does not create a
competitive advantage or disadvantage of a material nature.

All vendors determined by the District to meet the pre-qualification
requirements shall be pre-qualified. To assure full understanding of the
responsiveness to the requirements contained in a Request for
Qualifications, discussions may be conducted with qualified vendors.
Vendors shall be accorded fair treatment prior to the submittal date with
respect to any opportunity for discussion and revision of qualifications. For
construction services, any contractor pre-qualified and considered eligible
by the Department of Transportation to bid to perform the type of work the
project entails shall be presumed to be qualified to perform the project.

The Board shall have the right to reject all qualifications if there are not
enough to be competitive or if rejection is determined to be in the best
interest of the District. No vendor shall be entitled to recover any costs of
qualification preparation or submittal from the District.

Notice of intent to pre-qualify, including rejection of some or all

qualifications, shall be provided in writing to all vendors by United States Mail,
electronic mail, hand delivery, or overnight delivery service. The notice shall

38



(3)

include the following statement: "Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed
in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings
under those Rules," or wording to that effect. Protests of the District’s pre-
qualification decisions under this Rule shall be in accordance with the procedures
set forth in Rule 3.11; provided however, protests related to the pre-qualification
criteria and procedures for construction services shall be resolved in accordance
with section (2)(b) of this Rule and Section 255.20(1)(b) of the Florida Statutes.

Suspension, Revocation, or Denial of Qualification

(a) The District, for good cause, may deny, suspend, or revoke a prequalified
vendor’s pre-qualified status. A suspension, revocation, or denial for good
cause shall prohibit the vendor from bidding on any District construction
contract for which qualification is required, shall constitute a determination of
non-responsibility to bid on any other District construction or maintenance
contract, and shall prohibit the vendor from acting as a material supplier or
subcontractor on any District contract or project during the period of
suspension, revocation, or denial. Good cause shall include the following:

Vi.

Vii.

One of the circumstances specified under Section 337.16(2), Florida
Statutes, has occurred.

. Affiliated contractors submitted more than one proposal for the same

work. In this event the pre-qualified status of all of the affiliated bidders
will be revoked, suspended, or denied. All bids of affiliated bidders will
be rejected.

The vendor made or submitted false, deceptive, or fraudulent
statements, certifications, or materials in any claim for payment or any
information required by any District contract.

The vendor or its affiliate defaulted on any contract or a contract surety
assumed control of financial responsibility for any contract of the
vendor.

The vendor’s qualification to bid is suspended, revoked, or denied by
any other public or semi-public entity, or the vendor has been the subject
of a civil enforcement proceeding or settlement involving a public or
semi-public entity.

The vendor failed to comply with contract or warranty requirements or
failed to follow District direction in the performance of a contract.

The vendor failed to timely furnish all contract documents required by
the contract specifications, special provisions, or by any state or federal
statutes or regulations. If the vendor fails to furnish any of the subject
contract documents by the expiration of the period of suspension,
revocation, or denial set forth above, the vendor’s pre-qualified status

39



shall remain suspended, revoked, or denied until the documents are
furnished.

viii. The vendor failed to notify the District within 10 days of the vendor, or
any of its affiliates, being declared in default or otherwise not
completing work on a contract or being suspended from qualification to
bid or denied qualification to bid by any other public or semi-public
agency.

iX. The vendor did not pay its subcontractors or suppliers in a timely
manner or in compliance with contract documents.

X. The vendor has demonstrated instances of poor or unsatisfactory
performance, deficient management resulting in project delay, poor
quality workmanship, a history of payment of liquidated damages,
untimely completion of projects, uncooperative attitude, contract
litigation, inflated claims or defaults.

xi. An affiliate of the vendor has previously been determined by the District
to be non-responsible, and the specified period of suspension,
revocation, denial, or non-responsibility remains in effect.

xii. The vendor or affiliate(s) has been convicted of a contract crime.

1. The term “contract crime” means any violation of state or federal
antitrust laws with respect to a public contract or any violation
of any state or federal law involving fraud, bribery, collusion,
conspiracy, or material misrepresentation with respect to a
public contract.

2. The term “convicted” or “conviction” means a finding of guilt
or a conviction of a contract crime, with or without an
adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record
as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of
guilty or nolo contendere.

Xiii. Any other circumstance constituting “good cause” under Section
337.16(2), Florida Statutes, exists.

(b) The pre-qualified status of a contractor found delinquent under Section
337.16(1), Florida Statutes, shall be denied, suspended, or revoked. A denial,
suspension, or revocation shall prohibit the vendor from being a subcontractor
on District work during the period of denial, suspension, or revocation, except
when a prime contractor’s bid has used prices of a subcontractor who becomes
disqualified after the bid, but before the request for authorization to sublet is
presented.

(c) The District shall inform the vendor in writing of its intent to deny, suspend, or

40



revoke its pre-qualified status and inform the vendor of its right to a hearing,
the procedure which must be followed, and the applicable time limits. If a
hearing is requested within ten (10) days after the receipt of the notice of intent,
the hearing shall be held within thirty (30) days after receipt by the District of
the request for the hearing. The decision shall be issued in writing within fifteen
(15) business days after the hearing.

(d) Such suspension or revocation shall not affect the vendor’s obligations under
any preexisting contract.

(e) If a contractor’s pre-qualified status is revoked, suspended, or denied and the
contractor receives an additional period of revocation, suspension, or denial of
its pre-qualified status, the time periods will run consecutively.

(f) In the case of contract crimes, the vendor’s pre-qualified status under this Rule
shall be revoked indefinitely. For all violations of Rule 3.4(3)(a) other than for
the vendor’s conviction for contract crimes, the revocation, denial, or
suspension of a vendor’s pre-qualified status under this Rule shall be for a
specific period of time based on the seriousness of the deficiency.

Examples of factors affecting the seriousness of a deficiency are:

i. Impacts on project schedule, cost, or quality of work;
ii. Unsafe conditions allowed to exist;

iii. Complaints from the public;

iv. Delay or interference with the bidding process;
v. The potential for repetition;

vi. Integrity of the public contracting process;

vii. Effect on the health, safety, and welfare of the public.

(9) The District shall deny or revoke the pre-qualified status of any contractor and
its affiliates for a period of 36 months when it is determined by the District that
the contractor has, subsequent to January 1, 1978, been convicted of a contract
crime within the jurisdiction of any state or federal court. Any such contractor
shall not act as a prime contractor, material supplier, subcontractor, or
consultant on any District contract or project during the period of denial or
revocation.

4) Reapplication and Reinstatement

(a) A contractor whose qualification to bid has been revoked or denied because of
contract crime may, at any time after revocation or denial, file a petition for

41



(5)

reapplication or reinstatement. However, a contractor may not petition for
reapplication or reinstatement for a period of 24 months after revocation or
denial for a subsequent conviction occurring within 10 years of a previous
denial or revocation for contract crime.

(b) If the petition for reapplication or reinstatement is denied, the contractor cannot
petition for a subsequent hearing for a period of nine months following the date
of the final order of revocation or denial.

(c) If the petition for reapplication or reinstatement is granted, the contractor must
file a current Application for Qualification with the Contracts Administration
Office. Reinstatement shall not be effective until issuance of a Certificate of
Qualification.

Emergency Suspension and Revocation

a) The District may summarily issue an emergency suspension of a contractor’s
y gency
qualification to bid if it finds that imminent danger exists to the public health,
safety, or welfare.

(b) The written notice of emergency suspension shall state the specific facts and
reasons for finding an imminent danger to the public health, safety, or welfare
exists.

(c) The District, within 10 days of the emergency suspension, shall initiate formal
suspension or revocation proceedings in compliance with Rule 3.4(3), except
the 10-day notice requirement shall not be construed to prevent a hearing at the
earliest time practicable upon request of the aggrieved party.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: 8§ 190.033, 255.0525, 255.20, Fla. Stat.; §§ 14-22.012, 14-22.0121, 14-22.014, Fla. Admin. Code.

42



Rule 3.5

1)

()

Construction Contracts, Not Design-Build.

Scope. All contracts for the construction or improvement of any building, structure,
or other public construction works authorized by Chapter 190 of the Florida
Statutes, the costs of which are estimated by the District in accordance with
generally accepted cost accounting principles to be in excess of the threshold
amount for applicability of Section 255.20 of the Florida Statutes, as that amount
may be indexed or amended from time to time, shall be let under the terms of these
Rules and the procedures of Section 255.20 of the Florida Statutes, as the same may
be amended from time to time. A project shall not be divided solely to avoid the
threshold bidding requirements.

Procedure. When a purchase of construction services is within the scope of this
Rule, the following procedures shall apply:

(@)

(b)

(©)

The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation in the District and in the county in which
the District is located. The notice shall also include the amount of the bid
bond, if one is required. The notice shall allow at least twenty-one (21) days
for submittal of sealed bids, proposals, replies, or responses, unless the
Board, for good cause, determines a shorter period of time is appropriate.
Any project projected to cost more than five hundred thousand dollars
($500,000) must be noticed at least thirty (30) days prior to the date for
submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses. If the Board has
previously pre-qualified contractors pursuant to Rule 3.4 and determined
that only the contractors that have been pre-qualified will be permitted to
submit bids, proposals, replies, and responses, the Notice of Invitation to
Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation need not be published. Instead, the Notice of Invitation to Bid,
Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation
shall be sent to the pre-qualified contractors by United States Mail,
electronic mail, hand delivery, or overnight delivery service.

The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices of
Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and
Competitive Solicitations. The District shall make a good faith effort to
provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, or hand
delivery, to persons who provide their name and address to the District
Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a person to receive
the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in accordance with this
Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any contract award.

43



(d)

(€)

(f)

If the District has pre-qualified providers of construction services, then, at
the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-qualified
will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, or responses to Invitations
to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and Competitive
Solicitations.

In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm
or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or
responses:

Q) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(i) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if
any,

(iii)  Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized
to do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607
of the Florida Statutes, if the bidder is a corporation; and

(iv)  Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation.

Any contractor that has been found guilty by a court of competent
jurisdiction of any violation of federal labor or employment tax laws
regarding subjects including but not limited to, reemployment assistance,
safety, tax withholding, worker’s compensation, unemployment tax, social
security and Medicare tax, wage or hour, or prevailing rate laws within the
past five (5) years shall be deemed ineligible by the District to submit a bid,
response, or proposal for a District project.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid,
proposal, reply, or response, if required by the District. Failure to submit
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
bid, proposal, reply, or response.

Bids, proposals, replies, and responses, or the portions of which that include
the price, shall be publicly opened at a meeting noticed in accordance with
Rule 1.3, and at which at least one district representative is present. The
name of each bidder and the price submitted in the bid shall be announced
at such meeting and shall be made available upon request. Minutes should
be taken at the meeting and maintained by the District. Bids, proposals,
replies, and responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the respective
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation and these Rules. Minor variations in the bids,

44



(9)

(h)

(i)

)

(k)

proposals, replies, or responses may be waived by the Board. A variation
is minor if waiver of the variation does not create a competitive advantage
or disadvantage of a material nature. Mistakes in arithmetic extension of
pricing may be corrected by the Board, provided such corrections do not
result in a material change to the bid amount or create an unfair advantage.
Bids and proposals may not be modified or supplemented after opening;
provided however, additional information may be requested and/or
provided to evidence compliance, make non-material modifications,
clarifications, or supplementations, and as otherwise permitted by Florida
law.

The lowest Responsive Bid submitted by a Responsive and Responsible
Bidder in response to an Invitation to Bid shall be accepted. In relation to
a Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation, the Board shall select the Responsive Proposal, Reply, or
Response submitted by a Responsive and Responsible Vendor which is
most advantageous to the District. To assure full understanding of the
responsiveness to the solicitation requirements contained in a Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions
may be conducted with qualified vendors. Vendors shall be accorded fair
treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for
discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, and
responses.

The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or
responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the
purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is
determined to be in the best interest of the District. No contractor shall be
entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, response, or reply preparation
or submittal from the District.

The Board may require potential contractors to furnish bid bonds,
performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be
approved by the Board.

Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids, proposals,
replies, or responses, shall be provided in writing to all contractors by
United States Mail, electronic mail, hand delivery, or overnight delivery
service. The notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file a
protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District
shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules," or wording to
that effect. Protests of the District’s purchase of construction services under
this Rule shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses are
received, the District may purchase construction services or may reject the

45



©)

(4)

(5)

(6)

bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of competitiveness. If no
Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is received, the District may
proceed with the procurement of construction services, in the manner the
Board determines is in the best interests of the District, which may include
but is not limited to a direct purchase of the construction services without
further competitive selection processes.

Sole Source; Government. Construction services that are only available from a
single source are exempt from this Rule. Construction services provided by
governmental agencies are exempt from this Rule. This Rule shall not apply to the
purchase of construction services, which may include goods, supplies, or materials,
that are purchased under a federal, state, or local government contract that has been
competitively procured by such federal, state, or local government in a manner
consistent with the material procurement requirements of these Rules. A contract
for construction services is exempt from this Rule if state or federal law prescribes
with whom the District must contract or if the rate of payment is established during
the appropriation process.

Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered
into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these rules only when there exists an immediate and serious need
for construction services that cannot be met through normal procurement methods
and the lack of such services would seriously threaten: (i) the District’s ability to
perform essential services; (ii) the preservation or protection of property or
improvements; or (iii) the health, safety, or welfare of any person. The fact that an
Emergency Purchase has occurred or is necessary, along with a detailed description
of the basis for the emergency determination, shall be noted in the minutes of the
next Board Meeting.

Exceptions. This Rule is inapplicable when:

@ The project is undertaken as repair or maintenance of an existing public
facility;

(b) The funding source of the project will be diminished or lost because the
time required to competitively award the project after the funds become
available exceeds the time within which the funding source must be spent;

(©) The District has competitively awarded a project and the contractor has
abandoned the project or the District has terminated the contract; or

(d) The District, after public notice, conducts a public meeting under Section
286.011 of the Florida Statutes, and finds by a majority vote of the Board

46



that it is in the public’s best interest to perform the project using its own
services, employees, and equipment.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: 88 119.0701, 189.053, 190.033, 255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 287.055, Fla. Stat.

Rule 3.6 Construction Contracts, Design-Build.

1) Scope. The District may utilize Design-Build Contracts for any public construction
project for which the Board determines that use of such contract is in the best
interest of the District. When letting a Design-Build Contract, the District shall use
the following procedure:

2 Procedure.

€)) The District shall utilize a Design Criteria Professional meeting the
requirements of Section 287.055(2)(k) of the Florida Statutes, when
developing a Design Criteria Package, evaluating the proposals and
qualifications submitted by Design-Build Firms, and determining
compliance of the project construction with the Design Criteria Package.
The Design Criteria Professional may be an employee of the District, may
be the District Engineer selected by the District pursuant to Section 287.055
of the Florida Statutes, or may be retained pursuant to Rule 3.1. The Design
Criteria Professional is not eligible to render services under a Design-Build
Contract executed pursuant to the Design Criteria Package.

(b) A Design Criteria Package for the construction project shall be prepared and
sealed by the Design Criteria Professional. If the project utilizes existing
plans, the Design Criteria Professional shall create a Design Criteria
Package by supplementing the plans with project specific requirements, if
any.

(© The Board may either choose to award the Design-Build Contract pursuant
to the competitive proposal selection process set forth in Section 287.055(9)
of the Florida Statutes, or pursuant to the qualifications-based selection
process pursuant to Rule 3.1.

(1 Qualifications-Based Selection. If the process set forth in Rule 3.1
is utilized, subsequent to competitive negotiations, a guaranteed
maximum price and guaranteed completion date shall be
established.

(i) Competitive Proposal-Based Selection. If the competitive proposal
selection process is utilized, the Board, in consultation with the
Design Criteria Professional, shall establish the criteria, standards

47



and procedures for the evaluation of Design-Build Proposals based
on price, technical, and design aspects of the project, weighted for
the project. After a Design Criteria Package and the standards and
procedures for evaluation of proposals have been developed,
competitive proposals from qualified firms shall be solicited
pursuant to the design criteria by the following procedure:

1.

A Request for Proposals shall be advertised at least once in
a newspaper of general circulation in the county in which the
District is located. The notice shall allow at least twenty-one
(21) days for submittal of sealed proposals, unless the Board,
for good cause, determines a shorter period of time is
appropriate. Any project projected to cost more than five
hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) must be noticed at least
thirty (30) days prior to the date for submittal of proposals.

The District may maintain lists of persons interested in
receiving notices of Requests for Proposals. The District
shall make a good faith effort to provide written notice, by
electronic mail, United States Mail, or hand delivery, to
persons who provide their name and address to the District
Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a
person to receive the notice shall not invalidate any contract
awarded in accordance with this Rule and shall not be a basis
for a protest of any contract award.

In order to be eligible to submit a proposal, a firm must, at
the time of receipt of the proposals:

a. Hold the required applicable state professional
licenses in good standing, as defined by Section
287.055(2)(h) of the Florida Statutes;

b. Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good
standing, if any;

C. Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or
be authorized to do business in the State of Florida in
accordance with Chapter 607 of the Florida Statutes,
if the proposer is a corporation;

d. Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set

forth in the Request for Proposals and Design
Criteria Package.

48



Any contractor that has been found guilty by a court of any
violation of federal labor or employment tax laws regarding
subjects including but not limited to reemployment
assistance, safety, tax withholding, worker’s compensation,
unemployment tax, social security and Medicare tax, wage
or hour, or prevailing rate laws within the past five (5) years
may be considered ineligible by the District to submit a bid,
response, or proposal for a District project.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted
with the proposal if required by the District. Failure to
submit evidence of compliance when required may be
grounds for rejection of the proposal.

The proposals, or the portions of which that include the
price, shall be publicly opened at a meeting noticed in
accordance with Rule 1.3, and at which at least one district
representative is present. The name of each bidder and the
price submitted in the bid shall be announced at such
meeting and shall be made available upon request. Minutes
should be taken at the meeting and maintained by the
District. In consultation with the Design Criteria
Professional, the Board shall evaluate the proposals received
based on evaluation criteria and procedures established prior
to the solicitation of proposals, including but not limited to
qualifications, availability, and past work of the firms and
the partners and members thereof. The Board shall then
select no fewer than three (3) Design-Build Firms as the
most qualified.

The Board shall have the right to reject all proposals if the
proposals are too high, or rejection is determined to be in the
best interest of the District. No vendor shall be entitled to
recover any costs of proposal preparation or submittal from
the District.

If less than three (3) Responsive Proposals are received, the
District may purchase design-build services or may reject the
proposals for lack of competitiveness. If no Responsive
Proposals are received, the District may proceed with the
procurement of design-build services in the manner the
Board determines is in the best interests of the District,
which may include but is not limited to a direct purchase of
the design-build services without further competitive
selection processes.

49



10.

Notice of the rankings adopted by the Board, including the
rejection of some or all proposals, shall be provided in
writing to all consultants by United States Mail, hand
delivery, electronic mail, or overnight delivery service. The
notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file
a protest within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules
of the District shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under
those Rules,” or wording to that effect. Protests of the
District’s rankings under this Rule shall be in accordance
with the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

The Board shall negotiate a contract with the firm ranking
the highest based on the evaluation standards and shall
establish a price which the Board determines is fair,
competitive and reasonable. Should the Board be unable to
negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm considered to
be the most qualified at a price considered by the Board to
be fair, competitive, and reasonable, negotiations with that
firm must be terminated. The Board shall then undertake
negotiations with the second most qualified firm, based on
the ranking by the evaluation standards. Should the Board
be unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firm
considered to be the second most qualified at a price
considered by the Board to be fair, competitive, and
reasonable, negotiations with that firm must be terminated.
The Board shall then undertake negotiations with the third
most qualified firm. Should the Board be unable to negotiate
a satisfactory contract with the firm considered to be the
third most qualified at a price considered by the Board to be
fair, competitive, and reasonable, negotiations with that firm
must be terminated.  Should the Board be unable to
negotiate a satisfactory contract with any of the selected
firms, the Board shall select additional firms in order of their
rankings based on the evaluation standards and continue
negotiations until an agreement is reached or the list of firms
is exhausted.

After the Board contracts with a firm, the firm shall bring to
the Board for approval, detailed working drawings of the
project.

The Design Criteria Professional shall evaluate the
compliance of the detailed working drawings and project
construction with the Design Criteria Package and shall
provide the Board with a report of the same.

50



3) Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered
into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

4) Emergency Purchase. The Board may, in case of public emergency, declare an
emergency and immediately proceed with negotiations with the best qualified
Design-Build Firm available at the time. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has
occurred shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

(5) Exceptions. This Rule is inapplicable when:

@) The project is undertaken as repair or maintenance of an existing public
facility;

(b) The funding source of the project will be diminished or lost because the
time required to competitively award the project after the funds become
available exceeds the time within which the funding source must be spent;

(© The District has competitively awarded a project and the contractor has
abandoned the project or the District has terminated the contractor; or

(d) The District, after public notice, conducts a public meeting under Section
286.011 of the Florida Statutes, and finds by a majority vote of the Board
that it is in the public’s best interest to perform the project using its own
services, employees, and equipment.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 189.053, 190.033, 255.0518, 255.0525, 255.20, 287.055, Fla. Stat.

51



Rule 3.7

1)

)

(3)

Payment and Performance Bonds.

Scope. This Rule shall apply to contracts for the construction of a public building,
for the prosecution and completion of a public work, or for repairs upon a public
building or public work and shall be construed in addition to terms prescribed by
any other Rule that may also apply to such contracts.

Required Bond. Upon entering into a contract for any of the services described in
section (1) of this Rule in excess of $200,000, the Board should require that the
contractor, before commencing the work, execute and record a payment and
performance bond in an amount equal to the contract price. Notwithstanding the
terms of the contract or any other law, the District may not make payment to the
contractor until the contractor has provided to the District a certified copy of the
recorded bond.

Discretionary Bond. At the discretion of the Board, upon entering into a contract
for any of the services described in section (1) of this Rule for an amount not
exceeding $200,000, the contractor may be exempted from executing a payment
and performance bond.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: § 255.05, Fla. Stat.

52



Rule 3.8

1)

)

Goods, Supplies, and Materials.

Purpose and Scope. All purchases of goods, supplies, or materials exceeding the

amount provided in Section 287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY
FOUR, shall be purchased under the terms of this Rule. Contracts for purchases of
“goods, supplies, and materials” do not include printing, insurance, advertising, or
legal notices. A contract involving goods, supplies, or materials plus maintenance
services may, in the discretion of the Board, be treated as a contract for maintenance
services. However, a purchase shall not be divided solely in order to avoid the
threshold bidding requirements.

Procedure. When a purchase of goods, supplies, or materials is within the scope of
this Rule, the following procedures shall apply:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county
in which the District is located. The notice shall also include the amount of
the bid bond, if one is required. The notice shall allow at least seven (7)
days for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses.

The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices of
Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitations. The District shall make a good faith effort to
provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, or hand
delivery, to persons who provide their name and address to the District
Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a person to receive
the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in accordance with this
Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any contract award.

If the District has pre-qualified suppliers of goods, supplies, and materials,
then, at the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-
qualified will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, or responses.

In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm
or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or
responses:

(i) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(i) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any;

53



(f)

(@)

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized to
do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 of
the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; and

(iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid,
proposal, reply or response if required by the District. Failure to submit
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
bid, proposal, reply, or response.

Any firm or individual whose principal place of business is outside the State
of Florida must also submit a written opinion of an attorney at law licensed
to practice law in that foreign state, as to the preferences, if any or none,
granted by the law of that foreign state to business entities whose principal
places of business are in that foreign state, in the letting of any or all public
contracts. Failure to submit such a written opinion or submission of a false
or misleading written opinion may be grounds for rejection of the bid,
proposal, reply, or response.

Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be publicly opened at the time
and place noted on the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation
to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. Bids, proposals, replies, and
responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the respective Invitation to
Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation, and this Rule. Minor variations in the bids, proposals, replies,
or responses may be waived by the Board. A variation is minor if waiver of
the variation does not create a competitive advantage or disadvantage of a
material nature. Mistakes in arithmetic extension of pricing may be
corrected by the Board. Bids and proposals may not be modified or
supplemented after opening; provided however, additional information may
be requested and/or provided to evidence compliance, make non-material
modifications, clarifications, or supplementations, and as otherwise
permitted by Florida law.

The lowest Responsive Bid, after taking into account the preferences
provided for in this subsection, submitted by a Responsive and Responsible
Bidder in response to an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation
to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be accepted. If the lowest
Responsive Bid is submitted by a Responsive and Responsible Bidder
whose principal place of business is located in a foreign state which does
not grant a preference in competitive purchase to businesses whose
principal place of business are in that foreign state, the lowest Responsible
and Responsive Bidder whose principal place of business is in the State of

54



(h)

1)

(k)

Florida shall be awarded a preference of five percent (5%). If the lowest
Responsive Bid is submitted by a Responsive and Responsible Bidder
whose principal place of business is located in a foreign state which grants
a preference in competitive purchase to businesses whose principal place of
business are in that foreign state, the lowest Responsible and Responsive
Bidder whose principal place of business is in the State of Florida shall be
awarded a preference equal to the preference granted by such foreign state.

To assure full understanding of the responsiveness to the solicitation
requirements contained in an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals,
Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions may be
conducted with qualified vendors. Vendors shall be accorded fair treatment
prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for discussion,
preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, and responses.

The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or
responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the
purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is
determined to be in the best interest of the District. No vendor shall be
entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, reply, or response preparation
or submittal from the District.

The Board may require bidders and proposers to furnish bid bonds,
performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be
approved by the Board.

Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids, proposals,
replies, or responses shall be provided in writing to all vendors by United
States Mail, electronic mail, hand delivery, or overnight delivery service.
The notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file a protest
within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District shall
constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules,” or wording to that
effect. Protests of the District’s purchase of goods, supplies, and materials
under this Rule shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in Rule
3.11.

If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses are
received, the District may purchase goods, supplies, or materials, or may
reject the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of competitiveness.
If no Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is received, the District
may proceed with the procurement of goods, supplies, and materials, in the
manner the Board determines is in the best interests of the District, which
may include but is not limited to a direct purchase of the goods, supplies,
and materials without further competitive selection processes.

55



3) Goods, Supplies, and Materials included in a Construction Contract Awarded
Pursuant to Rule 3.5 or 3.6. There may be occasions where the District has
undergone the competitive purchase of construction services which contract may
include the provision of goods, supplies, or materials. In that instance, the District
may approve a change order to the contract and directly purchase the goods,
supplies, and materials. Such purchase of goods, supplies, and materials deducted
from a competitively purchased construction contract shall be exempt from this
Rule.

4 Exemption. Goods, supplies, and materials that are only available from a single
source are exempt from this Rule. Goods, supplies, and materials provided by
governmental agencies are exempt from this Rule. A contract for goods, supplies,
or materials is exempt from this Rule if state or federal law prescribes with whom
the District must contract or if the rate of payment is established during the
appropriation process. This Rule shall not apply to the purchase of goods, supplies
or materials that are purchased under a federal, state, or local government contract
that has been competitively procured by such federal, state, or local government in
a manner consistent with the material procurement requirements of these Rules.

(5) Renewal. Contracts for the purchase of goods, supplies, and/or materials subject to
this Rule may be renewed for a maximum period of five (5) years.

(6) Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: 8§ 189.053, 190.033, 287.017, 287.084, Fla. Stat.

56



Rule 3.9

1)

)

Maintenance Services.

Scope. All contracts for maintenance of any District facility or project shall be set
under the terms of this Rule if the cost exceeds the amount provided in Section
287.017 of the Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY FOUR. A contract involving
goods, supplies, and materials plus maintenance services may, in the discretion of
the Board, be treated as a contract for maintenance services. However, a purchase
shall not be divided solely in order to avoid the threshold bidding requirements.

Procedure. When a purchase of maintenance services is within the scope of this
Rule, the following procedures shall apply:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

The Board shall cause to be prepared an Invitation to Bid, Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation.

Notice of the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to
Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation shall be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the District and within the county
in which the District is located. The notice shall also include the amount of
the bid bond, if one is required. The notice shall allow at least seven (7)
days for submittal of bids, proposals, replies, or responses.

The District may maintain lists of persons interested in receiving notices of
Invitations to Bid, Requests for Proposals, Invitations to Negotiate, and
Competitive Solicitations. The District shall make a good faith effort to
provide written notice, by electronic mail, United States Mail, or hand
delivery, to persons who provide their name and address to the District
Manager for inclusion on the list. However, failure of a person to receive
the notice shall not invalidate any contract awarded in accordance with this
Rule and shall not be a basis for a protest of any contract award.

If the District has pre-qualified suppliers of maintenance services, then, at
the option of the District, only those persons who have been pre-qualified
will be eligible to submit bids, proposals, replies, and responses.

In order to be eligible to submit a bid, proposal, reply, or response, a firm
or individual must, at the time of receipt of the bids, proposals, replies, or
responses:

(i) Hold all required applicable state professional licenses in good
standing;

(i) Hold all required applicable federal licenses in good standing, if any;

57



(f)

(9)

(h)

(iii) Hold a current and active Florida corporate charter or be authorized to
do business in the State of Florida in accordance with Chapter 607 of
the Florida Statutes, if the vendor is a corporation; and

(iv) Meet any special pre-qualification requirements set forth in the
Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation.

Evidence of compliance with these Rules must be submitted with the bid,
proposal, reply, or response if required by the District. Failure to submit
evidence of compliance when required may be grounds for rejection of the
bid, proposal, reply, or response.

Bids, proposals, replies, and responses shall be publicly opened at the time
and place noted on the Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation
to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation. Bids, proposals, replies, and
responses shall be evaluated in accordance with the respective Invitation to
Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive
Solicitation, and these Rules. Minor variations in the bids, proposals,
replies, and responses may be waived by the Board. A variation is minor if
waiver of the variation does not create a competitive advantage or
disadvantage of a material nature. Mistakes in arithmetic extension of
pricing may be corrected by the Board. Bids and proposals may not be
modified or supplemented after opening; provided however, additional
information may be requested and/or provided to evidence compliance,
make non-material modifications, clarifications, or supplementations, and
as otherwise permitted by Florida law.

The lowest Responsive Bid submitted in response to an Invitation to Bid by
a Responsive and Responsible Bidder shall be accepted. In relation to a
Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate or Competitive Solicitation
the Board shall select the Responsive Proposal, Reply, or Response
submitted by a Responsive and Responsible Vendor which is most
advantageous to the District. To assure full understanding of the
responsiveness to the solicitation requirements contained in a Request for
Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or Competitive Solicitation, discussions
may be conducted with qualified vendors. Vendors shall be accorded fair
treatment prior to the submittal date with respect to any opportunity for
discussion, preparation, and revision of bids, proposals, replies, or
responses.

The Board shall have the right to reject all bids, proposals, replies, or
responses because they exceed the amount of funds budgeted for the
purchase, if there are not enough to be competitive, or if rejection is
determined to be in the best interest of the District. No Vendor shall be

58



entitled to recover any costs of bid, proposal, reply, or response preparation
or submittal from the District.

Q) The Board may require bidders and proposers to furnish bid bonds,
performance bonds, and/or other bonds with a responsible surety to be
approved by the Board.

() Notice of intent to award, including rejection of some or all bids, proposals,
replies, or responses shall be provided in writing to all vendors by United
States Mail, electronic mail, hand delivery, , or overnight delivery service.
The notice shall include the following statement: "Failure to file a protest
within the time prescribed in Rule 3.11 of the Rules of the District shall
constitute a waiver of proceedings under those Rules,” or wording to that
effect. Protests of the District’s procurement of maintenance services under
this Rule shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in Rule 3.11.

(K) If less than three (3) Responsive Bids, Proposals, Replies, or Responses are
received, the District may purchase the maintenance services or may reject
the bids, proposals, replies, or responses for a lack of competitiveness. If no
Responsive Bid, Proposal, Reply, or Response is received, the District may
proceed with the procurement of maintenance services, in the manner the
Board determines is in the best interests of the District, which may include
but is not limited to a direct purchase of the maintenance services without
further competitive selection processes.

3) Exemptions. Maintenance services that are only available from a single source are
exempt from this Rule. Maintenance services provided by governmental agencies
are exempt from this Rule. A contract for maintenance services is exempt from this
Rule if state or federal law prescribes with whom the District must contract or if
the rate of payment is established during the appropriation process.

4) Renewal. Contracts for the purchase of maintenance services subject to this Rule
may be renewed for a maximum period of five (5) years.

(5) Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract entered
into pursuant to this Rule shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

(6) Emergency Purchases. The District may make an Emergency Purchase without
complying with these rules. The fact that an Emergency Purchase has occurred or
is necessary shall be noted in the minutes of the next Board meeting.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), 190.033, Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: 8§ 119.0701, 190.033, 287.017, Fla. Stat.

59



Rule 3.10

1)

(2)

Contractual Services.

Exemption from Competitive Purchase. Pursuant to Section 190.033(3) of the
Florida Statutes, Contractual Services shall not be subject to competitive
purchasing requirements. If an agreement is predominantly for Contractual
Services, but also includes maintenance services or the purchase of goods and
services, the contract shall not be subject to competitive purchasing requirements.
Regardless of whether an advertisement or solicitation for Contractual Services is
identified as an Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Negotiate, or
Competitive Solicitation, no rights or remedies under these Rules, including but not
limited to protest rights, are conferred on persons, firms, or vendors proposing to
provide Contractual Services to the District.

Contracts; Public Records. In accordance with Florida law, each contract for
Contractual Services shall include provisions required by law that require the
contractor to comply with public records laws.

Specific Authority: 88 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 119.0701, 190.011(3), 190.033, Fla. Stat.

60



Rule 3.11

Protests with Respect to Proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 3.8,
and 3.9.

The resolution of any protests with respect to proceedings under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6,
3.8, and 3.9 shall be in accordance with this Rule.

1)

Filing.
(@)

(b)

(©)

With respect to a protest regarding qualifications, specifications,
documentation, or other requirements contained in a Request for
Qualifications, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Bid, or Competitive
Solicitation issued by the District, the notice of protest shall be filed in
writing within seventy-two (72) calendar hours (excluding Saturdays,
Sundays, and state holidays) after the first advertisement of the Request for
Qualifications, Request for Proposals, Invitation to Bid, or Competitive
Solicitation. A formal protest setting forth with particularity the facts and
law upon which the protest is based shall be filed within seven (7) calendar
days (including Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays) after the initial
notice of protest was filed. For purposes of this Rule, wherever applicable,
filing will be perfected and deemed to have occurred upon receipt by the
District. Failure to file a notice of protest shall constitute a waiver of all
rights to protest the District’s intended decision. Failure to file a formal
written protest shall constitute an abandonment of the protest proceedings
and shall automatically terminate the protest proceedings.

Except for those situations covered by subsection (1)(a) of this Rule, any
firm or person who is affected adversely by a District’s ranking or intended
award under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 3.8, or 3.9 and desires to
contest the District’s ranking or intended award, shall file with the District
a written notice of protest within seventy-two (72) calendar hours
(excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays) after receipt of the
notice of the District’s ranking or intended award. A formal protest setting
forth with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is based
shall be filed within seven (7) calendar days (including Saturdays, Sundays,
and state holidays) after the initial notice of protest was filed. For purposes
of this Rule, wherever applicable, filing will be perfected and deemed to
have occurred upon receipt by the District. Failure to file a notice of protest
shall constitute a waiver of all rights to protest the District’s ranking or
intended award. Failure to file a formal written protest shall constitute an
abandonment of the protest proceedings and shall automatically terminate
the protest proceedings.

If the requirement for the posting of a protest bond and the amount of the
protest bond, which may be expressed by a percentage of the contract to be
awarded or a set amount, is disclosed in the District’s competitive
solicitation documents for a particular purchase under Rules 3.1, 3.2, 3.3,

61



)

(3)

3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 3.8, or 3.9, any person who files a notice of protest must post
the protest bond. The amount of the protest bond shall be determined by
District staff after consultation with the Board and within the limits, if any,
imposed by Florida law. In the event the protest is successful, the protest
bond shall be refunded to the protestor. In the event the protest is
unsuccessful, the protest bond shall be applied towards the District’s costs,
expenses, and attorney’s fees associated with hearing and defending the
protest. Inthe event the protest is settled by mutual agreement of the parties,
the protest bond shall be distributed as agreed to by the District and
protestor.

(d) The District does not accept documents filed by electronic mail or facsimile
transmission. Filings are only accepted during normal business hours,
which are 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding
holidays.

Contract Execution. Upon receipt of a notice of protest which has been timely filed,
the District shall not execute the contract under protest until the subject of the
protest is resolved. However, if the District sets forth in writing particular facts and
circumstances showing that delay incident to protest proceedings will jeopardize
the funding for the project, will materially increase the cost of the project, or will
create an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety, or welfare, the
contract may be executed.

Informal Proceeding. If the Board determines a protest does not involve a disputed
issue of material fact, the Board may, but is not obligated to, schedule an informal
proceeding to consider the protest. Such informal proceeding shall be at a time and
place determined by the Board. Notice of such proceeding shall be sent via certified
mail, hand delivery, or email with delivery confirmation to the protestor and any
substantially affected persons or parties not less than three (3) calendar days prior
to such informal proceeding. Within thirty (30) calendar days following the
informal proceeding, the Board shall issue a written decision setting forth the
factual, legal, and policy grounds for its decision.

(4) Formal Proceeding. If the Board determines a protest involves disputed issues of

material fact or if the Board elects not to use the informal proceeding process
provided for in section (3) of this Rule, the District shall schedule a formal hearing
to resolve the protest. The Chairperson shall designate any member of the Board
(including the Chairperson), District Manager, District Counsel, or other qualified
person as a hearing officer to conduct the hearing. The hearing officer may:

€)) Administer oaths and affirmations;

(b) Rule upon offers of proof and receive relevant evidence;

(©) Regulate the course of the hearing, including any pre-hearing matters;

62



(d) Enter orders; and
(e) Make or receive offers of settlement, stipulation, and adjustment.

The hearing officer shall, within thirty (30) days after the hearing or receipt of the
hearing transcript, whichever is later, file a recommended order which shall include
a caption, time and place of hearing, appearances entered at the hearing, statement
of the issues, findings of fact and conclusions of law, separately stated, and a
recommendation for final District action. The District shall allow each party fifteen
(15) calendar days from receipt of the recommended order in which to submit
written exceptions to the recommended order. The District shall issue a final order
within sixty (60) days after the filing of the recommended order.

(5) Intervenors. Other substantially affected persons may join the proceedings as
intervenors by filing a motion to intervene within ten (10) calendar days of the
initial protest filing, on terms that shall not unduly delay the proceedings.

(6) Rejection of all Qualifications, Bids, Proposals, Replies and Responses after
Receipt of Notice of Protest. If the Board determines there was a violation of law,
defect, or an irregularity in the competitive solicitation process, the Bids, Proposals,
Replies, and Responses are too high, or if the Board determines it is otherwise in
the District’s best interest, the Board may reject all qualifications, bids, proposals,
replies, and responses and start the competitive solicitation process anew. If the
Board decides to reject all qualifications, bids, proposals, replies, and responses and
start the competitive solicitation process anew, any pending protests shall
automatically terminate.

@) Settlement. Nothing herein shall preclude the settlement of any protest under this
Rule at any time.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: § 190.033, Fla. Stat.

63



Rule 4.0 Effective Date.

These Rules shall be effective , 2025, except that no election of officers
required by these Rules shall be required until after the next regular election for the Board.

Specific Authority: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.
Law Implemented: §§ 190.011(5), 190.011(15), Fla. Stat.

64



Tab 2



LAKE ST. CHARLES
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

AMENDED AND RESTATED
RULES AND POLICIES FOR AMENITY USAGE

ADOPTED - , 20251

! LAaw IMPLEMENTED: ss. 190.011, 190.035, FLA. STAT. (2025); In accordance with Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes, and on

at a duly noticed public meeting and after a duly noticed public hearing, the Board of Supervisors of the Lake St. Charles
Community Development District adopted the following rules, policies and rates governing the operation of the District’s facilities and
services.




Table of Contents

DEFINITIONS . ... ot E e s Rt Rt e Rt e st R e e Rt e s et e R e e R e e e R e e R e e e e nReenn e r e e ne e nenreenenns 1
AMENITIES ACCESS AND USAGE .......cooiiiiii e 3
GENERAL AMENITY POLICIES ... oot nne e nne e nne 5
SMOKING, DRUGS AND ALCOHOL ... nne e nne 7
SERVICE ANIMAL POLICY ..ottt 7
SWIMMING POOL POLICIES ........o ot 8
PLAYGROUND POLICIES ..ot m e sn e nenreenenne e nnas 10
PARKS, MULTI-PURPOSE FIELDS, AND OUTDOOR AREAS POLICIES..........ccccoiiiiiiiiccie 10
BASKETBALL COURT POLICIES. ...t 11
TENNIS COURT POLICIES. ..ottt e b e bt e e r e nn e r e b r e n e e nn s 11
DOG PARK POLICIES...... ootttk m et e b e bt bt e s e b e st e n e r e e e e nneeneenne s 12
FITNESS TRAIL POLICIES ... ..o e 13
AMENITY RENTALS ...t E e bR et r et e e e r e se e nreereenne s 16
SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF PRIVILEGES.........cccoooi e 18
SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF ACCESS RULE ... 18
PROPERTY DAMAGE ... e n e an e s 22
USE AT OWN RISK; INDEMNIFICATION. ...ttt nne s 22
SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY Lottt b e st b e bt e et n e e e e nr e r e nenneenn e 22
SEVERABILITY Lottt ettt R s et R e s Rt b e e r e s Rt e et r e e r e n e r e e 22

AMENDMENTS AND WAIVERS ...t nre e nne s 23



DEFINITIONS

“Amenities” or “Amenity Facilities”— shall mean the properties and areas owned by the District and intended for
recreational use and shall include, but not specifically be limited to clubhouse, swimming pool, spa, pool deck,
fitness trail, dock and boat launch, dog parks, parks, tennis court, basketball court, and playground, together with
their appurtenant facilities and areas.

“Amenity Policies” or “Policies” and “Amenity Rates” — shall mean these Amended and Restated Rules and
Policies for Amenity Usage of the Lake St. Charles Community Development District, as amended from time to
time. The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to amend or modify these Policies, as necessary and convenient,
in their sole and absolute discretion, and will notify Patrons of any changes. Patrons may obtain the currently
effective Policies from the District Manager’s Office. The Board of Supervisors and District Staft shall have full
authority to enforce the Amenity Policies.

“Amenity Manager” — shall mean the District Manager or that person or firm so designated by the District’s Board
of Supervisors, including their employees.

“Amenity Rates” — shall mean those rates and fees established by the Board of Supervisors of the Lake St. Charles
Community Development District as provided in Exhibit A attached hereto.

“Access Card” — shall mean an electronic Access Card issued by the District Manager to each Patron Household
(as defined herein) to access the Amenity Facilities.

“Board of Supervisors” or “Board” — shall mean the Board of Supervisors of the Lake St. Charles Community
Development District.

“District” — shall mean the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.

“District Staff” — shall mean the professional management company with which the District has contracted to
provide management services to the District, the Amenity Manager, and District Counsel.

“Guest” — shall mean any person or persons, other than a Resident or Non-Resident Patron, who are expressly
authorized by the District to use the Amenities, or invited for a specific visit by a Patron to use the Amenities.

“Guest Access Pass” — shall mean any person or persons, other than a Resident or Non-Resident Patron, who are
issued temporary amenity access in accordance with these Policies.

“Homeowners Association” or “HOA” or “POA” —shall mean an entity or entities, including its/their employees
and agents, which may have jurisdiction over lands located within the District, either now or in the future, which
may exist to aid in the enforcement of deed restrictions and covenants applicable to lands within the District.

“Household” — shall mean a residential unit or a group of individuals residing within a Resident’s home. This does
not include visiting friends, guests, relatives or extended family not permanently residing in the home. Upon
District’s request, proof of residency for individuals over the age of eighteen (18) years may be required by driver’s
license or state or federal issued form of identification, including a signed affidavit of residency.

“Lakes” or “Ponds” — shall mean those water management and control facilities and waterways within the District,
including but not limited stormwater management facilities, lakes and ponds.

“Non-Resident” — shall mean any person who does not own property within the District.



“Non-Resident Patron” — shall mean any person or Household not owning property in the District who is paying
the Annual User Fee to the District for use of all Amenity Facilities.

“Non-Resident User Fee” or “Annual User Fee” — shall mean the fee established by the District for any person
that is not a Resident and wishes to become a Non-Resident Patron. The amount of the Annual User Fee is set forth
herein, and that amount is subject to change based on Board action.

“Patron” — shall mean Residents, Guests, Non-Resident Patrons and Renters.

“Renter” — shall mean a tenant, occupant or an individual maintaining his or her residence in a home located within
the District pursuant to a valid rental or lease agreement. Proof of valid rental or lease agreement shall be required.

“Resident” — shall mean any person or Household owning property within the District, or any Renter who has
been approved for issuance of an Access Card.

The words "hereof," "herein," "hereto," "hereby," “hereinafter” and "hereunder" and variations thereof refer to the
entire Amenity Policies and Rates.

All words, terms and defined terms herein importing the singular number shall, where the context requires, import
the plural number and vice versa.



AMENITIES ACCESS AND USAGE

)

()

@)

(4)

(5)

(6)

General. Only Patrons have the right to use the Amenities; provided, however, that certain community
programming events may be available to the general public where permitted by the District, and subject
to payment of any applicable fees and satisfaction of any other applicable requirements, including
adherence to these Amenity Policies and execution of waivers and hold harmless agreements, if any.

Use at your Own Risk. All persons using the Amenities do so at their own risk and agree to abide by
the Amenity Policies. The District shall assume no responsibility and shall not be liable in any
incidents, accidents, personal injury or death, or damage to or loss of property arising from the use of
the Amenities or from the acts, omissions or negligence of other persons using the Amenities.

Resident Access and Usage. Residents are permitted to access and use the Amenities in accordance with
the policies and rules set forth herein, and are not responsible for paying the Annual Non-Resident User
Fee set forth herein. In order to fund the operation, maintenance and preservation of the facilities, projects
and services of the District, the District levies maintenance special assessments payable by property
owners within the District, in accordance with the District’s annual budget and assessment resolutions
adopted each fiscal year, and may additionally levy debt service assessments payable by property owners
to repay debt used to finance public improvements. Residents shall not be entitled to a refund of any
maintenance special assessments or debt service special assessments due to closure of the Amenities or
suspension of that Resident’s access privileges. Residents must complete the “Amenity Access
Registration Form” prior to access or use of the Amenities, attached hereto as Exhibit B, and each
Household shall receive an Access Card.

Non-Resident Patron Access and Usage. A Non-Resident Patron must pay the Annual Non-Resident
User Fee to have the right to use the Amenities for one full year, which year begins from the date of receipt
of payment by the District. This fee must be paid in full before the Non-Resident may use the Amenities.
Each subsequent Annual Non-Resident User Fee shall be paid in full on the anniversary date of
application. Annual Non-Resident User Fees may be renewed no more than thirty (30) days in advance
of the date of expiration and for no more than one calendar year. Multi-year memberships are not
available. The Annual Non-Resident User Fee is nonrefundable and nontransferable. Non-Resident
Patrons must complete the Amenity Facilities Access Registration Form prior to access or use of the
Amenities.

Guest Access and Usage. Each Patron Household is entitled to bring five (5) persons as Guests to the
Amenities at one time. District Staff shall be authorized to verify and enforce the authorized number of
Guests. A Patron must always accompany its Guests during its Guests’ use of the Amenities, unless a
Guest Access Pass has been issued in accordance with these Policies. Patrons are responsible for all
actions, omissions and negligence of such Guests, including Guests’ adherence to the Amenity Policies.
Violation of these Amenity Policies by a Guest may result in suspension or termination of the Patron’s
access and usage privileges. Exceeding the authorized number of Guests specified above shall be
grounds for suspension or termination of a Patron Household’s access and usage privileges.

Renter’s Privileges. Residents who rent or lease residential units in the District shall have the right to
designate the Renter of a residential unit as the beneficial users of the Resident’s privileges to use the
Amenities, subject to requirements stated herein.

Resident shall provide a written notice to the District Manager on the “Assignment of Amenity Rights and
Privileges” form attached hereto as Exhibit C, designating and identifying the Renter who shall hold the
beneficial usage rights, submitting with such notice the Renter’s proof of residency (i.e., a copy of the
lease agreement). Upon notice, Resident shall be required to pay any applicable fee before his or her
Renter receives an Access Card. Renter’s Access Card shall expire at the end of the lease term and may
be reactivated upon provision of proof of residency.



(7)

A Renter who is designated by a Resident as the beneficial user of the Resident’s rights to use the
Amenities shall be entitled to the same rights and privileges to use the Amenities as the Resident, subject
to all Amenity Policies. During the period when a Renter is designated as the beneficial user, the Resident
shall not be entitled to use the Amenities. In other words, Renters and Residents cannot simultaneously
hold Amenity privileges associated with that residential unit. Residents may retain their Amenities rights
in lieu of granting them to their Renters.

Residents shall be responsible for all charges incurred by their Renters which remain unpaid after the
customary billing and collection procedures established by the District. Residents are responsible for the
deportment of their respective Renter, including the Renter’s adherence to the Amenity Policies.

Access Cards. Two (2) complimentary Access Cards will be issued to each Household at the time they
register with the District, or upon approval of Non-Resident Patron application and payment of applicable
Annual User Fee, or upon verification and approval of Renter designation. Proof of property ownership
may be required annually. All Patrons must use their Access Card for entrance to the Amenities.

All Patrons must use the Access Card issued to their Household for entrance to the Amenity Facilities.
Each Household will be issued two (2) initial Access Cards free of charge. Replacement Access Cards
may be purchased in accordance with the Amenity Rates in effect at the time of purchase, but each
Household may have no more than two (2) Access Cards in service at a time.

Patrons must scan their Access Cards in the Card reader to gain access to the Amenities. This Access
Card system provides a security and safety measure for Patrons and protects the Amenities from non-
Patron entry. Under no circumstances shall a Patron provide their Access Card to another person, whether
Patron or non-Patron, to allow access to the Amenities, and under no circumstances shall a Patron
intentionally leave doors, gates, or other entrance barriers open to allow entry by non-Patrons.

Access Cards are the property of the District and are non-transferable except in accordance with the
District’s Amenity Policies. All lost or stolen Cards must be reported immediately to District Staff. Fees
shall apply to replace any lost or stolen Cards.



GENERAL AMENITY POLICIES

)

(2)

Hours of Operation. All hours of operation of the Amenities will be established and published by the
District on its website and/or posted at the applicable Amenity facility. The District may restrict access or
close some or all of the Amenities due to inclement weather, for purposes of providing a community
activity, for making improvements, for conducting maintenance, or for other purposes as circumstances
may arise. Any programs or activities of the District may have priority over other users of the Amenities.
Unless otherwise posted on the website or at the applicable Amenity facility, all outdoor Amenities are
open only from dawn until dusk. The specific, current hours of operation for several of the Amenities,
which may be amended from time to time and which may be subject to closure for holidays and other
special circumstances, are as published on the District’s website and/or as posted at the applicable Amenity
facility. No Patron is allowed in the service areas of the Amenities.

General Usage Guidelines. The following guidelines supplement specific provisions of the Amenity
Policies and are generally applicable and shall govern the access and use of the Amenities:

@ Registration and Access Cards. Each Patron must scan in an Access Card in order to access the
Amenities and must have his or her assigned Access Card in their possession and available for
inspection upon District Staff’s request. Access Cards are only to be used by the Patron to whom
they are issued. In the case of Guests, Guests must be accompanied by a Patron possessing a valid
Access Card at all times.

(b) Attire. With the exception of the pool and wet areas where bathing suits are permitted, Patrons
must be properly attired with shirts and shoes to use the Amenities for each facility’s intended
use. Bathing suits and wet feet are not allowed indoors with the exception of the bathrooms
appurtenant to the pool area.

(c) Food and Drink. Food and drink will be limited to designated areas only. No glass containers of
any type are permitted at any of the Amenities. All persons using any of the Amenities must keep
the area clean by properly disposing of trash or debris.

(d) Parking and Vehicles. Vehicles must be parked in designated areas. Vehicles should not be
parked on grass lawns, pond banks, roadsides, or in any way which blocks the normal flow of
traffic. During special events, alternative parking arrangements may be authorized but only as
directed by District Staff. Off-road bikes/vehicles (including ATVs) and motorized scooters are
prohibited on all property owned, maintained and operated by the District or at any of the
Amenities within District unless they are owned by the District.

(e) Fireworks/Flames. Fireworks and open flames of any kind are not permitted anywhere on
District-owned property or adjacent areas.

4] Skateboards, Etc. Bicycles, skateboards or rollerblades are not permitted on Amenity property
which includes, but is not limited to, the amenity parking lot, pool area, open fields, trails,
playground area and sidewalks surrounding these areas.

(9) Grills. Personal barbeque grills are not permitted at the Amenities or on any other District-owned
property.
(h) Firearms. Firearms are not permitted in any of the Amenities or on any District property in each

case to the extent such prohibitions are permitted under Florida law. Among other prohibitions,
no firearms may be carried to any meeting of the District’s Board of Supervisors.

Q) Equipment. All District equipment, furniture and other tangible property must be returned in
good condition after use. Patrons are encouraged to notify District Staff if such items need repair,
maintenance or cleaning.

()] Littering. Patrons are responsible for cleaning up after themselves and helping to keep the
Amenities clean at all times.



(k)

(1

(m)

(n)

(0)

(P)

(@)
(r)

(s)

®

(u)

Bounce Houses and Other Structures. The installation and use of bounce houses and similar
apparatus is prohibited on District property. No exceptions will be made.

Excessive Noise. Excessive noise that will disturb other Patrons is not permitted, including but
not limited to use of cellular phones and speakers of any kind that amplify sound.

Lost or Stolen Property. The District is not responsible for lost or stolen items. The Amenity
Manager is not permitted to hold valuables or bags for Patrons. All found items should be turned
in to the Amenity Manager for storage in the lost and found. Items will be stored in the lost and
found for two weeks after which District Staff shall dispose of such items in such manner as
determined in its sole discretion; provided, however, that District Staff shall not be permitted to
keep such items personally or to give such items to a Patron not otherwise claiming ownership.

Trespassing / Loitering. There is no trespassing or loitering allowed at the Amenities. Any
individual violating this policy may be reported to the local authorities.

Compliance with Laws and District Rules and Policies. All Patrons shall abide by and comply
with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances and policies, as well
as all District rules and policies, while present at or utilizing the Amenities, and shall ensure that
any minor for whom they are responsible also complies with the same. Failure to abide by any of
the foregoing may be a basis for suspension or termination of the Patron’s privileges to use or
access the Amenities.

Courtesy. Patrons and all users shall treat all staff members and other Patrons and Guests with
courtesy and respect. Disrespectful or abusive treatment of District Staff or District contractors
may result in suspension or termination of Amenity access and usage privileges. If District Staff
requests that a Patron leave the Amenity Facilities due to failure to comply with these rules and
policies, or due to a threat to the health, safety, or welfare, failure to comply may result in
immediate suspension or termination of Amenity access and usage privileges.

Profanity/Obscenity. Loud, profane, abusive, or obscene language or behavior is prohibited.

Emergencies. In the event of an injury or other emergency, please contact 911 and alert District
Staff immediately.

False Alarms. Any Patron improperly attempting to enter the Amenity Facilities outside of
regular operating hours or without the use of a valid Access Card and who thereby causes a
security alert will be responsible for the full amount of any fee charged to the District in
connection with such security alert and related response efforts.

Outside Vendors/Commercial Activity. Outside vendors and commercial activity are prohibited
on District property unless they are invited by the District as part of a District event or program
or as authorized by the District in connection with a rental of the Amenity Facilities.

Organized Activities. Any organized activities taking place at the Amenity Center must first be
approved by the District. This includes, but is not limited to, fitness instruction, special events,
etc.



SMOKING, DRUGS AND ALCOHOL

Smoking, including using any paraphernalia designed to consume tobacco or other substances such as vaping and
electric and non-electronic devices, is prohibited anywhere inside the Amenity Facilities, including any building,
or enclosed or fenced area to the maximum extent of the prohibitions set forth in the Florida Clean Indoor Air Act
or other subsequent legislation. Additionally, to the extent not prohibited by law, smoking is discouraged in all other
areas of the Amenities and on District owned property. All waste must be disposed of in the appropriate receptacles.
Any violation of this policy shall be reported to District Staff.

Possession, use and/or consumption of illegal drugs or alcoholic beverages is prohibited at the Amenities and on all
other District owned property. Any person that appears to be under the influence of drugs or alcohol will be asked
to leave the Amenities. Violation of this policy may result in suspension or termination of Amenity access and
usage privileges and illegal drug use may be punished to the maximum extent allowed by law.

SERVICE ANIMAL POLICY

Dogs or other pets (with the exception of “Service Animals” as defined by Florida law, trained to do work or perform
tasks for an individual with a disability, including a physical, sensory, psychiatric, intellectual or other mental
disability) are not permitted within any District-owned public accommodations including, but not limited to,
Amenity buildings (offices, social halls and fitness center), pools, various sport courts and other appurtenances or
related improvements. A Service Animal must be kept under the control of its handler by leash or harness, unless
doing so interferes with the Service Animal’s work or tasks or the individual’s disability prevents doing so. The
District may remove the Service Animal only under the following conditions:

= |f the Service Animal is out of control and the handler does not take effective measures to control it;

= |f the Service Animal is not housebroken; or,

= Ifthe Service Animal’s behavior poses a direct threat to the health and safety of others.
The District is prohibited from asking about the nature or extent of an individual’s disability to determine whether
an animal is a Service Animal or pet. However, the District may ask whether an animal is a Service Animal required
because of a disability and what work or tasks the animal has been trained to perform.



SWIMMING POOL POLICIES

)
()

@)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)
(12)

(13)

Operating Hours. Swimming is permitted only during designated hours, as posted at the pool.

Swim at Your Own Risk. No Lifeguards will be on duty. All persons using the pool do so at their own
risk and must abide by all swimming pool rules and policies.

Supervision of Minors. Non-swimming children should be under the supervision of a parent and/or
guardian who is capable of swimming safely and/or without assistance and who should remain within arm’s
reach of the non-swimming child(ren) at all times. Persons unable to swim safely and/or without assistance
must be accompanied by a person who is capable of swimming safely and/or without assistance at all times
in and around the pool. All children, regardless of age, using inflatable armbands (i.e., water wings) or any
approved Coast Guard flotation device MUST be supervised one-on-one by a parent and/or guardian who
is capable of swimming safely and/or without assistance, who is in the water and within arm’s length of the
child. Even proficient swimmers could find themselves at risk, the District recommends Patrons not swim
alone. All persons entering the Amenity Facilities do so at their own risk, regardless of age or ability.

Aquatic Toys and Recreational Equipment. No flotation devices are allowed in the pool except for water
wings and swim rings used by small children, under the direct supervision of an adult as specified in Section
(3) immediately above. Inflatable rafts, balls, pool floats and other toys and equipment are prohibited.

Prevention of Disease. All swimmers must shower before initially entering the pool. Persons with open
cuts, wounds, sores or blisters, nasal or ear discharge may not use the pool. No person should use the pool
with or suspected of having a communicable disease which could be transmitted through the use of the
pool.

Attire. Appropriate swimming attire (swimsuits) must be worn at all times. No thongs or Brazilian bikinis
are allowed. Wearing prohibited attire will result in immediate expulsion from the pool area.

Horseplay. No jumping, pushing, running, wrestling, excessive splashing, sitting or standing on shoulders,
spitting water, or other horseplay is allowed in the pool or on the pool deck area.

Diving. Diving is strictly prohibited at the pool. Back dives, back flips, back jumps, cannonball splashing
or other dangerous actions are prohibited.

Weather. The pool and pool area will be closed during electrical storms or when rain makes it difficult to
see any part of the pool or pool bottom clearly. The pool will be closed at the first sound of thunder or
sighting of lightning and will remain closed for thirty (30) minutes after the last sighting. Everyone must
leave the pool deck immediately upon hearing thunder or sighting lightning.

Pool Furniture; Reservation of Tables or Chairs. Tables and chairs may not be removed from the pool
deck. Tables or chairs on the deck area may not be reserved by placing towels or personal belongings on
them except temporarily to allow the Patron using them to enter the pool or use the restroom facilities.

Entrances. Pool entrances must be kept clear at all times.

Pollution. No one shall pollute the pool. Anyone who does pollute the pool is liable for any costs incurred
in treating and reopening the pool.

Swim Diapers. Anyone who is not reliably toilet trained, including but not limited to young children, must
wear rubber lined swim diapers, as well as a swimsuit over the swim diaper, to reduce the health risks
associated with human waste contaminating the swimming pool and deck area. If contamination occurs, the
pool will be shocked and closed for a period of at least twelve (12) hours. Persons not abiding by this policy
shall be responsible for any costs incurred in treating and reopening the pool.



(14)

(15)

(16)

17)

(18)

(19)

Staff Only. Only authorized staff members and contractors are allowed in the service and chemical storage
areas. Only authorized staff members and contractors may operate pool equipment or use pool chemicals.

Pool Closure. In addition to Hillsborough County and the State of Florida health code standards for pools
and pool facilities, and as noted above, the pool may be closed for the following reasons:

a. During severe weather conditions (heavy rain, lightning and thunder) and warnings, especially
when visibility to the pool bottom is compromised (deck also closed).

b. For thirty (30) minutes following the last occurrence of thunder or lightning (deck also closed).
c. Operational and mechanical treatments or difficulties affecting pool water quality.

d. For areasonable period following any mishap that resulted in contamination of pool water.

e. Any other reason deemed to be in the best interests of the District as determined by District staff.

Containers. No glass, breakable items, or alcoholic beverages are permitted in the pool area. No food or
chewing gum is allowed in the pool.

No Private Rentals. The pool area is not available for rental for private events. All pool rules and
limitations on authorized numbers of Guests remain in full affect at all times.

Programming. District Staff reserves the right to authorize all programs and activities, including with
regard to the number of guest participants, equipment, supplies, usage, etc., conducted at the pool, including
swim lessons, aquatic/recreational programs and pool parties. Any organized activities taking place at the
Amenity Center must first be approved by the District.

Spa Usage Guidelines.

a. Children under the age of twelve (12) are not permitted in the spa area without supervision by an
adult over the age of eighteen (18).

b. Pregnant women and those on medication should consult a doctor before using the hot tub.



PLAYGROUND POLICIES

)
(2)
()
(4)
()

(6)

(7)

Use at Own Risk. Patrons may use the playgrounds and parks at their own risk and must comply with all
posted signage.

Hours of Operation. Unless otherwise posted, all playground and park hours are from dawn to dusk.

Supervision of Children. Supervision by an adult eighteen (18) years and older is required for children
twelve (12) years of age or under. Children must always remain within the line of sight of the supervising
adult. All children are expected to play cooperatively with other children.

Shoes. Proper footwear is required and no loose clothing, especially with strings, should be worn.

Mulch. The mulch material is necessary for reducing fall impact and for good drainage. It is not to be
picked up, thrown, or kicked for any reason.

Food & Drink. No food, drinks or gum are permitted on the playground, other than such water in non-
breakable containers as may be necessary for reasonable hydration, but are permitted at the parks. Patrons
and Guests are responsible for clean-up of any food or drinks brought by them to the parks.

Glass. No glass containers or objects are permitted. Patrons should notify District Staff if broken glass is
observed at the playground or parks.

PARKS, MULTI-PURPOSE FIELDS, AND OUTDOOR AREAS POLICIES

)

)
3)

(4)

()
(6)

(7)
(8)
(9)

(10)

(11)

Use at Own Risk. Patrons may use the parks, multi-purpose fields and outdoor areas at their own risk and
must comply with all posted signage.

First Come Basis. All areas are open for Patrons use.

Vehicles. No bicycles, scooters, skateboards, or other equipment or vehicles with wheels are permitted in
the outdoor areas.

Chalking. Chalking or marking the field must be approved in advance and proper marking materials must
be used.

Glass Containers. No glass containers or breakable objects of any kind are permitted on the field.

Pets. Pets must be kept on leash, and Patrons and Guests must pick up and dispose of pet waste in
appropriate receptacles.

Equipment. Patrons are responsible for bringing their own equipment.
Golfing. Golfing is not permitted on the field.

Sports Instruction. Except as expressly authorized by the District, sports instruction for fees, or
solicitation of sports instruction for fees, is prohibited.

Noise. The volume of live or recorded music must not violate applicable Hillsborough County noise
ordinances, or unreasonably interfere with residents’ enjoyment of their homes.

Clean-Up. Patrons and Guests must clean up after themselves and dispose of trash in the appropriate
receptacles.



BASKETBALL COURT POLICIES

)

(2)

@)

(4)
()
(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)
(10)

(11)

Play at Your Own Risk. Play at your own risk. The basketball court is not supervised during operating
hours.

First-Come Basis. The courts are available for use by Patrons and Guests only on a first-come, first-serve
basis. When other players are waiting, basketball court use should be limited to one (1) hour.

Attire. Players must wear appropriate attire (i.e., active-wear pants, including capris or shorts, shirts, and/or
warm-up suits, and non-marking, closed toe athletic shoes) at all times.

Use. The use of the basketball court is for basketball only.
Pets. Pets, with the exception of Service Animals, are not permitted on the basketball court at any time.

Food and Drinks. Food and gum are not permitted on the basketball court. Drinks are permitted on the
multi-purpose court and pickleball court but must be in a non-breakable, spill-proof container.

Glass Containers. No glass containers or breakable objects of any kind are permitted on the basketball
court.

Operating Hours. The multi-purpose court and pickleball court are open from dawn to dusk only, or as
otherwise posted by the District. No one is permitted on the basketball court at any other time unless a
specific event is pre-approved by the District and scheduled.

Skateboards, Etc. No bicycles, scooters, roller skates, roller blades, skateboards, electric bikes, electric
scooters or equipment with similar uses are permitted on the basketball court.

Instruction. Except as expressly authorized by the District, any instruction relating to basketball for fees,
or the solicitation of such instruction for fees, is prohibited.

Noise. The volume of live or recorded music must not violate applicable Hillsborough County noise
ordinances and may not unreasonably interfere with residents’ enjoyment of their homes.

TENNIS COURT POLICIES

)

()

@)

(4)

()

(6)

Play at your Own Risk. Play at Your Own Risk. The tennis and pickleball courts are not supervised
during operating hours.

First Come Basis. Courts are available for use by Patrons and Guests only on a first come first serve basis.
When other players are waiting, tennis and pickleball court use should be limited to 1 hour.

Attire. All players shall be dressed in appropriate attire, which includes: shirts, tennis shoes, shorts or warm
up suits. These items must be worn at all times. Hard and/or black soled shoes are restricted from the tennis
courts.

Use. Tennis and pickleball courts are for tennis or pickleball only.

Pets. Pets, with the exception of service animals, as defined in the General Provisions, are not permitted on
the tennis or pickleball courts at any time.

Food and Drinks. Food and gum are not permitted on the tennis or pickleball courts. Drinks must be in a
non-breakable spill-proof container.



(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

Glass Containers. No glass containers or breakable objects of any kind are permitted on the tennis or
pickleball courts.

Operating Hours. The tennis and pickleball courts are open from dawn to dusk only, or as otherwise posted
by the District Manager. No one is permitted on the tennis or pickleball courts at any other time unless a
specific event is pre-approved and scheduled.

Skateboards, Etc. No bicycles, scooters, roller skates, roller blades or skateboards, electric bikes, electric
scooters or similar uses are permitted on the tennis or pickleball courts.

Furniture. No furniture, other than benches already provided, will be allowed on the playing surfaces.

Tennis and Pickleball Instruction. Except as expressly authorized by the District, tennis and/or pickleball
instruction for fees, or solicitation of tennis and/or pickleball instruction for fees, is prohibited.

Noise. The volume of live or recorded music must not violate applicable Hillsborough County noise
ordinances, or unreasonably interfere with residents’ enjoyment of their homes

DOG PARK POLICIES

)

(2)
()

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

Use at Your Own Risk. Patrons shall use the Dog Park at their own risk and must comply with all posted
signage. Patrons are responsible for the behavior of their dogs at all times. If any dog shows aggressive
behavior, the owner must immediately remove the dog from the Dog Park. The District is not responsible
for injuries to visiting dogs, their owners, or others using the Dog Park. The Dog Park is exclusively for the
use and enjoyment of Patrons' dogs and should not be used for other activities.

Hours of Operation. Unless otherwise posted, the dog park may be used from sunrise until sunset.

Supervision. Patrons must be capable of exerting physical control over their dog or dogs. Dogs must be off
leash when inside the park. Dogs should be under voice control and continuously supervised with a leash
readily available if necessary. Dogs must be leashed while entering or exiting the Dog Park. No more than
three (3) dogs are permitted per handler.

Reservations not Permitted. The Dog Park is available to all Patrons on a first-come, first-served basis
and cannot be reserved for exclusive use. Play shall be limited to one (1) hour if the Dog Park is at full
occupancy and other Patrons are waiting for entry.

Attire. Proper footwear and clothing should be worn while inside Dog Park.

Food and Toys Prohibited. Any type of food, including dog food and treats, is prohibited at the Dog Park.
Dog toys and bones are not permitted inside the Dog Park.

Vaccinations. Dogs must wear county-issued tags for vaccinations, including, but not limited to, rabies
vaccination as required by law in Florida.

Prohibited. Dogs in heat, dogs with aggressive behavior, and dogs under four (4) months of age are not
permitted in the Dog Park.

Clean Up. Patrons are responsible for removing or cleaning up any trash and must immediately dispose of
dog waste and fill any holes dug by their dog(s).



FITNESS TRAIL POLICIES

)

()

©)

Use at Own Risk. Patrons may use the fitness trail at their own risk and must comply with all posted
signage.

Use. Appropriate trail uses include, but are not limited to, jogging, running, biking, skateboarding,
rollerblading, or just a leisurely stroll. Pedestrians have the right-of-way on the trail. Patrons shall allow
other Patrons utilizing the trail to safely pass on their left-hand side.

Prohibited. No motorized forms of transportation can be used on the trails including but not limited to
electric bicycles, golf carts, etc.

LAKES AND PONDS POLICIES

Lakes and Ponds (used interchangeably and reference to one shall implicate the other) within the District primarily
function as retention ponds to facilitate the District’s system for treatment and attenuation of stormwater run-off
and overflow. As a result, contaminants may be present in the water. These policies are intended to limit contact
with such contaminants and ensure the continued operations of the Ponds while allowing limited recreational use

of the same.

@ Users of District Lakes shall not engage in any conduct or omission that violates any ordinance, resolution,
law, permit requirement or regulation of any governmental entity relating to the District Lakes.

2 Wading and swimming in District Lakes are prohibited.

3 Gasoline-powered or other devices are prohibited on District Lakes.

(@) Subject to the following requirements, Patrons may fish from District Lakes and Ponds.

a. Compliance with State fishing licensure requirements must be met.

b. The District has a “catch and release” policy for all fish caught in District Lakes and Ponds.

c. The following items are prohibited on or near the Lakes and Ponds: spears, large nets, traps, bows
and arrows.

d. To protect the fish and waterfowl, fishing lines must not be left unattended.

e. Accessing Lakes and Ponds through private property between homes is prohibited and can be
considered trespassing.

(5) Pets are not allowed in the District Lakes.

(6) Owners of property lying contiguous to the District Lakes shall take such actions as may be necessary to
remove underbrush, weeds or unsightly growth from the Owner’s property that detract from the overall
beauty, setting and safety of the property.

@) No docks or other structures, whether permanent or temporary, shall be constructed and placed in or around
the District Lakes or other District stormwater management facilities, unless approved by the District prior
to installation.

(8) No pipes, pumps or other devices used for irrigation or the withdrawal of water shall be placed in or around
the District Lakes, except by the District.

€)] No foreign materials may be disposed of in the District Lakes, including, but not limited to: tree branches,

paint, cement, oils, soap suds, building materials, chemicals, fertilizers, or any other material that is not
naturally occurring or which may be detrimental to the Lake environment.



(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

Easements through residential backyards along the community's stormwater management system are for
maintenance purposes only and are not general grants for access for fishing or any other recreational
purpose. Access to residents' backyards via these maintenance easements is prohibited. Unless individual
property owners explicitly grant permission for others to access their backyards, entering their private
property can be considered trespassing. Please be considerate of the privacy rights of other residents.

Beware of wildlife - water moccasins and other snakes, alligators, snapping turtles, birds and other wildlife
which may pose a threat to your safety are commonly found in stormwater management facilities in Florida.
Wildlife may neither be removed from nor released into the District Lakes; notwithstanding the foregoing,
nuisance alligators posing a threat to the health, safety and welfare may be removed by a properly permitted
and licensed nuisance alligator trapper, in accordance with all applicable state and local laws, rules,
ordinances and policies including but not limited to rules promulgated by the Florida Fish and Wildlife
Conservation Commission (“FWC”). Anyone concerned about an alligator is encouraged to call FWC’s
toll-free Nuisance Alligator Hotline at 866-FWC-GATOR (866-392-4286).

Any hazardous condition concerning the District Lakes must immediately be reported to the District
Manager and the proper authorities.

No diving or jumping off of the District dock is permitted.

The Lake St. Charles Community Development District is not responsible for injury or damage to persons
or property, including accidental death, resulting from the use of Lakes or Ponds. All persons, including but
not limited to property owners, Patrons, Guests, and invitees, are using Lakes and Ponds at their own risk.
There are no lifeguards or other safety personnel present at any time. Lakes and Ponds contain wild animals
or other natural or man-made hazards which may result in injury or death. The Lake St. Charles
Community Development District makes no representation that the use of any Lake or Pond is suitable for
recreational boating or fishing. These Policies and procedures are intended only to assist in the orderly and
continued enjoyment of the natural surroundings.

GUEST ACCESS PASS

)

)

©)

(4)

General. Patrons may apply for a Guest Access Pass for individuals that are: (1) residing overnight within
the Patron’s home; or (2) individuals that provide a service to the Patrons, such as babysitting, pet-sitting,
or a function that lends itself to usage of the Amenities. A maximum of two (2) Guest Access Passes may
be issued at one time.

Term.
a. Temporary. Upon issuance, a Guest Access Pass shall be active for fourteen (14) days. Any
extensions may be approved by District Staff upon request.
b. Extended Guest Passes. Extended Guest Access Passes are available for Patron’s nannies,
babysitters, or pet sitters for a maximum of six (6) months.

Issuance. A Patron and the user of the Guest Access Pass must complete the application attached hereto

as Exhibit E. A Guest Access Pass requires a refundable Twenty Dollar ($20) deposit, as outlined in
Exhibit A. In the event the Guest Access Pass is not returned to District Staff within ten (10) days of
expiration, the deposit will be forfeited.

Additional Guests. Individuals utilizing a Guest Access Pass may not bring additional Guests into the
Amenities.



5) Compliance with District Policies. Patrons are responsible for the conduct of the individual using the
Guest Access Pass. Misconduct under these Policies may result in suspension or termination of rights or
forfeiture of future Guest Access Passes.



AMENITY RENTALS

The following policies apply to the rental of the Amenities:

)

()

()

(4)

()

(6)

Patrons Only. Unless otherwise directed by the District, only Patrons may reserve the portions of the
Amenities for parties and events. Rental reservations may not be made more than six (6) months prior to
the event, and payment must be submitted no more than ninety (90) days before the date of the event and
no less than two (2) weeks before the date of the event; however, the District Manager, or their designee,
may, in his or her sole discretion, accept payment up to two (2) business days prior to the rental date. Patrons
interested in the rental of the Amenities must contact the District Manager in order to determine availability
of the Amenities for any particular reservation. All of the District policies remain in force during parties
and events. Patrons renting the Amenities are responsible for ensuring that all Guests and attendees adhere
to the District’s policies.

Amenities Available for Rental. Only the clubhouse is available for rental. Patrons may not rent the
clubhouse on behalf of non-Patrons. All rentals are subject to availability and the discretion of District Staff.
The pool is NOT available for rental and shall remain open to other Patrons and their Guests during normal

operating hours.

Rental Application and Rental Agreement. Patrons must submit a completed Rental Application, a copy
of which is attached hereto as Exhibit D, to the District Manager no later than fourteen (14) days prior to
the date of the requested event, which shall include the date of the event. The Rental Application must
contain the following information, at a minimum: the hours when the event will be held, a description of
the event, the number of attendees that will be attending, and whether alcohol and/or food will be served.
The District Manager will review Rental Applications on a case-by-case basis and has the authority to
reasonably deny a request. Denial of a request may be appealed to the District’s Board of Supervisors for
consideration. Each Patron renting the Amenities must sign and execute a Rental Agreement acceptable to
the District and all documentation required therein must be received by the District Manager no less than
ten (10) days prior to the date of event. Regardless of whether the Rental Agreement is executed, the Patron
is bound by the Rental Agreement, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Payment and Registration. At the time the reservation is made, a check or money order (no cash) made
out to “Lake St. Charles Community Development District” must be delivered to the District Manager,
along with completed paperwork and evidence of required insurances, if necessary.

Rates and Deposits. The rental deposit for use of the Amenities are as set forth in Exhibit A. Deposits will
be returned within ten (10) days of the rental date provided there has been no damage to District property
and the clubhouse has been properly cleaned after use. To receive the full refund of the deposit, the renting
Patron must:

(a) Remove all garbage to the appropriate dumpster and replace garbage liners; and
(b) Remove all decorations or event displays and materials; and
(c) Return all furniture and other items to their original position; and

(d) Otherwise clean the clubhouse and restore it to the pre-rented condition, and to the satisfaction of
District Staff.

Additional Cleaning or Damage. The District may retain all or part of any deposit if the District
determines, in its sole discretion, that it is necessary to perform additional cleaning or to repair any damages
arising from the rental. Should the costs of any such cleaning or repairs exceed the deposit, the District shall



(")
(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

have authority to recover such costs from the renting Patron by any means legally available and may
suspend the renting Patron’s access and use privileges until such Patron pays any such amounts.

Computation of Rental Time. The rental time period is inclusive of set-up and clean-up time.

Duration of Events. Unless otherwise authorized by the District pursuant to a special request, rentals shall
be: (1) day rentals, from 8:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.; (2) even rentals, from 4:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.; or (3) all
day rentals from 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. Rental times are inclusive of set-up and clean-up time. No
exceptions shall be made to allow for set-up or clean-up outside of the rental period. If the event lasts longer
than the rental period, the District shall be authorized to commence amenity suspension proceedings as
outlined in the District’s policies.

Capacity. The clubhouse capacity limit is total persons. The clubhouse capacity of total
persons shall not be exceeded at any time for a party or event.

Noise. The volume of live or recorded music must not violate applicable Hillsborough County noise
ordinances or unreasonably interfere with residents’ enjoyment of their homes.

Insurance. Additional liability insurance coverage will be required for all events that are approved to serve
alcoholic beverages and for other events that the District determines in its sole discretion should require
additional liability insurance. The District and its supervisors, staff, and consultants/contractors are to be
named on these policies as an additional insured party.

Cancellation. Cancellation of the event must be communicated to the District Manager in writing within
twenty-four (24) hours prior to the event date in order for Patron to receive a refund of the deposit.



SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF PRIVILEGES

SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF ACCESS RULE

Law Implemented: ss. 120.69, 190.011, 190.012, Fla. Stat. (2024)
Effective Date:

In accordance with Chapters 190 and 120 of the Florida Statutes, and on ,ataduly
noticed public meeting, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Lake St. Charles Community Development
District (“District”) adopted the following rules and policies to govern disciplinary and enforcement matters.
All prior rules and policies of the District governing this subject matter are hereby rescinded for any
violations occurring after the date stated above.

1 Introduction. This rule addresses disciplinary and enforcement matters relating to the use of the
amenities and other properties owned and managed by the District (each an “Amenity Facility” and together, the
“Amenity Facilities™).

2 General Rule. All persons using the Amenity Facilities and entering District properties are
responsible for compliance with the Policies established for the safe operations of the District’s Amenity Facilities.

3 Access Card. Access Cards are the property of the District. The District may request surrender of,
or may deactivate, an Access Card for violation of the District’s Policies established for the safe operations of the
District’s Amenity Facilities.

4. Suspension and Termination of Rights. The District, through its Board of Supervisors (“Board”),
and District Manager shall have the right to restrict or suspend, and after a hearing as set forth herein, terminate the
Amenity Facilities access of any person, including but not limited to Patrons and members of their household and
their Guests, to use all or a portion of the Amenity Facilities for any of the following acts (each, a “Violation™):

a. Submitting false information on any application for use of the Amenity Facilities, including
but not limited to facility rental applications; or

b. Failing to abide by the terms of rental applications; or

C. Permitting the unauthorized use of an Access Card or otherwise facilitating or allowing
unauthorized access to or use of the Amenity Facilities; or

d. Exhibiting inappropriate behavior or repeatedly wearing inappropriate attire; or

e. Failing to pay amounts owed to the District in a proper and timely manner (with the
exception of special assessments); or

f. Failing to abide by any District rules or policies (e.g., Amenity Policies); or

g. Treating District Staff, contractors, representatives, residents, Patrons or Guests, in a

harassing or abusive manner; or

h. Damaging, destroying, rendering inoperable or interfering with the operation of District
property, Amenity Facilities or other tangible property located on District property; or

I. Failing to reimburse the District for damaged to Amenity Facilities or property damaged
by such person, or a minor for whom the person has charge, or a Guest; or

J. Engaging in conduct that is likely to endanger the health, safety, or welfare of the District,
District Staff, contractors, representatives, landowners, Patrons or Guests; or



K. Committing or being alleged, in good faith, to have committed a crime on District property
that leads the District to reasonably believe the health, safety or welfare of the District,
District Staff, contractors, representatives, landowners, Patrons or Guests is likely
endangered; or

l. Engaging in another Violation after a verbal warning has been given by staff (which verbal
warning is not required); or

m. Such person’s Guest or a member of their household committing any of the above
Violations.

Permanent termination of access to the District’s Amenity Facilities shall only be considered and implemented by
the Board in situations that pose a long term or continuing threat to the health, safety and/or welfare of the District,
District Staff, contractors, representatives, landowners, Patrons or Guests. The Board, in its sole discretion and upon
motion of any Board member, may vote to rescind a termination of access to the Amenity Facilities.

5. Authority of District Staff. District Staff or their designee, may immediately remove any person
from one or all Amenities if any of the above-referenced behaviors are exhibited or actions committed or if in his/her
reasonable discretion it is the District’s best interests to do so. District Staff may at any time restrict or suspend for
cause or causes, including but not limited to those described above, any person’s privileges to use any or all of the
Amenities until the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Supervisors.

6. Process for Suspension or Termination of Access and Use Privileges. Subject to the rights of
District Staff set forth in Paragraph (3) above, the following process shall govern suspension and termination of
privileges:

a. Offenses:

(i)  First Offense: Verbal warning by District Staff and suspension from the Amenities for
up to one (1) week from the commencement of the suspension. Violation is recorded
by District Staff, signed by the individual offender(s), and held on file by the District.

(i)  Second Offense: Automatic suspension of all Amenity privileges for up to thirty (30)
days from the commencement of the suspension, with the preparation by District Staff
of a written report to be signed by the offender(s) and filed with the District.

(iii)  Third Offense: Suspension of all Amenity privileges for up to one (1) year. Such
suspension shall run to the next regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors. At said
meeting, the record of all previous offenses will be presented to the Board for
recommendation of termination of the offender(s) privileges for one (1) calendar year.
The length of the suspension is in the discretion of the Board and may be for less than
one (1) year.

b. Each offense shall expire one (1) year after such offense was committed, at which time the
number of offenses on record for such offender(s) shall be reduced by one. For example, if a
first offense is committed on February 1 and a second offense on August 1, there will be two
offenses on record until February 1 of the following year, at which time the first offense will
expire and the second offense will thereafter be considered a first offense until it expires on the
following August 1. The provisions of this Paragraph shall not at any time serve to reduce any
suspensions or terminations, which may have been imposed prior to the expiration of any
offenses.

¢. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any time a user of the Amenity is arrested for an act committed,
or allegedly committed, while on the premises of the Amenity, or violates these Policies in a
manner that, in the discretion of the District Staff upon consultation with one Board member,
justifies suspension beyond the guidelines set forth above, such offender shall have all amenity



privileges immediately suspended until the next Board of Supervisors meeting. At the Board
meeting, the Board will be presented with the facts surrounding the arrest or violation and the
Board may make a recommendation of suspension or termination of the offender’s privileges,
which suspension or termination may include members of the offender’s Household and may,
upon the first offense, equal or exceed one year. In situations that pose a long-term or
continuing threat to the health, safety and welfare of the District and its residents and users,
permanent termination of Amenity privileges may be warranted and considered.

d. Any suspension or termination of Amenity privileges may be appealed to the Board of
Supervisors for reversal or reduction. The Board’s decision on appeal shall be final and binding.

6. Administrative Reimbursement. The Board may, in its discretion, require payment of an
administrative reimbursement of up to One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) in order to offset the actual legal and/or
administrative expenses incurred by the District as a result of a Violation (“Administrative Reimbursement”). Such
Administrative Reimbursement shall be in addition to any suspension or termination of Amenity Facility access,
any applicable legal action warranted by the circumstances, and/or any Property Damage Reimbursement (defined
below).

7. Property Damage Reimbursement. If damage to District property or Amenity Facilities occurred
in connection with a Violation, the person or persons who caused the damage, or the person whose guest caused the
damage, or the person who has charge of a minor that caused the damage, shall reimburse the District for the costs
of cleaning, repairing, and/or replacing the property (“Property Damage Reimbursement”). Such Property Damage
Reimbursement shall be in addition to any suspension or termination of Amenity Facility access, any applicable
legal action warranted by the circumstances, and/or any Administrative Reimbursement.

8. Initial Hearing by the Board; Administrative Reimbursement; Property Damage
Reimbursement.

a. If a person’s Amenity Facilities privileges are suspended, as referenced in Section 6, such
person shall be entitled to a hearing at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting that is at
least eight (8) calendar days after the initial suspension, as evidenced by the date of notice sent
by certified electronic or other mail service or as soon thereafter as a Board meeting is held if
the meeting referenced in the letter is canceled, during which both District Staff and the person
subject to the suspension shall be given the opportunity to appear, present testimony and
evidence, cross examine witnesses present, and make arguments. The Board may also ask
questions of District Staff, the person subject to the suspension, and witnesses present. All
persons are entitled to be represented by a licensed Florida attorney at such hearing if they so
choose. Any written materials should be submitted at least seven (7) days before the hearing
for consideration by the Board. If the date of the suspension is less than eight (8) days before a
Board meeting, the hearing may be scheduled for the following Board meeting at the discretion
of the person subject to the suspension.

b. The person subject to the suspension may request an extension of the hearing date to a future
Board meeting, which shall be granted upon a showing of good cause, but such extension shall
not stay the suspension.

C. After the presentations by District Staff, witnesses and the person subject to the suspension,
the Board shall consider the facts and circumstances and determine whether to lift or extend
the suspension or impose a termination. In determining the length of any suspension, or a
termination, the Board shall consider the nature of the conduct, the circumstances of the
conduct, the number of rules or policies violated, the person’s escalation or de-escalation of
the situation, and any prior Violations and/or suspensions.



d. The Board shall also determine whether an Administrative Reimbursement is warranted and,
if so, set the amount of such Administrative Reimbursement.

e. The Board shall also determine whether a Property Damage Reimbursement is warranted and,
if so, set the amount of such Property Damage Reimbursement. If the cost to clean, repair
and/or replace the property is not yet available, the Property Damage Reimbursement shall be
fixed at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting after the cost to clean, repair, and/or replace
the property is known.

f.  After the conclusion of the hearing, the District Manager or his or her designee shall mail a
letter to the person suspended identifying the Board’s determination at such hearing.

9. Suspension by the Board. The Board on its own initiative acting at a noticed public meeting may
elect to consider a suspension of a person’s access for committing any of the Violations outlined in Section 4. In
such circumstances, a letter shall be sent to the person suspended which contains all the information required by
Section 5, and the hearing shall be conducted in accordance with Section 8.

10. Automatic Extension of Suspension for Non-Payment. Unless there is an affirmative vote of
the Board otherwise, no suspension or termination will be lifted or shall expire until all Administrative
Reimbursements and Property Damage Reimbursements have been paid to the District. If an Administrative
Reimbursement or Property Damage Reimbursement is not paid by its due date, the District reserves the right to
request surrender of, or to deactivate, all Access Cards associated with the associated address within the District
until such time as the outstanding amounts are paid.

11. Appeal of Board Suspension. After the hearing held by the Board required by Section 8, a person
subject to a suspension or termination may appeal the suspension or termination, or the assessment or amount of an
Administrative Reimbursement or Property Damage Reimbursement, to the Board by filing a written request for an
appeal (“Appeal Request”). The filing of an Appeal Request shall not result in the stay of the suspension or
termination. The Appeal Request shall be filed within thirty (30) calendar days after mailing the notice of the
Board’s determination as required by Section 8(f), above. For purposes of this Rule, wherever applicable, filing will
be perfected and deemed to have occurred upon receipt by the District. Failure to file an Appeal Request shall
constitute a waiver of all rights to protest the District’s suspension or termination and shall constitute a failure to
exhaust administrative remedies. The District shall consider the appeal at a Board meeting and shall provide
reasonable notice to the person of the Board meeting where the appeal will be considered. At the appeal stage, no
new evidence shall be offered or considered. Instead, the appeal is an opportunity for the person subject to the
suspension or termination to argue, based on the evidence elicited at the hearing, why the suspension or termination
should be reduced or vacated. The Board may take any action deemed by it, in its sole discretion, to be appropriate
under the circumstances, including affirming, overturning, or otherwise modifying the suspension or termination.
The Board’s decision on appeal shall be final.

12. Legal Action; Criminal Prosecution; Trespass. If any person is found to have committed a
Violation, such person may additionally be subject to arrest for trespassing or other applicable legal action, civil or
criminal in nature. If a person subject to suspension or termination is found at the Amenity Facilities, such person
will be subject to arrest for trespassing. If a trespass warrant is issued to a person by a law enforcement agency, the
District has no obligation to seek a withdrawal or termination of the trespass warrant even though the issuance of
the trespass warrant may effectively prevent a person from using the District’s Amenity Facilities after expiration
of a suspension imposed by the District.

13. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Rule shall be held to be invalid
or ineffective for any reason, the remainder of this Rule shall continue in full force and effect, it being expressly
hereby found and declared that the remainder of this Rule would have been adopted despite the invalidity or
ineffectiveness of such section, paragraph, clause or provision.



PROPERTY DAMAGE

Each Patron shall be liable for any property damage at the Amenities caused by him or her, his or her Guests, or
members of his or her Household. The District reserves the right to pursue any and all legal and equitable
measures necessary to remedy any losses due to property damage.

Each Patron and Guest, as a condition of invitation to the premises of the Amenities, assumes sole responsibility
for his or her property. The District shall not be responsible for the loss or damage to any private property used or
stored on the premises of the Amenities, whether in lockers or elsewhere.

USE AT OWN RISK; INDEMNIFICATION

Any Patron or other person who participates in the Activities (as defined below), shall do so at his or her
own risk, and said Patron or other person and any of his or her Guests and any members of his or her
Household shall indemnify, defend, release, hold harmless and forever discharge the District and its
present, former and future supervisors, staff, officers, employees, representatives, agents and contractors
of each (together, “Indemnitees”), for any and all liability, claims, lawsuits, actions, suits or demands,
whether known or unknown, in law or equity, by any individual of any age, or any corporation or other
entity, for any and all loss, injury, damage, theft, real or personal property damage, expenses (including
attorneys’ fees, costs and other expenses for investigation and defense and in connection with, among other
proceedings, alternative dispute resolution, trial court and appellate proceedings), and harm of any kind
or nature arising out of or in connection with his or her participation in the Activities, regardless of
determination of who may be wholly or partially at fault.

Should any Patron or other person bring suit against the Indemnitees in connection with the Activities or
relating in any way to the Amenities, and fail to obtain judgment therein against the Indemnitees, said
Patron or other person shall be liable to the District for all attorneys’ fees, costs and other expenses for
investigation and defense and in connection with, among other proceedings, alternative dispute resolution,
trial court, and appellate proceedings.

The waiver of liability contained herein does not apply to any act of intentional, willful or wanton
misconduct by the Indemnitees.

For purposes of this section, the term “Activities” shall mean the use of or acceptance of the use of the
Amenities, or engagement in any contest, game, function, exercise, competition, sport, event or other

activity operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the District, its contractors or third parties
authorized by the District.

SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY

Nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity, or limitations
on liability contained in Section 768.28, F.S., or other statutes or law.

SEVERABILITY

The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions of these policies shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of the remaining provisions, or any part of the policies not held to be invalid or unenforceable.



AMENDMENTS AND WAIVERS

The Board in its sole discretion may amend these Amenity Policies from time to time. The Board by vote at a
public meeting or the District Manager may elect in its/their sole discretion at any time to grant waivers to any of
the provisions of these Amenity Policies, provided however that the Board is informed within a reasonable time
of any such waivers.

The above Amenity Policies and Rates were adopted on , 2025, by the Board of
Supervisors for the Lake St. Charles Community Development District, at a duly noticed public hearing and
meeting.

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

Exhibit A: Amenity Rates

Exhibit B: Amenity Access Registration Form

Exhibit C: Assignment of Amenity Rights and Privileges
Exhibit D: Amenity Rental Application

Exhibit E: Guest Access Agreement



ExHIBIT A
AMENITY RATES

TYPE RATE DEPOSIT
Annual Non-Resident User Fee $1,000 - $5,000 N/A
Additional/Replacement Access Card $25.00 N/A
Returned Check/Insufficient Funds Fee | $50.00 N/A
Clubhouse Rental — Day or Evening N/A $85.00
Clubhouse Rental — All Day N/A $115.00

*Any electronic payments remitted to the District may require payment of additional associated processing

fees.




ExHIBITB
AMENITIES ACCESS REGISTRATION FORM



LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
AMENITIES ACCESS REGISTRATION FORM

NAME:

ADDRESS:

HOME TELEPHONE: CELL PHONE:

EMAIL ADDRESS:

ADDITIONAL RESIDENT 1: DOB IF UNDER 18

ADDITIONAL RESIDENT 2: DOB IF UNDER 18

ADDITIONAL RESIDENT 3: DOB IF UNDER 18

ADDITIONAL RESIDENT 4: DOB IF UNDER 18

ADDITIONAL RESIDENT 5: DOB IF UNDER 18
ACCEPTANCE:

I acknowledge receipt of the Access Card (s) for the above listed residents and that the above information is true and correct. | understand
that I have willingly provided all the information requested above and that it may be used by the Lake St. Charles Community Development
District (“District”) for various purposes. | also understand that by providing this information that it may be accessed under public
records laws. | also understand that | am financially responsible for any damages caused by me, my family members or my guests and the
damages resulting from the loss or theft of my or my family members’ Access Card (s). It is understood that Access Card s are the property
of the District and are non-transferable except in accordance with the District’s rules, policies and/or regulations, and any necessary
replacement will be at an applicable Replacement Access Card fee. In consideration for the admittance of the above listed persons and their
guests into the facilities owned and operated by the District, | agree to hold harmless and release the District, its supervisors, agents, officers,
professional staff and employees from any and all liability for any injuries that might occur, whether such occurrence happens wholly or in
part by me or my family members’ or guests’ fault, in conjunction with the use of any of the District’s Amenity Facilities (as defined in the
District’s Amenity Policies & Rates), as well while on the District’s property. Nothing herein shall be considered as a waiver of the District’s
sovereign immunity or limits of liability beyond any statutory limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted
by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28 Florida Statutes or other statute.

Signature of Patron (Parent or Legal Guardian if Minor) Date

AFFIDAVIT OF RESIDENCY: (REQUIRED IF LEGAL FORM OF PROOF OF RESIDENCY NOT PROVIDED)

I hereby state that the address listed above is the bona fide residence for all residents listed in this Amenities Access Registration Form and
that such address is located within the Lake St. Charles Community Development District. | acknowledge that a false statement in this
affidavit may subject me to penalties for making a false statement pursuant to Section 837.06, Florida Statutes. | declare that | have read
the foregoing and the facts alleged are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Signature of Patron
State of Florida

County of

The foregoing was acknowledged before me by means of O physical presence or O online notarization this day of ,20__, by
who is [ ] personally known to me or [ ] produced as identification.

(NOTARY SEAL)

Official Notary Public Signature




RECEIPT OF DISTRICT’S AMENITY POLICIES AND RATES:

I acknowledge that I have been provided a copy of and understand the terms in the Amenity Policies and Rates of the Lake St.
Charles Community Development District.

Signature of Patron Date
(Parent or Legal Guardian if minor)

GUEST POLICY:

Please refer to the Amenity Policies and Rates for the most current policies regarding guests.

PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO:
Lake St. Charles Community Development District
Attn: Amenity Access Team

Answering Service:
Email:

OFFICE USE ONLY:

Date Received Date Entered in System Staff Member Signature

PRIMARY RESIDENT: Access Card #

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

Phase - Phase - Phase -
New Construction: Re-Sale: Prior Owner:
Rental: Landlord/Owner:

Lease Term: Tenant/Renter:



mailto:amenityaccess@gmscfl.com

ExHiBITC
ASSIGNMENT OF AMENITY RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES

Instructions: All capitalized terms are as defined in the District’s Amended and Restated Amenity Policies and Rates.
This form must be completed in its entirety and returned to the District Manager or District Staff, as applicable, in
order for amenity access privileges to be granted to any Renter. The form must be completed and signed by all owners
and co-owners of the subject property and witnessed. Signatures of agents or property managers acting on behalf of

the owner will not be accepted unless accompanied by a properly executed Power of Attorney document granting
specific authority to sign the owners’ names for this purpose. Upon acceptance of this properly completed document,
any Access Cards previously issued to the Household will be deactivated and listed Renters become eligible to apply
for Access Cards for the designated lease period.

On this date , the owners of the property located at:

(“Property”) state:

1.

Owners of the Property, by their signatures below, attest the existence of a lawful tenancy with effective dates
beginning (date) terminating (date) . If length of tenancy
is month to month or of an indefinite duration, this Assignment will only be effective for a three (3) month
period and after that must be renewed.

Owners wish to transfer the rights and privileges to the use and enjoyment of the Amenities within the District
to Renters.

Upon this transfer, Owners acknowledge their Access Devices will be deactivated as of the date of such
transfer.

Upon this transfer, Renters acknowledge they must obtain their Access Devices from the District and that
Renters have received or have reviewed a copy of the Amenity Policies and Rates, dated
, 202 , and updated from time to time, to which they agree to follow and shall be
responsible for obtaining the Access Cards from the District and completing required forms.

Owners acknowledge that nothing in this assignment has any effect on their responsibilities as the owners of
the Property to timely pay all Lake St. Charles Community Development District fees and special
assessments.

Renters acknowledge at the end of their tenancy, their Access Cards will be deactivated as of the date their
tenancy ends. In the case of a month to month tenancy or a tenancy of indefinite duration acknowledge that
their Access Cards will be deactivated after three (3) months but may be renewed by a further assignment by
the Owners.

Owners and Renters acknowledge that this document is subject to public review under Chapter 119, Florida
Statutes (Florida’s Public Records Laws).

Owner Signature (required) Witness Signature (required)
Owner Printed Name (required) Witness Printed Name (required)
Co-Owner (if any) Signature (required) Witness Signature (required)

Co-Owner (if any) Printed Name (required) Witness Printed Name (required)



EXHIBIT D
AMENITY RENTAL APPLICATION

LAKE ST. CHARLES AMENITY USE AGREEMENT

Lake St. Charles Community Development District (“District”) and the undersigned Resident(s)
(“Responsible Party”) hereby agree on the use of the District’s clubhouse as specified below at no cost,
subject to the terms and conditions herein.

RESIDENT/RESPONSIBLE PARTY INFORMATION:
NAME:

ADDRESS:

PHONE NO. EMAIL:

FUNCTION INFORMATION:

TYPE OF FUNCTION:

FUNCTION DAY & DATE:

START TIME: END TIME:

*The scheduled time is inclusive of set-up and clean-up time.

ESTIMATED NUMBER OF ATTENDEES: CATERING SERVICES TO BE USED (Y/N)?

NOTE: The Responsible Party agrees to leave the clubhouse in the same condition as prior to event. The
following must be done immediately upon its conclusion:
i Remove all garbage to the appropriate dumpster and replace garbage liners; and
ii. Remove all decorations or event displays and materials; and
iii. Return all furniture and other items to their original position; and
iv. Otherwise clean the clubhouse and restore it to the pre-rented condition, and to the
satisfaction of District Staff.

I have read and agree to the terms outlined for clubhouse as indicated in the District’s
Amenity Policies and Rates. By initialing above Responsible Party agrees to remit the required payment as
a deposit. The deposit may be refunded subject to conditions of the Amenities after the event.

The Responsible Party acknowledges that they have read and understand the District’s Amenity Policies
and Rates and the Additional Provisions located on the reverse side of this Agreement, and that it
correctly states their intentions.

RESIDENT(S)/RESPONSIBLE PARTY LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Signature Date Manager Date
OFFICE USE
DEPOSIT: $ (check) or $ + associated non-refundable fees (e-payment)
RECEIVED BY: CSH/CHK NO.:
E-PAYMENT:

DATE DEPOSIT RECEIVED:




)

)

©)

(4)
()

(6)
(7)
(8)

(9)

(10)

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

Reservations for rental of the Lake St. Charles Community Development District’s covered
picnic areas at the park and playground, or multi-purpose field can be made online and are on a
first come first serve basis for resident functions. Reservations must be made by at least one
Patron of the District who will act as the Responsible Party.

Rental of the covered picnic areas at the pool or park includes the use of the picnic area, tables,
chairs and restrooms only. Use of other equipment or the pool is not permitted and is expressly
prohibited.

Amenity rentals are available to be used for events for a maximum of four (4) hours per event,
or such extended period if special arrangements have been approved by District Manager in
writing prior to the event. Rental time frames are inclusive of set-up and break-down times with
the Amenities cleared of all attendees.

The event must be contained within the area reserved.

The volume of live or recorded music must not violate applicable Hillsborough County noise
ordinances or unreasonably interfere with residents’ enjoyment of their homes.

The Responsible Party must be present at the function during the entire period of the rental.
No admission fees whatsoever shall be collected by any person.

Responsible Party shall be responsible for walls, furnishings, fixtures and equipment in the
clubhouse and agrees that, after the event, those items shall be in the same condition as prior to
the event (ordinary wear and tear accepted). Tacks or nails may not be used for decorations. If
there is any damage and/or loss to the walls, furnishings, fixtures, or equipment resulting from,
or related to the event or its attendees, then the cost associated with the repair or replacement of
the damaged items shall be the responsibility of and paid by the Responsible Party.

Responsible Party shall supervise and be responsible for the conduct and safety of all persons
attending the event. The District shall not be responsible for property, supplies or equipment
brought by the Responsible Party or any person attending the event. The Responsible Party and
persons attending the event use District facilities at their own risk. The District reserves the right
to retain a security guard or guards for the event at Responsible Party’s sole expense if the
District, in its sole and unrestricted discretion, deems it necessary.

Responsible Party is required to remit a refundable deposit for use of the requested amenities no
less than fourteen (14) days prior to the event. If the Responsible Party remits payment by
electronic means, additional fees to facilitate the electronic transaction will be non-refundable.



EXHIBIT E
GUEST ACCESS PASS APPLICATION

LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
AMENITIES ACCESS REGISTRATION FORM

RESIDENT NAME:

ADDRESS:

HOME TELEPHONE: CELL PHONE:

EMAIL ADDRESS:

GUEST ACCESS PASS HOLDER 1: DOB IF UNDER 18
ADDRESS:
HOME TELEPHONE: CELL PHONE:

EMAIL ADDRESS:

GUEST ACCESS PASS HOLDER 2: DOB IF UNDER 18
ADDRESS:
HOME TELEPHONE: CELL PHONE:

EMAIL ADDRESS:

ACCEPTANCE:

I acknowledge receipt of the Guest Access Pass (es) for the above listed individuals and that the above information is true and correct. |
understand that | have willingly provided all the information requested above and that it may be used by the Lake St. Charles Community
Development District (“District”) for various purposes. | also understand that by providing this information that it may be accessed
under public records laws. 1 also understand that | am financially responsible for any damages caused by me, my family members or my
guests and the damages resulting from the loss or theft of my or my family members” Guest Access Pass (es). It is understood that Guest
Access Passes are the property of the District and are non-transferable except in accordance with the District’s rules, policies and/or
regulations, and any necessary replacement will be at an applicable Replacement Access Card fee. In consideration for the admittance of the
above listed persons and their guests into the facilities owned and operated by the District, | agree to hold harmless and release the District,
its supervisors, agents, officers, professional staff and employees from any and all liability for any injuries that might occur, whether such
occurrence happens wholly or in part by me or my family members’ or guests’ fault, in conjunction with the use of any of the District’s
Amenity Facilities (as defined in the District’s Amenity Policies & Rates), as well while on the District’s property. Nothing herein shall be
considered as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity or limits of liability beyond any statutory limited waiver of immunity or limits
of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28 Florida Statutes or other statute.

Signature of Patron (Parent or Legal Guardian if Minor) Date

Signature of Guest Access Pass Holder (Parent or Legal Guardian if Minor) Date




RECEIPT OF DISTRICT’S AMENITY POLICIES AND RATES:

I acknowledge that I have been provided a copy of and understand the terms in the Amenity Policies and Rates of the Lake St.
Charles Community Development District.

Signature of Patron (Parent or Legal Guardian if Minor) Date

Signature of Guest Access Pass Holder (Parent or Legal Guardian if Minor) Date

PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO:
Lake St. Charles Community Development District
Attn: Amenity Access Team

Answering Service:
Email:

OFFICE USE ONLY:

Date Received Date Entered in System Staff Member Signature

PRIMARY RESIDENT: Access Card #

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

Phase - Phase - Phase -
New Construction: Re-Sale: Prior Owner:
Rental: Landlord/Owner:

Lease Term: Tenant/Renter:




Tab 3



1.

Seawall and Dock Encroachment Policy
Effective:

If a resident desires to install seawall or dock improvements on property owned by or within easements
of the Lake St. Charles Community Development District (“District”), the resident must:

a. Submit a written variance request to the District Manager or his or her designee prior to
commencement of such installation. The request must be made by the owner of the property
and must contain, at a minimum, the following information:

i. The contact information of the person making the variance request;
ii. The lot number or street address of the lot on which the improvement is to be installed;
iii. A description of the improvement(s) to be installed,
iv. A diagram showing the proposed location of the improvement(s);
v. The requested commencement date of the installation of said improvement(s);
Vi. A copy of the homeowners’ association submitted architectural committee form;
vii. A copy of the homeowners' association approval letter;

viii. A copy of the approval letter from the Hillsborough County Environmental Protection
Commission; and

iX. Sketches of the proposed improvement, including dimensions and relative position
with respect to the applicant’s property and any immediately adjacent properties.

b. Reimburse the District for all costs it incurs in processing the variance request. Costs are
anticipated to fall within the range of $0 - $2,000, depending on the request. Additional fees
may be required if external consultants or special reviews are needed.

The District Engineer shall review the variance request to determine if the proposed improvement(s)
would have a negative impact on any District improvements, including the stormwater management
system. Such review may include, in the District Engineer’s discretion, conducting an in-person site
inspection. The District Engineer shall recommend one of the following actions:

a. Approve the variance request, with or without conditions; or
b. Deny the variance request.

If the District Engineer recommends approving the request, District staff shall coordinate execution of
a variance agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Attachment A, unless other
considerations necessitate denying the request, with such revisions as may be deemed necessary and
approved by District Counsel, in consultation with District staff. The District reserves the right to deny
any request, even if recommended for approval by the District Engineer, if other considerations warrant
such denial. Upon execution of the agreement, District staff shall record the agreement in the Official
Records of Hillsborough County. At the conclusion of the installation of any approved improvements,
the District Engineer shall conduct a post-installation review to certify that the improvements do not
exceed the scope of the approval.

If the District Engineer recommends denying the request, District staff shall notify the applicant that
the variance request was denied and that the proposed improvements may not be installed on the District
property or within the District easements.

There shall be no requirement to bring the variance request before the Board of Supervisors for
approval, unless extraordinary circumstances warrant Board consideration.

The District’s approval of a variance request constitutes approval from the District only. The resident
is responsible for obtaining any other necessary approvals, permits and authorizations, including but



not limited to approvals from any homeowners’ association, Hillsborough County, and any other
entities having an interest in the property, as applicable.

If improvements are constructed on District property or within a District easement without prior
approval, including improvements that exceed the scope of any prior approval, the District reserves the
right to require the resident to remove, relocate, or modify the improvement(s) at the resident’s sole
expense. If the resident is unresponsive to the District’s requests, the District may remove said
improvement(s) on its own and charge the resident the cost of said removal. The District also reserves
the right to take any appropriate legal action to enforce its rights under this policy or to collect any costs
due.

If improvements are constructed with approval on District property or within a District easement but at
some point, in the future, said improvements threaten the health, safety or welfare of residents or
District improvements, the District will make every reasonable effort to contact the landowner to work
to resolve the issues but may, in its reasonable discretion, modify or remove the landowner’s
improvements immediately to protect said interests.



Attachment A
After recording, please return to:

District Manager

Lake St. Charles Community Development District
c/o Rizzetta & Company, Inc.

3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200

Tampa, Florida 33614

Folio # 073991-3822

LICENSE AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT FOR INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF
IMPROVEMENTS

THIS LICENSE AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT FOR IMPROVEMENTS INSTALLATION AND
MAINTENANCE (""AGREEMENT"") IS MADE EFFECTIVE AS OF THE LAST DATE OF EXECUTION BY THE
PARTIES HERETO, by and among the (“Owner”) owner of

, and the LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(“District”), a local unit of special-purpose government created pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes,
with a mailing address of c/o Rizzetta & Company, Inc., 3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200, Tampa, Florida
33614.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Owner is the owner of Lot , Block __, as per the plat of
recorded in Plat Book _ , Page _ , et seq., of tr the Official Records of Hillsborough County, FIorlda
(“Property”); and

WHEREAS, Owner desires to install and maintain (“Improvements™) on
District property abutting Lake St. Charles, with a Folio number 073988-5000, and abutting said Property
(“License Area”), as more particularly described and depicted in Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein by this reference; and

WHEREAS, due to the District’s legal interests in the License Area, among other reasons, Owner
requires the District’s consent before constructing improvements within any portion of the License Area;
and

WHEREAS, the District desires to grant Owner a non-exclusive construction and access easement
on, upon, over, under, across, and through the License Area for the sole purpose of constructing and
maintaining the Improvements; and

WHEREAS, the District has agreed to consent to the installation of the Improvements within the
License Area, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

Now, THEREFORE, in consideration of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, it is understood and
agreed as follows:



1. RECITALS. The recitals set forth above are acknowledged as true and correct and are
incorporated herein by reference.

2. GRANT OF EASEMENT. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the District does hereby
grant, bargain, sell and convey to Owner a non-exclusive easement on, upon, over, under, across and
through the License Area for access, ingress, egress and to allow Owner to complete the design,
construction, installation, and maintenance of the Improvements.

3. OWNER RESPONSIBILITIES and Obligations.  The Owner has the following
responsibilities:

a. The Owner shall be solely responsible, at Owner's sole cost and expense, for the
proper installation, operation, repair and maintenance of the Improvements in accordance with all
applicable laws, regulations, and industry standards.

b. Prior to installation of the Improvements, the Owner shall be responsible for
coordinating an on-site meeting with a designee of the District, who shall be the District Engineer,
to confirm the site plan for installation of the Improvements, and such designee of the District, is
authorized to identify and designate any areas of District property that may not be interfered with
or altered by installation of the Improvements. Owner shall provide at least seven (7) days advance
written notice to schedule such meeting.

C. The Owner shall be responsible for ensuring that the installation, operation and
maintenance of the Improvements are conducted in compliance with all applicable laws (including
but not limited to building codes, set back requirements, applicable environmental regulations,
etc.).

d. District, by entering into this Agreement, does not represent that District has
authority to provide all necessary approvals for the installation of the Improvements. Instead, the
Owner shall be responsible for obtaining any and all applicable permits and approvals relating to
the work (including but not limited to any approvals of the Southwest Florida Water Management
District, Hillsborough County, Florida, and any and all other necessary permits and approvals).

e. The Owner shall ensure that the installation, operation and maintenance of the
Improvements does not damage any property of District or any third party’s property, and, in the
event of any such damage, the Owner shall immediately repair the damage or compensate the
District for such repairs, at the District’s option.

f. The Owner shall be responsible for the removal of all construction materials,
including turbidity barriers, following completion of installation of the Improvements.

g. Owner’s exercise of rights hereunder shall not interfere with District’s rights to the
License Area, or with any other applicable permits or rights. Further, the Improvements shall be
installed in such a manner as to not interfere with or damage any District owned assets, including
but not limited to District lake banks, littorals, erosion control materials, lake floor and contour,
and any lake improvements that may be located within the lake, or any utilities within the public
utility easement, if any. It shall be Owner’s responsibility to relocate littoral plantings, and to locate
and identify any such erosion control materials and stormwater improvements and/or utilities.
Further, the Owner shall, at Owner's sole expense, engage a licensed and insured professional
contractor to mark and document any existing improvements and/or utilities prior to installation of



the Improvements, and shall provide documentation of such markings to the District prior to
beginning installation.

h. Upon completion of the installation, the Improvements shall be owned by the
Owner.  Owner shall be responsible for the operation, maintenance and repair of any such
Improvements, and agrees to maintain the Improvements in good and working condition at all
times. Owner shall conduct inspections of the Improvements at least annually and provide written
documentation of such inspections to the District upon request.

i. Additionally, the Owner shall keep the License Area free from any materialmen’s
or mechanic’s liens and claims or notices in respect to such liens and claims, which arise by reason
of the Owner’s exercise of rights under this Agreement, and the Owner shall immediately discharge
any such claim or lien.

4. REMOVAL AND/OR REPLACEMENT OF IMPROVEMENTS. The permission granted herein
is given to Owner as an accommodation and is revocable by the District upon thirty (30) days written notice
to Owner, or immediately upon Owner's breach of any term of this Agreement. Owner acknowledges the
legal interest of the District in the License Area described above and agrees never to deny such interest or
to interfere in any way with District’s use. Owner shall exercise the privilege granted herein at Owner’s
own risk and agrees that Owner shall never claim and hereby waives any such claim of damages against
District for any injuries or damages suffered on account of the exercise of such privilege, regardless of the
fault or negligence of the District. Owner shall be obligated to remove, repair or replace abandoned or
damaged Improvements. Should Owner fail to remove, repair or replace abandoned or damaged
Improvements, Owner acknowledges that, without notice, the District may remove all, or any portion or
portions, of the Improvements installed upon the License Area at Owner’s expense, and that the District is
not obligated to re-install the Improvements to its original location and is not responsible for any damage
to the Improvements, or its supporting structure as a result of the removal.

5. TERMINATION. Failure to abide by any of the foregoing conditions may constitute grounds
for termination of this Agreement, in the District’s sole discretion, and the District may terminate this
Agreement upon a written notice to the Owner and recording such termination notice in the Official Records
of Hillsborough County, Florida. In the event the Owner removes the Improvements in their entirety,
Owner may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the District and record such termination in the
Official Records of Hillsborough County, Florida.

6. INSURANCE. The Owner shall keep and maintain general comprehensive liability
insurance coverage with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate,
throughout the term of this Agreement. The District and its supervisors, officers, staff, representatives and
agents shall be named as additional insured parties to such policy. The Owner shall furnish the District
with written evidence that such insurance coverage is in full force and effect prior to starting work.

7. INDEMNIFICATION. Owner agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Hillsborough
County, the District, and Southwest Florida Water Management District, as well as any officers,
supervisors, staff, agents and representatives, and successors and assigns, of the foregoing, against any and
all claims, actions, losses, costs, damages, liabilities and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees at
all tribunal levels) resulting from, arising out of, or in any way connected with, this Agreement or the
exercise of the privileges granted hereunder.

8. SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed as a waiver of
immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond any statutory limited waiver of immunity or limits of
liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or



other statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to expand the District's liability beyond such
statutory limits, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose
of allowing any claim which would otherwise be barred under the doctrine of sovereign immunity or by
operation of law.

9. ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS. The prevailing party in any litigation to enforce the terms
of this Agreement shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs.

10. DESIGNATION. The District hereby designates the District Manager to act as the District’s
representative, who shall be given authority to execute this Agreement.

11. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts. Any
party hereto may join into this Agreement by executing any one counterpart. All counterparts when taken
together shall constitute but one and the same instrument constituting this Agreement.

12. PuBLIC RECORDS. The Owner acknowledges that the District is a public entity subject to
the Florida Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and as such, any documents or records,
including emails, related to this Agreement, may be subject to public disclosure. Owner agrees to cooperate
with the District in responding to any public records requests that involve this Agreement, and to maintain
any required records in accordance with applicable law. If Owner believes any records are exempt from
disclosure, it shall clearly identify those records and provide the legal basis for the exemption, provided,
however, that the District shall be the final arbiter of whether any such records are exempt from public
disclosure.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE BLANK, SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]



IN WITNESS THEREOF, parties have caused these presents to be executed on the day and
year first written above.

WITNESSES: OWNER

By:

Print Name

Witness’s Address

Print Name

Witness’s Address

STATE OF FLORIDA )
COUNTY OF )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of O physical presence or O online
notarization, this day of , 2025, by

(Official Notary Signature & Seal)
Name:

Personally Known

OR Produced ldentification

Type of Identification

[LICENSE AGREEMENT SIGNATURE PAGE 1 OF 2]



WITNESSES: LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

, Chairperson

Board of Supervisors

Print Name

Witness’s Address

Print Name

Witness’s Address

STATE OF FLORIDA )
COUNTY OF )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of O physical presence or O
online notarization, this day of , 2025, by as Chairperson
of the Board of Supervisors for Lake St. Charles Community Development District.

(Official Notary Signature & Seal)
Name:
Personally Known
OR Produced Identification
Type of Identification

[LICENSE AGREEMENT SIGNATURE PAGE 3 OF 3]



EXHIBIT A
(See attached plans and specifications for [Seawall/Dock] Installation)
Proposed Improvements and License Area



Tab 4A



LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
AMENDED AND RESTATED
RULES RELATING TO PARKING ENFORCEMENT

In accordance with Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, and on , 2025, at a duly
noticed public meeting, the Board of Supervisors of the Lake St. Charles Community Development
District (“District”) adopted the following policy to govern parking and parking enforcement on
certain District property (the “Rule” or “Policy”). This Rule repeals and supersedes all prior rules
and/or policies governing the same subject matter.

SECTION 1. INTRODUCTION. The District finds that Oversized Vehicles, Vessels Recreational
Vehicles, and Abandoned/Broken-Down Vehicles Parked on certain of its property cause hazards and
danger to the health, safety and welfare of District residents, paid users and the public. This Rule is intended
to provide the District with a means to remove such Oversized Vehicles, Vessels, Recreational Vehicles,
and Abandoned/Broken-Down Vehicles which are Parked in a manner which violates this Rule. This Rule
does not govern Parking on private residential lots.

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS.

A Vehicle. Any mobile item which normally uses wheels, whether motorized or not. This
term shall include, but shall not be limited to, Oversized Vehicles, Recreational Vehicles,
and Abandoned/Broken-Down Vehicles.

a. Oversized Vehicle. As used herein, “Oversized Vehicle” shall mean the following:
i. Any Vehicle or Vessel heavier or larger in size than a one-ton, dual rear wheel

pick-up truck;

ii. Motor Vehicles with a trailer attached;

iii. Motor coaches/homes;

iv. Travel trailers, camping trailers, park trailers, fifth-wheel trailers, semi-
trailers, or any other kind of trailer;

v. Mobile homes or manufactured homes.

b. Abandoned/Broken-Down Vehicle. A vehicle that has no license plate, has expired
registration, is visibly not operational, or has not moved for a period of seven (7) days.

c. Recreational Vehicle. A vehicle designed for recreational use, which includes motor
homes, campers and trailers relative to same.

B. Vessel. Every description of watercraft, barge, or airboat used or capable of being used as
a means of transportation on water.

C. Park(ed)/(ing). A Vehicle or Vessel left unattended by its owner or user or attended by its
owner or user but kept stationary for a period of an hour or more.

D. Tow-Away Zone. District property for which the District is authorized to initiate a towing
and/or removal action. Any District property not a Designated Parking Area is a Tow
Away Zone.



F.

OPTIONA:

Overnight. Between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. daily.

Overnight Pass(es). Passes administered by District staff permitting parking between the
hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. daily.

SECTION 3. DESIGNATED PARKING AREAS.

A.

OPTION B:

General. Parking is permitted only in Designated Parking Areas, as indicated by asphalt
markings for Parking spaces or signage and as indicated on the map attached hereto as
Exhibit A. Certain Designated Parking Areas may have restrictions on Parking during
certain times or for certain types of vehicles and vessels as described herein. Any Vehicle
Parked on District property must do so in compliance with all laws, ordinances, and
codes, and shall not block access to driveways, property entrances, or fire hydrants
and shall Park in the appropriate direction. All drivers are responsible for knowing state
and local laws, ordinances, and codes related to Parking. Violations of state or local laws
may result in citations, towing, or other legal action as permitted by law.

Day-time Resident Parking. Residents of the District may Park in the Designated Parking
Areas designated by signage as “resident parking spaces” during the open hours of
operations of the District’s amenity facilities, including any District-authorized special
events occurring outside of regular hours of operation. Vehicles Parked in resident parking
spaces must have the appropriate resident decal issued by the District.

Day-time Guest Parking. Individuals, including residents of the District and guests, may
Park in the Designated Parking Areas not designated by signage as “resident parking
spaces” during the open hours of operations of such amenity facilities, including any
District-authorized special events occurring outside of regular hours of operation.

Overnight Parking. Parking of any Vehicle Overnight is further restricted as provided in
this Section 3. Parking in the Designated Parking Areas is only permitted Overnight with
a valid Overnight Pass to be issued by District staff. Overnight Passes may be initially
issued for a period not to exceed seven (7) days. An extension of up to fourteen (14) days
may be requested. District staff may deny any request for Overnight Passes or associated
extensions in their sole discretion.

SECTION 3. DESIGNATED PARKING AREAS.

A

General. Parking is permitted only in Designated Parking Areas, as indicated by asphalt
markings for Parking spaces or signage and as indicated on the map attached hereto as
Exhibit A. Certain Designated Parking Areas may have restrictions on Parking during
certain times or for certain types of vehicles and vessels as described herein. Any Vehicle
Parked on District property must do so in compliance with all laws, ordinances, and
codes, and shall not block access to driveways, property entrances, or fire hydrants
and shall Park in the appropriate direction. All drivers are responsible for knowing state
and local laws, ordinances, and codes related to Parking. Violations of state or local laws
may result in citations, towing, or other legal action as permitted by law.



Day-time Parking. Parking in the Designated Parking Areas is permitted during the open
hours of operations of the District’s amenity facilities, including any District-authorized
special events occurring outside of regular hours of operation.

Overnight Parking. Parking of any Vehicle Overnight is further restricted as provided in
this Section 3. Parking in the Designated Parking Areas is only permitted Overnight with
a valid Overnight Pass to be issued by District staff. Overnight Passes may be initially
issued for a period not to exceed seven (7) days. An extension of up to fourteen (14) days
may be requested. District staff may deny any request for Overnight Passes or associated
extensions in their sole discretion.

SECTION 4. ESTABLISHMENT OF TOW-AWAY ZONES. All District property which is not
explicitly designated for Parking, or which is designated for Parking but subject to restrictions as described
herein, shall hereby be established as “Tow Away Zones.” Any Vehicle Parked in violation of this Policy
may be towed by the District at the sole expense of the owner of such Vehicle if it remains in violation of
the provisions of this Policy. The District shall not be liable to the owner of such Vehicle for trespass,
conversion, damages, or otherwise, nor guilty of any criminal act by reason of such towing, and neither its
removal nor failure of the owner of such Vehicle to receive any notice of said violation shall be grounds
for relief of any kind.

SECTION 5. EXCEPTIONS.

A

ABANDONED/BROKEN-DOWN VEHICLES. Abandoned/Broken-Down Vehicles may not
be Parked on District property at any time.

VENDORS/CONTRACTORS. The District Manager or his/her designee may authorize
vendors/consultants in writing to Park company vehicles in order to facilitate District
business. All vehicles so authorized must be identified by a Parking pass issued by the
District.

DELIVERY VEHICLES AND GOVERNMENTAL VEHICLES. Delivery vehicles, including
but not limited to, U.S.P.S., U.P.S., Fed Ex, moving company vehicles, and lawn
maintenance vendors may Park on District property while actively engaged in the operation
of such businesses. Vehicles owned and operated by any governmental unit may also Park
on District property while carrying out official duties.

MANNER OF PARKING. Vehicles and Vessels of any kind may not be Parked such that they
utilize additional spaces, block access to District property, prevent the safe and orderly
flow of traffic, obstruct the ability of emergency vehicles to access roadways or property,
cause damage to the District’s property, restrict the normal operation of the District’s
business, or otherwise poses a danger to the District, its residents and guests, the general
public, or the property of same. All Parking must comply with all state and local laws and
ordinances.

SECTION 6. TOWING/REMOVAL PROCEDURES; ENFORCEMENT.

A

SIGNAGE AND LANGUAGE REQUIREMENTS. Notice of the Tow-Away Zones shall be
posted on District property in the manner set forth in Section 715.07, Florida Statutes.
Such signage is to be placed in conspicuous locations, in accordance with Section 715.07,
Florida Statutes.



B. TOWING/REMOVAL AUTHORITY. The District may engage a towing company to
tow/remove any Vehicle or Vessel improperly Parked in a Tow-Away Zone at the owner’s
expense. The Vehicle or Vessel shall be towed/removed by the towing service in
accordance with Florida law, specifically the provisions set forth in Section 715.07, Florida
Statutes.

C. AGREEMENT WITH AUTHORIZED TOWING SERVICE. The District Manager is hereby
authorized to enter into and maintain an agreement with a firm authorized by Florida law
to tow/remove unauthorized vehicles and in accordance with Florida law and with the
policies set forth herein.

D. AMENITY SUSPENSION. The District may, in its discretion, suspend the amenity privileges
of the owner or operator of any Vehicle or Vessel Parked in violation of this Rule, in
accordance with the District’s adopted Suspension and Termination of Access Rule.

SECTION 7. PARKING AT YOUR OWN RIsK. Vehicles, Vessels or Recreational Vehicles may
be Parked on District property pursuant to this Rule, provided however that the District assumes no liability
for any theft, vandalism and/or damage that might occur to personal property and/or to such Vehicles.

SECTION8.  AMENDMENTS; DESIGNATION OF ADDITIONAL TOW-AWAY ZONES OR
DESIGNATED PARKING AREAS. The Board in its sole discretion may amend these Rules Related to
Parking and Parking Enforcement from time to time to designate new Tow-Away Zones or Designated
Parking Areas. Such designations of new Tow-Away Zones and Designated Parking Areas are subject to
proper signage and notice prior to enforcement of these Rules in such areas.

EXHIBIT A — Designated Parking Areas

Effective date: , 2025




Tab 5






Tab 6






Single Buoy Analytics Actions
Date Range Parameters
2025-09-18 ~ 2025-09-25 10 Selected v
Project Station
Lake 5t. Charles Project e Pro-730 Tt
I Co
i o T
iT‘ + &‘{‘r i d.r{-&ﬁba
| b :'-’!J_.. )}:"?-':
H— Sl iwf&'” i
1 _
i ' b ~ :i - 1“' 8 ,i*.".'kr-'.'{:."r'"-l'-’ K
| ! .-I w-__-___'| l‘\\-,"f Charies ;i
& o - Pool Poark =
| ‘

i ¥
Ll i
Pl = ey oy
i o (W plataiais
1 Fl
¥ i § .
| ¥ i

= c
51

) f}Lité Station

e 1 Pro73D
Laki

=
£
(]
&
-y
b
=
s
¥
e

Hird

aemington Driv

4 Ao

i es

L\ Prty Si%icn

2] 1. = .-,y{} r A
k. &

Colomal Lake Drive

£

Ultrasound

(ten)
Urgent

Project created at Station created at

By e R i
S4-U08-2025 Da-Ub-£2027

g o

Station Types

Mo addons on this project

W

B L
L o

Chlorophyll (pug/L)

ug/L
10
3
" |
il | | |
Pzt |1 R i 5 el |
: 5.4? ; Il: ! Ii -Lll i ..-')’ !hj..__ '—I ll |J||.'_ e ﬂ t
| i iy il ) o
i r 2 !l ’ 1 | | _,-'r - I." li
bt : | fet Il -
4 : i 1 | |
! v
|/
®
B Sep 20 Zep 22 Sep 24 Sep 28

Dissolved Cxygen (mg/L)

No data for this date range

pH

0.020

Phycocyanin (pg/fL)

pa/L
180
|
160 ,-'r!
i | R - "!
| a8
| | £h " |
| | |f I."!I II'I |:" './.-I I'!I.i II l
140 | 135.06 —f [ B/ — 1 | I|
— e i
(T 2 e 1 1t
1} | 1 | 1 f .
| v, L] | -
120 . ¥ . I
i 4 II| { |I 1 II |I|l
r, g | f [
¥
L. r I.I | I. Il
W i I|
100 '!l.l’ I '/ f
y || |
I I
O‘ I.ll l'.l
20 -~
& Sep 20 Sep 22 Sep 24 Sep 26
Turbidity (FNU) 7=
L
FNU
30
25 el
22.16 ) I'|
1
|
2 I|
1
|
|
|
|
15 3
.I\./
. ®
Sep 20 Sep 22 tep 24 Sep 26

Dissolved Oxygen Saturation (%sat)

"



Tab 7



LAKE ST, CHARLES CDD OAI LOG 2025

MEETING OPEN ACTION ITEMS START DATE DUE DATE REMARKES COPMLETED COST
DATE DATE
1 Wall demo has started, Contractor located opened $10,390.00
9-3 and construction of the 916 | ------- similar bricks, to
wall. rework the wall.
2 Wade Pool resurfacing. 10-3 | - Looking forward to having 10-8 $6,102.70
9-3 this back up and running
for the kids.
3 TECO has trimmed the To keep outages to a 9-24 $0.00
9-3 trees on LSD Blvd. 9-22 | - minimum in LSD.
3 Zip line, parts are in the Zip line is a Manits 10-22 $823.88
9-3 processing from Miracle 9-8 | -------
Playground.
4 Zebra pools insurance 9-4 | - Florida state license 9-4 $0.00
9-3 and insurance
certification.
5 0.3 LMP / Juniper landscaping Insurance 9-4 $0.00

certification and
license.

10

11

12







Tab 8



PROPOSAL

LANDSCAPE INSPECTION SERVICES — RFP Preparation

Prepared for: Lake St. Charles Community Development District




COMMITTED TO PRESERVING
AND ENHANCING THE
COMMUNITY LANDSCAPE



WHAT WE DO

LANDSCAPE INSPECTION

SERVICES

One of the largest expenses in any planned community is landscape maintenance. Why not
have a professional, experienced landscape manager ensuring it is thriving and beautifully

framing the community as it was intended to be?

Our Landscape Inspection Services team includes a Landscape Designer, a former
commercial landscape maintenance company account manager, a prior owner of a multi-
dimensional landscape service firm and a certified arborist. Rizzetta & Company’s
Landscape Inspection Services team has a combined total of nearly 100 years serving
Florida community landscapes!

Each of our Landscape Specialists is Best Management Practices (BMP) certified in the state
of Florida. Our team is committed to elevating landscape maintenance in your community with
detailed inspections, formal reporting, landscape planning, and effective vendor management
strategies.

The first thing noticed in any community is its landscaping. It can convey a “Wow” factor to
visitors, set a welcoming tone for residents, and help to increase home values within the
community. Rizzetta & Company Landscape Inspection Services team provides the expertise

needed for a well-planned, well-maintained community landscape now and for the future.

Rizzetta & Company | Professionals in Community Management

3



2,

HOW WE DO IT

THE

PROCESS

Our landscape inspection services team is committed to preserving and enhancing the
community landscape with detailed inspections, formal reporting, enhancement planning, and
effective vendor communication strategies.

Community Asset Management Plan: Upon request and following fee agreement, perform
a complete inventory of the community landscape assets and provide an inventory report to
the board.

Landscape Design: Landscape designer on staff available for landscape consultation,
enhancements, and design upon request and following fee agreement.

Landscape & Irrigation Maintenance Scope of Services Development: Upon request and
following fee agreement, develop a request for proposal (RFP) document to include a
customized set of standards and specifications based on the community needs and budget.
We will conduct the bidding process, review, and prepare bid tabulation documents for the
board and assist the board with reviewing the bid tabulation and other pertinent information.

Landscape Maintenance Inspections: Perform grounds inspections, provide the board with
an inspection report (see sample below), notify maintenance contractor of deficiencies in
service, and obtain proposals for landscape projects.

Landscape Turnover Inspections: Upon request and following fee agreement, attend
landscape turnover meeting and participate in the inspection on behalf of the board. Follow up
report provided.

Master Task Project Plan for Mature Communities: Upon request and following fee
agreement, develop a project plan specific to landscape replacement and enhancement for
the common areas. Emphasis is on maturing landscape in the community and budgeting
accordingly.

Rizzetta & Company | Professionals in Community Management



&

THE SERVICE

SCOPE OF

SERVICES

Rizzetta & Company is pleased to provide this proposal for the preparation of a formal Request for
Proposals (RFP) for landscape & Irrigation maintenance. These services will be provided on a one-
time basis, with a detailed description provided below.

Develop a formal Request for Proposals (RFP).

Rizzetta will develop a customized RFP document that will be provided to interested landscape
maintenance contractors. The RFP will include specific contractor instructions regarding site
visits, pricing instructions, proposal forms, preparation, and delivery. Also included will be the
customized scope of work.

Develop Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Services and Specifications.

After meeting with appropriate on-site personnel, if any, to ensure all site-specific maintenance
requirements are met, Rizzetta & Co. will tailor a detailed scope of work based on the Client’s
needs for the property including maintenance specifications for turf, shrubs, trees, perennials,
and groundcovers. Additional specifications will be provided for proper fertilization and pest
control based on Green Industries Best Management Practices (GIBMP), as well as inspection
requirements for monthly irrigation wet checks.

Conduct and Administer Pre-Bid meeting with Contractors.

Rizzetta & Co. will conduct a mandatory on-site Pre-Bid meeting to discuss the RFP Project
manual, the property and any other pertinent site-specific issues as well as compile a list of
those vendors in attendance.

Review Proposals and Submit Tabulation Summaries.

After receipt of proposals, Rizzetta & Co. will prepare and provide tabulation summaries to the
Client to assist in the evaluation.

Assist the Client during a designated meeting in the evaluation of the vendors’
proposals.

Rizzetta & Co., after providing Client with summaries of proposals and bid ranking sheets, will
conduct the evaluation/scoring of the proposals during a designated board meeting.

Rizzetta & Company | Professionals in Community Management

5



@ PRICING

LANDSCAPE INSPECTION

Services Fee

¢ All production, printing, postage, shipping and blueprinting costs necessary to perform
the services are included.

e Site maintenance exhibit to be provided by the Client.

e Irrigation As-Builts (if available) to be provided by Client.

e All travel costs necessary to perform the services are included.

e Total Fee for Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Specification Development:
$3750

(50% billed at full proposal execution, remainder of fee to be billed upon completion)

Submitted Accepted

By: By:

Lucianno Mastrionni Print:

Vice President, Corporate Services

Rizzetta & Company For: Lake St. Charles Community Development District
Date: 09/29/2025 Date:

Rizzetta & Company | Professionals in Community Management



WE BUILD

THAT LAST

g —
=7 Rizzetta & Company

Professionals in Community Management

CORPORATE OFFICE

| 3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200, Tampa, FL 33614
888-208-5008 | rizzetta.com




Tab 9



O 0o NOUL DS WN -

10

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47

LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
June 39 | 2025, Minutes of Meeting
Page 1

MINUTES OF MEETING

Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to
any matter considered at the meeting is advised that the person may need to ensure
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence
upon which such appeal is to be based.

LAKE ST. CHARLES
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Lake St. Charles Community
Development District were held on Tuesday, June 39, 2025, at 7:00 p.m. at The Lake
St. Charles Clubhouse located at 6801 Colonial Lake Drive, Riverview, FL 33578.

Present and constituting a quorum:

Virginia Gianakos Chairperson

Toni Marie Davis Vice Chairperson
Yvonne Brown Assistant Secretary
John Hines Marshall Assistant Secretary
Benjamin Turinsky Assistant Secretary

Also present were:

Adriana Urbina District Manager
Ed Jimenez District Engineer
Erica Augello District Counsel
Audience Present
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order

Ms. Gianakos called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and confirmed a quorum.
SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments

Residents made comments on several business items and concerns throughout the
district focusing on landscaping, timely payments to vendors, criticism of the current
District Manager and expressing the desire for a dedicated management company
to come and rectify the issues within the district.

Other Residents opposed the idea of a management company, stating that cost as a
primary reason. Expressed frustration with Board Members over recent decisions and
length of CDD Meetings.



48
49

50

51
52
53
54
55

56

57
58
59
60
61

62
63
64
65
66

67
68
69
70
71

72
73
74

LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
June 39 | 2025, Minutes of Meeting
Page 2

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Agenda Additions

On a motion by Mr. Marshall, with none in opposition, the Board agreed to allot 10 minutes
for each Property Management company to present themselves and allow a Q&A from
Board for the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.

On a motion by Mr. Marshall, with none in opposition, the Board agreed waive the
requirements from for the ITB for the Board to consider the Inframark Proposal for the Lake

St. Charles Community Development District.

District Counsel advised The Board how to proceed with the process.

The Board discussed at length how to proceed.

On a motion by Mr. Marshall, with none in opposition, the Board agreed to select a property
Management this meeting for the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.

On a motion by Ms. Gianakos, with none in opposition, the Board agreed to keep the

agenda as is for the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audit Presentation

The Auditor presented the Audit to The Board

On a motion by Mr. Marshall seconded by Ms. Gianakos, with none in opposition, the Board

agreed to approve the Audit for the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Business Iltems and Staff Reports

A. Consideration of District Counsel Proposals

On a motion by Mr. Marshall seconded by Ms. Gianakos, with none in opposition, the Board
agreed to approve the proposal from Kilinski Van Wyk and authorize the Chair to negotiate
a contract outside of the meeting for District Counsel Services for the Lake St. Charles

Community Development District.

B. District Engineer

Present, provided updates to the Board and answered questions.

On a motion by Mr. Turinsky seconded by Ms. Gianakos, with none in opposition, the Board

agreed to recess for the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.




75
76
77
78
79
80
81

82
83
84

85
86
87
88
89
90

91
92
93
94
95

96
97
98
99
100
101
102

103
104
105
106

LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
June 39 | 2025, Minutes of Meeting
Page 3

At 1:55:25 Ms. Gianakos called the meeting back to order
C. Property Management Presentations

Mr. Nielson from Rizzetta and Company presented and answered questions from the
Board.

On a motion by Mr. Turinsky seconded by Ms. Gianakos, with none in opposition, the Board

agreed to recess for the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.

At 2:32:55 Ms. Gianakos called the meeting back to order

On a motion by Mr. Marshall seconded by Ms. Gianakos in a vote of 3 — 2, the Board agreed
to authorize the chair to enter contract negotiations with Rizzetta and Company outside the
meeting for District Management the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.

D. District Counsel

Present, provided updates to the Board regarding the transition of District Counsel
and shade sessions.

On a motion by Mr. Turinsky with none in oppaosition, the Board agreed to engage with third

party lawyer for case for the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Business Administration

A. Consideration of Meeting Minutes from March 4" & April 15t, 2025

On a motion by Mr. Marshall, seconded by Ms. Davis, The Board unanimously approved
the meeting minutes of March 4" and April 1%t for the Lake St. Charles Community

Development District.

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Old Business
A. Attorney Representation Reimbursement

District Counsel found no issue with the request.

On a motion by Gianakos, with no opposition The Board unanimously approved the request

for the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.




107
108
109
110
111

112

113
114

115
116
117
118
119

120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138

LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
June 39 | 2025, Minutes of Meeting
Page 4

On a motion by Marshall, seconded by Ms. Brown The Board unanimously approved to

send the request to insurance for the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.

Motion of 5-0 on ? time 3:16:00

The Board discussed at length the paying out of employees to coincide with July 1%, 2025

On a motion by Mr. Marshall, with no opposition The Board unanimously approved that
chair will send all current employees a letter via certified mail with notification of their last
working day for the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.

On a motion by Mr. Marshall, with no opposition The Board unanimously approved
Resolution 2025-02 : Approving Proposed FY 25-26 Budget and Setting Public Hearing
for the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.

On a motion by Turinsky, seconded by Ms. Brown The Board unanimously approved all
the Dates for the HOA clubhouse rental for the Lake St. Charles Community Development

District.

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment

On a motion by Mr. Marshall, seconded by Ms. Gianakos, with all in favor, the Board
adjourned the meeting after an meeting duration of 3:40:46 for the Lake St. Charles

Community Development District.




139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161

LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
June 39 | 2025, Minutes of Meeting

Assistant Secretary

Chair / Vice Chair

Page 5



O 0o NOUL DS WN -

10

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47

LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
September 37, 2025, Minutes of Meeting
Page 1

MINUTES OF MEETING

Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to
any matter considered at the meeting is advised that the person may need to ensure
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence
upon which such appeal is to be based.

LAKE ST. CHARLES
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The special meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Lake St. Charles Community
Development District was held on Wednesday, September 3, 2025, at 2:00 p.m. at The
Lake St. Charles Clubhouse located at 6801 Colonial Lake Drive, Riverview, FL 33578.

Present and constituting a quorum:

Virginia Gianakos Chairperson

Toni Marie Davis Vice Chairperson
Yvonne Brown Assistant Secretary
John Hines Marshall Assistant Secretary
Benjamin Turinsky Assistant Secretary

Also present were:

Ruben Durand District Manager; Rizzetta & Co., Inc.
David Eskra Property Manager; Rizzetta & Co., Inc.
Savannah Hancock District Counsel; Kilinski Van Wyk
Ed Jimenez District Engineer
Audience Present

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order

Mr. Durand called the meeting to order at 2:01 p.m. and confirmed a quorum.
SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments
A resident made a records request for itemized receipts from credit cards from

January 2025 -> present and ADP hours clocked in as well as PTO and
documentation out of the employee handbook.



48
49
50
51
52
53

54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75

76
77
78

79
80
81
82

LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
September 37, 2025, Minutes of Meeting
Page 2

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports
A. District Counsel

Present. Ms. Hancock presented the letter to the Board

On a motion by Mr. Marshall seconded by Ms. Davis, with all in favor, the Board decided
to engage Hillsborough County Sheriff's Office to pursue letter in regard to public records

for the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.

B. District Engineer
i. Update on the Seawall
Present. Provided updates on the seawall and mentioned he has no objection to the
work, but to where the CDD has jurisdiction. He also provided updates on the county
violation regarding the trail.

C. Clubhouse Monthly Status Report
Mr. Eskra presented the report to the Board.

D. District Manager

Mr. Durand presented the report to the Board. The Board directed staff to provide a
proposal from Rizzetta on landscape RFP.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Business Items

A. Opening of Public Hearing on Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Final Budget

On a motion by Ms. Gianakos seconded by Mr. Marshall, with all in favor, the Board opened
the Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Final Budget for the Lake St. Charles

Community Development District.

B. Closing of Public Hearing on Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Final Budget

On a motion by Ms. Brown seconded by Ms. Gianakos, with all in favor, the Board closed
the Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Final Budget for the Lake St. Charles

Community Development District.




83
84
85

86
87
88

89
90
91

92
93
94
95

96
97
98

99

100
101
102
103
104

105
106

LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
September 37, 2025, Minutes of Meeting
Page 3

C. Consideration of Resolution 2025 — XX; Adopting Fiscal Year 2025-2026
Final Budget

On a motion by Mr. Marshall, seconded by Ms. Gianakos, with all in favor, the Board
approved Resolution 2025 — XX; Adopting Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Final Budget as
amended for the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.

D. Opening of Public Hearing on Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Assessments

On a motion by Ms. Gianakos seconded by Ms. Davis, with all in favor, the Board opened
the Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Assessments for the Lake St. Charles
Community Development District.

E. Closing of Public Hearing on Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Assessments

On a motion by Mr. Marshall seconded by Mr. Turinsky, with all in favor, the Board closed
the Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Assessments for the Lake St. Charles
Community Development District.

F. Consideration of Resolution 2025 — XX; Levying O&M Assessments for Fiscal
Year 2025-2026

On a motion by Ms. Gianakos, seconded by Ms. Davis, with all in favor, the Board approved
Resolution 2025 — XX; Levying O&M Assessments for Fiscal Year 2025-2026 for the Lake
St. Charles Community Development District.

G. Discussion on HOA use of the CDD Clubhouse

On a motion by Mr. Turinsky, seconded by Ms. Brown, with all in favor, the Board approved
the Lake St. Charles HOA to be able to use the bulletin board along the trail adjacent to the
building for the Lake St. Charles Community Development District.

On a failed motion by Mr. Turinsky, seconded by Ms. Brown, in a decision of 2-3, the Board
rejected the proposal for the HOA entities to be able to use the CDD facilities for their
monthly meetings.

H. Consideration of Pool Repair Quotes

Cooper Pools quote was $4,725.00 and Triangle was $4,500.00

On a motion by Mr. Turinsky, seconded by Ms. Gianakos, with all in favor, the Board
approved the proposal from Coastal Creations Pools in the amount of $5,987.50 for pool
repairs, contingent upon them providing license, registration, and insurance for the Lake
St. Charles Community Development District.




107
108
109
110
111
112
113

114
115
116
117

118
119
120
121
122

123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132

133
134
135
136
137
138

LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
September 37, 2025, Minutes of Meeting
Page 4

On a motion by Mr. Marshall, seconded by Ms. Gianakos, with all in favor, the Board
approved two proposals from Tigris for the Lake St. Charles Community Development

District.

I. Discussion of Trail Usage Policy
Board Discussed. District Counsel will bring draft of Policy to next meeting

J. Goals and Objectives for FY 2025 / 2026

On a motion by Mr. Marshall, seconded by Ms. Davis, The Board added open and
transparent communication to Goals and Objectives for FY 25/26 for the Lake St. Charles

Community Development District.

K. Consideration of Resolution 2025 - XX; Maintenance and Funding of
Perimeter Walll

On a motion by Mr. Marshall, seconded by Ms. Davis the Board adopted Resolution 2025
— XX; Maintenance and Funding of Perimeter Wall for the Lake St. Charles Community

Development District.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Business Administration

A. Consideration of Regular Meeting Minutes from August 6™, 2025

On a motion by Mr. Marshall, seconded by Mr. Turinsky, The Board unanimously approved
the meeting minutes of August 6" as amended for the Lake St. Charles Community
Development District.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Requests and Comments
Ms. Brown would like to incorporate open action items.

Ms. Gianakos would like the dock to be looked at, LMP to check the weeds along the lake,
Landscape lighting, and Inquire Solitude on ponds that are green.

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment

On a motion by Ms. Brown, seconded by Ms. Gianakos, with all in favor, the Board
adjourned the meeting at 4:56 p.m., for the Lake St. Charles Community Development

District.




139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146

LAKE ST. CHARLES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
September 37, 2025, Minutes of Meeting

Assistant Secretary

Chair / Vice Chair

Page 5



	01 Cover Page 10-01
	02 Agenda Cover
	2025-10-01 - Lake  St. Charles - Final Agenda
	Tab 1 - 250827 - CLEAN - Revisions of Rules of Procedure - 2025 Legislative Updates - Lake St. Charles CDD
	Tab 2 - Amenity Usage
	Tab 3 - Encroachment
	Tab 4 - 250929 - Amended and Restated Parking Rules - LSC
	Tab 5 - Status report september 2025
	Tab 6 - Bouy  01
	Bouy 02
	Tab 7 - Lake St Charles - LOG
	Tab 8 - 2025-09-29 - Lake St. Charles CDD -  RFP Proposal
	SERVICES
	PROCESS
	SERVICES
	Services Fee
	PARTNERSHIPS

	Tab 9 - 2025-06-03 - Lake St. Charles CDD - Meeting Minutes - Copy



